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Company Profile
NEEN

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”, Hong Kong stock code: 757, Taiwan stock
code: 9157.TT) is a leading supplier of upstream and downstream
vertically integrated solar energy services. Its products are not only sold
to customers in the upstream and mid-stream industries but also directly
sold to end users. Therefore, the Company has external sales, such as
the manufacture and sales of monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers,
photovoltaic cells and photovoltaic modules; the development, design,
construction, operation and maintenance of photovoltaic systems as well
as photovoltaic power plants themselves.

During the year, the Group was mainly engaged in four main businesses:

(@ the manufacturing of, trading of and provision of processing services
for polysilicon and monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers;

(b)  the manufacturing and trading of monocrystalline silicon solar cells;

(c) the manufacturing and trading of photovoltaic modules and
installation of photovoltaic systems; and

(d) the operating of photovoltaic power plants.

Currently, our integrated business model includes monocrystalline silicon
solar ingot production with annual capacity of approximately 1.2GW,
solar wafer production with annual capacity of approximately 900MW, as
well as photovoltaic cells and modules production with annual capacity of
approximately 300MW and 400MW, respectively. In addition, the Group
operates polysilicon reclaiming and upgrading facilities in Shanghai and
Jinzhou.

The scope of the Group’s business covers the entire industry chain of the

photovoltaic sector. Its business scope covers the PV industry chain in its
entirety, focusing on providing one-stop solar energy services.

4 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED & ¢ 8EIRIZAR B R A 7
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

Five-Year Financial Summary EFEHERE

2,150,328
149,993
(39,704)
(135,504)

(4.57)

2,636,556
1,603,618
2,176,101

825,277
1,238,796
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Sustainable Development

GGrow 1o Achieve Success
FEERE B




As the global economy grew steadily in 2013 and GDP of the PRC
increased 7.7% for the whole year, the global GDP increased 3%.
Benefited from the stable domestic and overseas economy, the solar
industry has shown signs of recovery in 2013, recovering gradually from
overcapacity and oversupply in the business environment. In 2013,
the PRC solar industry has experienced a large-scale of mergers and
restructuring through the mechanism of “compelling to retreat”, which
has accelerated the elimination of obsolete enterprises in the solar
industry and consolidated and enhanced the leading advantages of the
top enterprises. After two years, the solar industry has gradually digested
the previous overcapacity. Meanwhile, fully supported by the national
policies and after the survival of the fittest in market competition, new
opportunities have now arisen again in the solar industry.

Leveraging on its leading advantages of vertical integrated approach,
Solargiga Energy managed to expand its business to cover the whole
industry chain of photovoltaic industry by proactively adhering with
national policies and keeping abreast with the trends of the industry
development. It also successfully implemented the transformation from
a leading manufacturer of monocrystalline silicon solar ingots and wafers
to a leading and vertical integrated provider of solar energy service. The
Company provides customers in each section in the chain of photovoltaic
industry with one-stop solar industry solutions of silicon ingots, silicon
wafers, cells, modules and development, design, construction, operation
and maintenance of power generation systems.

—E-ZF RREAVRIER - PEIZFGDPERAT.7% - 2IRGDPER
A3% - FERBERIMEERE - KEHEER-Z-—=FEIRERNR
RERBER - HERRNEERFPELSEE - —Z—=F  BAMTSER
HE o PEIAGREEFREENRERGER - MBEEAERERNARKRED
¥ ZEWIEREBELKXALED - ERWE » AISETRCEIELERN
BRNER  BREERBEROADKRET  KBEBSANTSEHE B
BRI -

BRERESESBANEE —BILED  BRESERBE  RREBET
FBRRoBE  RYKEEXRBAREARERZESRE  WERER{EH
BRENAGEERERERER BEBQTEELNEE - BILBEZKE
BERRIBHERNER - AR REXERRAT PRANERE  ERH > Bl
M BERS 2B R BE BEERERN WA KBRITERR
RE-

TAN Wenhua,
Executive Director and Chairman

S— e g Ly
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Chairman’s Statement FfEHEE

During the Year, benefited from the recovery in the industry and
appropriate operating strategies, the Group successfully turned around
in the second half of 2013 and recorded profit, thus narrowed the loss
for the Year significantly. During the Year, turnover significantly increased
115.7% to RMB2,150.3 million. The turnover of the Group in the second
half of 2013 reached RMB1,331.4 million, representing an increase of
62.6% as compared with the first half of 2013, while the gross profit
margin increased 7.6 percentage points to 9.9% when compared to the
first half. As a result, the net loss attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Group dropped significantly from RMB1,276.554 million in 2012 to
RMB135.504 million last year. In addition, the external shipment volume of
the Group during the Year increased 55.3% to 728.8MW when compared
to the corresponding period in 2012. The Group’s operation has notably
improved in 2013, which mainly benefitted from the outstanding business
performance of the Group in the second half of 2013.

2013 was a year of photovoltaic policies to the PRC. The government
introduced various policies which facilitated the integration in the
photovoltaic industry and promoted a health development in the
photovoltaic industry. The relevant policies has substantially raised
the photovoltaic installation target in the “Twelfth Five-year Plan” to
35GW and promulgated various regulations to ensure the quality of
new photovoltaic projects. Meanwhile, the government protected the
photovoltaic power generation by regulating the operation of photovoltaic
power generation and VAT rebate. In 2013, Solargiga Energy followed
the development direction of the national policies. It maintained its
technological advantages and, at the same time, actively sought for
qualified companies for acquisition to accelerate the expansion of
downstream business and to complete the business structure of the
Group. By way of vertical integrated development, the Company can
consolidate the leading position in the industry and become a leading
enterprise with core competitiveness in photovoltaic industry.

In order to consistently implement the Group’s development strategy of
vertical integrated approach, Solargiga Energy has, after ensuring a stable
development of the existing advantageous business, extended to the
EPC business by acquiring 100% equity interests of Jinzhou Wintek, a
EPC company, through Jinzhou Yangguang, a wholly-owned subsidiary,
to achieve development target of the Group’s business such that it covers
the entire industry chain of the photovoltaic sector.

Japan Market has always been the major export market of the Group.
During the Year, the turnover from Japan contributed 73.9% to the total
turnover, which is a core region of turnover contribution of the Group. The
Group attaches importance to the cooperation with Japan Market and
endeavors to extend the cooperation with well-established customers
in Japan. During the Year under review, the Group consolidated
and extended the cooperation with the well-known enterprise Sharp
Corporation (“Sharp”) from Japan and added business cooperation in
solar energy modules supply to the existing business cooperation. In the
Japan fiscal year of 2013, Sharp increased the purchase of aggregate
370MW solar energy modules products from the Group. With this new
business, the Group has strengthened the supply and sales partnership
with Sharp and has become Sharp’s biggest supplier in the entire industry
chain of solar energy in the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement EfEiREE

On top of consolidating its leading market share, the Group expanded
the overseas market steadily and broadened its international business
coverage. At the end of 2013, DCH Solargiga GmbH., a subsidiary in
Germany which is held as to 70% by the Group, entered into a cooperation
agreement with Savannah Accelerated Development Authority which
intended to establish a joint venture company and to construct total
200MW the solar energy power plants project in Ghana. Through this
cooperation, the Group was able to expand the sources of end-user
customers of power generation stations overseas and widened the sales
channels of upstream photovoltaic products of the Group to establish a
solid foundation for realizing vertical integrated development of the Group.

Looking forward to the future, the Group believed that the government
will further enhance the supportive policies to the photovoltaic industry.
The National Energy Administration (BIZXEEJR ) recently promulgated
a notice headed“annual additional construction scale of photovoltaic
power generation of 2014 ({20145 R R EF EHLERBFE))
which provides that the additional annual filed total size shall be 14
million kilowatts (KW) with distributed power plants of 8 million KW and
photovoltaic power plants of 6 million KW. In the future, Solargiga Energy
will accelerate the development of downstream business and promote the
development of the Group’s EPC business by continuously adhering with
national policies development, so as to consolidate its own advantage of
vertical integrated approach. In the days ahead, the Group will actively
expand the overseas market to widen the business coverage of Solargiga
Energy. Aiming at achieving the target of becoming a leading photovoltaic
one-stop supplier in the world, the Group will maintain and deepen the
cooperation relationship with Japan Market while seeking more overseas
cooperation relationships.

Finally, I, on behalf of the Board, would like to express my gratitude to the
management and staff for their dedicated efforts and hard work. For your
persistent efforts, Solargiga Energy was able to overcome the hardship
during operating period, coruscate new opportunities and turned around
with a steady business growth. Also, | would like to thank shareholders
for their continuous supports and confidences to Solargiga Energy. In the
coming year, Solargiga Energy will continue the in-depth development
in vertical integrated approach to fully elaborate its advantages, thereby
generates fruitful returns to acknowledge our shareholders for their
expectation towards Solargiga Energy.

TAN Wen Hua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEEN W KR

Market Overview

The global solar industry was in recession and the restriction of demand
existed, mainly due to the expansion of production capacity of solar
industry to induce over-supply. However, after experiencing the hardship
of operating environment, there were the signs of recovery since 2013
and the industry has been in gradual recovery since last year.

Last year, Asia still was the main source of demand in the solar industry,
in which PRC and Japan were the main market of demand in the world,
followed by USA. According to Marketbuzz report of Solarbuzz, a
research institute for the solar industry, PRC, Japan and USA accounted
for 59% global solar photovoltaic demand in 2013. According to the
latest statistics of European photovoltaic Industry Association (“EPIA”),
the installation capacity of solar energy reached 37GW. PRC became the
largest country for installation of solar energy, which reached 11.3GW
and Japan and USA reached 6.9GW and 4.8GW, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis S Extm R 24T

Market Overview (Continued)

In the past few years, for the installation, the majority parts were large
ground photovoltaic power plants. In July 2013, the State Council of PRC
announced the “No. 24 Opinions of the State Council on Promoting the
Healthy Development of Photovoltaic Industry (2013)”. The document
introduced to increase the target of photovoltaic power generation
installation in “Twelfth Five-year Plan” from 21GW to 35GW. There
was the significant signal for the recovery of photovoltaic industry. In
addition, a notice “Interim Measures for the Investigation of Photovoltaic
Power Generation Operation (KR 2 EE & EEEITHHE)” was issued
by the National Energy Administration of PRC at the end of last year. It
suggested that the energy administration department of the State Council
and its dispatched investigating electricity control institutions have a
priority to control the situation of photovoltaic power generation and
the electricity control institutions cannot restrict the photovoltaic power
generation output, except the situations which are irresistible or frightened
the safety and stability of the electricity network.

In respect of Japan market, the solar energy is vigorously developed
as a result of the safety of nuclear station to be aroused again after the
earthquake and tsunami in 2011. Japan government promoted the Feed-
in Tariff (“FIT”) policy to stimulate the development of solar industry. Japan
government decreased the power generation price of over 10kW system
from originally 42 JPY per Watt to 37.8 JPY per Watt. The ratio of subsidy
is still relatively high when compared to other countries. In 2013, the
installation capacity of Japan was out of expectation. The solar market
of Japan had a vigorous growth in the last year, which created a giant
potential growth to the suppliers of solar energy in Japan.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & Extm Rk 24T

Market Overview (Continued)

For the USA market, solar energy has gradually become the mainstream
of energy usage. Solar Energy Industries Association in USA and GTM
Research released a report at the beginning of 2014, which indicated
that solar energy represented 29% of all of the newly added electricity
generation power in 2013. As at the end of 2013, there were generation
powers equal to 12GW photovoltaic solar system and 918MW centralized
solar system within USA. Those systems can supply electricity for
approximately 2,200,000 families in USA.

In relation to European market, the solar energy development is totally
different from Asia and USA. It still struggled in a hardship. Taken
Germany as an example, it was the largest solar market in 2012; however,
the solar energy cells installation capacity was deteriorated in 2013.
German Solar Industry Association (“BSW-Solar”) pointed out that it was
influenced by reducing level of the subsidies from Germany government
over the price decreasing of solar energy system. The installation of solar
energy plate just only increased by approximately 3.3GW, which did not
reach the half of the record high 7.6GW in 2012.

Operations Review

The Group is a leading supplier for the upstream and downstream of
vertical integrated approach in solar energy service in PRC. We not only
sell our products to upstream and midstream customers in photovoltaic
industry, but also directly sell to end-user customers. Therefore, each
photovoltaic products of the Company have external sales, such as
the manufacturing and sales of monocrystalline silicon rolls and wafers,
photovoltaic cells and photovoltaic modules, the design and installation
of photovoltaic system and the construction, operation and maintenance
of photovoltaic generation plants. The scope of its business covered the
whole industry chain of photovoltaic industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis S Extm R 24T

Operations Review (Continued)

Silicon Ingot Business

During the year, the Group maintained its original production capacity
of silicon ingots to further explore its technological advantage. As at 31
December 2013, the annual production capacity of silicon ingots reached
1.2GW.

The Group’s upstream and downstream vertical integration supply chain
allows external sales of upstream products such as silicon ingots, wafers
and cells, which helps to boost the income. The external shipment volume
of solar silicon ingots was 70.81MW, representing a 8.7% decrease as
compared to 77.59MW in last year. The decrease was mainly driven
by more silicon ingots internal sales to downstream business. We
have secured a leading position in the monocrystalline silicon solar
ingot manufacture industry in terms of technology, product quality and
quantity. The products of the Group are the only monocrystalline silicon
solar ingots in China for which national products exemption from quality
surveillance inspection has been granted. Major products are silicon
ingot of 5.5 inches to 8.7 inches in diameter. The photovoltaic conversion
efficiency of its monocrystalline silicon products is also higher than the
industry average. Apart from the traditional P-type products, the Group
also provides mass production of N-type high performance products
with a photovoltaic conversion efficiency of 22-23%. During the year,
the external shipment volume of N-type silicon ingots was approximately
61.85MW, represented approximately 87.3% of the total external
shipment volume of silicon ingots. N-type products are mainly targeted at
Japanese customers.

Wafer Business

As at 31 December 2013, an annual production capacity of wafers
reached 900MW. During the year, the external shipment volumes of
self-manufacturing and processing of silicon solar wafers of the Group
were 296.2MW, representing an increase of 21% in total compared
with 244. 7MW for the corresponding period last year. The increase
in exports volume was mainly driven by the gradual recovery for solar
energy industry from the oversupply situation. Except for supplying the
production required for downstream components of the Group, the
external shipment volume of silicon wafers was increased.
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Operations Review (continued)

Cell Business

During the year, the manufacturing base of the Group in Jinzhou is
equipped with production lines of solar cells having a production capacity
of 300MW. The demand of the production lines exceeded the supply,
which was mainly because more cells were supplied for the downstream
modules production of the Group. The external shipment volume of solar
cells was approximately 73.78MW, which decreased 19.1%, comparing
to the external shipment volume of 91.15MW of the same period last
year. The manufacturing of cells provides stable and high raw materials
supply for the modules business of the Group and enhances the overall
operation efficiency. Its external sales contributed a turnover for the
segment of RMB204.637 million, accounting for 9.7% of the Group’s
turnover. The customers come from Japan and China.

Module Business

The Group has expanded its solar modules production line by holding a
86% interest in Jinzhou Jinmao Photovoltaic Technology Company Co.,
Ltd. (“Jinzhou Jinmao”). The modules production base is currently located
in Jinzhou and the production capacity is increased from 150MW on 31
December 2012 to 400MW on 31 December 2013. During the year, the
external shipment volume of solar modules was approximately 288.0MW,
and the total volume increased 417.1% when compared with the external
shipment volume 55.69MW in the corresponding period of last year.

The breakthrough achieved by the module business of the Group in
2013. The Group and Sharp Corporation (“Sharp”) from Japan extended
to new area of business cooperation by building on their cooperation
foundation originally formed in 2012. During the 2013 financial year (based
on Japanese calendar), Sharp has agreed to purchase a new type of
product from the Group, summing up 370MW of solar module products.
Such cooperation enables the Group to become the largest supplier of
solar products in PRC. Having nearly a decade of purchase and sale
relationship, the Group has commenced its cooperation with Sharp
through the supply of silicon solar ingots to Sharp, afterwards gradually
extended to the areas of silicon solar wafers, solar cells and, starting
from 2013, the newly added solar module. Currently, we have been the
photovoltaic products, including silicon rolls, wafers, cells and modules,
supplier of the whole products chain of Sharp.
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Operations Review (Continued)

System Installation Business

The Group fully utilized the advantages of vertical integration, actively
expanding the business of end market, which increased the demand of
the products from downstream to upstream. DCH Solargiga, a subsidiary
in Germany which is held as to 70% by the Group, entered into a JV
agreement with Savannah Accelerated Development Authority (“SADA”) in
December 2018 to establish a joint venture company (the “JV Company”)
and to construct total 200MW the solar energy power plants project in
Ghana. Firstly, the JV Company will develop the first stage of 40MW solar
energy power plants project in Ghana. In addition, the Group obtained
20MW large-scale photovoltaic power plants project in Golmud, Qinghai
Province through Jinzhou Solargiga, which is held as to 70% by the
Group. This project is in operation. We expected that approximately 33
million kWh electricity can be generated per year. The project will enjoy
the photovoltaic power generation feed-in tariff policy of RMB1.15 per
kWh as set out by the National Development and Reform Commission.

Financial Review

Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the turnover of the Group was
RMB2,150.328 million, representing an increase of 115.7% compared
with the year ended 31 December 2012. During the year ended 31
December 2013, due to the gradual recovery for solar energy industry
from the oversupply situation, the increase in the external shipment
volume led to the increase in turnover. Moreover turnover for the
second half year ended 31 December 2013 increased by 62.6% to
RMB1,331.388 million compared to the turnover for the first half year
ended 30 June 2013 of RMB818.940 million.

Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2013, cost of sales increased by 55.3%
to RMB2,000.335 million from RMB1,288.220 million for the year ended
31 December 2012. Cost of sales represented 93.0% of total turnover,
a decrease of 36.2 percentage points compared to 2012. The decrease
in ratio was mainly due to less inventory provision made during the year
(2013: RMB21.114 million; 2012: RMB154.590 million).

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded a gross profit
of RMB149.993 million and a gross profit margin of 7.0%, as compared
to a gross loss of RMB291.384 million and a gross loss margin of 29.2%
for the year ended 31 December 2012. Moreover, the Group recorded
a gross profit of RMB131.402 million for the second half year ended 31
December 2013, which represented an increase in 606.8% compared to
the gross profit of RMB18.591 million for the first half year ended 30 June
2018.
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Financial Review (Continued)

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised freight charges
and marketing and promotional expenses. Selling and distribution
expenses decreased by 5.9% to RMB18.172 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 from RMB19.303 million for the year ended 31
December 2012, representing 0.8% of the total turnover of the Group
(2012: 1.9%)).

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprised staff costs and research and
development expenses. The administrative expenses for the year of 2013
amounted to RMB230.621 million, decreasing by 8.7% as compared to
RMB252.539 million in 2012, representing 10.7% of the turnover of the
Group.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group decreased from RMB110.967 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB107.265 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013. Finance costs represented mainly the interest
on bank loans, bonds and other loans. The decrease in finance costs was
due to the repayment of certain portion of long term loan during the 12
months ended 31 December 2013.

Income tax

Income tax credit was RMB8.998 million for the year ended 31 December
2013, while an income tax credit amounting to RMB23.538 million was
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2012. Income tax credit
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2013 was mainly due to the
reduction of Group’s deferred tax liabilities.

(Loss)/profit attributable to the equity shareholders

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded a loss
attributable to the equity shareholders of RMB135.504 million, which
represented a decrease of 89.4% compared to the loss attributable to
the equity shareholders of RMB1,276.554 million for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Inventory turnover days

The inventories of the Group comprised mainly raw materials, namely
polysilicon, crucibles and other auxiliary raw materials, and finished
goods. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the inventory turnover
days of the Group were 79 days (2012: 111 days), a decrease of 32 days
from the corresponding period in 2012. The optimal inventory levels of the
Group should be sufficient for approximately three months’ consumption
in the case of polysilicon and one month consumption for other auxiliary
raw materials.
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Financial Review (Continued)

Trade receivable turnover days

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the trade receivable turnover
days of the Group was 56 days (2012: 84 days). The decrease in trade
receivable turnover days was due to the shortening of credit terms to
customers during the year. Generally, the Group allows a credit period of
30 to 90 days for its customers.

Trade payable turnover days

The Group maintained a similar payment term with suppliers during
the year ended 31 December 2013 compared to the year ended 31
December 2012. Accordingly, trade payable turnover days during the
year ended 31 December 2013 was 67 days (2012: 72 days).

Liquidity and financial resources

The principal sources of working capital of the Group during the year were
cash flows from bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2013, the current
ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 0.74 (31
December 2012: 0.79). The Group had net borrowings of RMB1,564.092
million as at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012: RMB1,476.838
million), including cash at banks and on hand of RMB234.398 million
(81 December 2012: RMB153.793 million), pledged bank deposits of
RMB206.910 million (31 December 2012: RMB174.234 million), bank
loans due within one year of RMB1,114.482 million (31 December 2012:
RMB1,018.985 million), non-current bank and other loans of RMB591.718
million (831 December 2012: RMB487.3 million) and corporate bonds of
RMB299.200 million (31 December 2012: RMB298.600 million). The net
debt to equity ratio (net debt divided by total equity) was 126.3% (31
December 2012: 140.5%).

Contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees issued

At 31 December 2013, the Group has undertaken to guarantee a banking
facility granted to an associate to the extent of RMB74,000,000 (2012:
RMBNIl).

At the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under the above
guarantee. The maximum liability of the Group at the end of the reporting
period under the guarantees issued is the outstanding amount of the
loan advanced by the banks to the associate of RMB74,000,000 (31
December 2012: RMBNIl).
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Financial Review (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases and cash and bank deposits that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency, Renminbi, of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
the US Dollar, Euro, Hong Kong Dollar and Japanese yen. The Directors
do not expect any significant impact from the change in exchange rates
since the Group uses foreign currencies received from customers to settle
the amounts due to suppliers. In addition, the Directors ensure that the
net exposure is kept at an acceptable level by purchasing or selling the
US Dollar and Euro at spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

Human resources
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 3,269 (31 December 2012:
3,635) employees.

Future Prospects and Strategies

Benefiting from the national supporting policies, recently there are various
advantages for the photovoltaic industry within our nation. The State
Council announced “No. 24 Opinions of the State Council on Promoting
the Healthy Development of Photovoltaic Industry (2013)”, which is the
programmatic document of photovoltaic industry, in July 2013. The new
policy suggested that the total installation capacity of photovoltaic power
generation target of PRC in 2015 should reach 35GW or above. The plan
was out of the expectation for the market. We believed that it helps the
photovoltaic industry in PRC overcome the hardships for over-supply of
production capacity and the insufficient development in national market.

For the effective inhibition for the blind expansion of photovoltaic industry,
the document suggested various regulations for new photovoltaic
production project, including the monocrystalline silicon cell conversion
efficiency should be over 20%, multicrystalline silicon cell conversion
efficiency should be over 18%, etc. The document demonstrated that
the government hopes to use the mechanism of “Market Push Back” to
urge the elimination of laggards, which speeds up the integration of the
industry. After the industrial consolidation, we expected that a leading
enterprise, which has core competitiveness, will be created. For the
enterprises actively expanding in the emerging market and promoting
internationalization, it may realize a health development in solar energy
industry.
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Future Prospects and Strategies (continueq)
Meanwhile, for encouraging generating power by using solar energy,
“Notice relating to VAT policy of photovoltaic power generation (B8R}
RIS EHRBEENBEA)” was issued by the Ministry of Finance of the
PRC. From 1 October 2013 to 31 December 2015, the policy of 50%
immediate refund of VAT is implemented for sales of the self solar energy
produced electricity products to taxpayers.

Based on the aforesaid policies, the recovery of industry visibility is
crystal clear and at the same time significantly increased the demand of
photovoltaic market, which the capacity of the market will be enlarged. As
a leading supplier for the upstream and downstream of vertical integrated
approach in solar energy service in PRC, the Group will expand each of
the production chains of the Company to consolidate the advantages of
upstream business and expand the downstream business. The Group
will seek for suitable companies for acquisition, including the project
development companies of electricity generation power system and EPC
companies. It can reinforce the synergic effect between businesses of the
Group, strengthen the advantages of vertical integrated of the Group, fully
utilize the current German design and crafts of the Group, the quality of
products recognized by the Japanese market and the cost advantages of
China production so as to enhance the market shares of each business
of the Group.

Meanwhile, the Group will also increase the cooperation with the
customers. It is because the Group has upstream and downstream
of vertical integrated of each sections in production and sales ability.
Also, the Group can detect the market environment change sensitively
in the early stage and provide better applied development services to
our customers in each section. The Group builds up a good relationship
with customers through providing high quality products and applied
development services, which further broaden the cooperation network
with the photovoltaic industry of the Group. Also, we will consolidate the
leading position of the Group within the industry by impelling the mutual
development between the Group and its customers.
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Corporate Governance Report
TtEERBE

Overview

The Board strived to uphold good corporate governance and adopted
sound corporate governance practices. This report outlines the principles
and the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”), as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) which have been adopted by the Group.

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Code to oversee the financial
reporting procedures and internal controls of the Group so as to ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Company has also established a
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and a remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) (collectively, the “Board
Committees”) with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees have been posted on the websites of Stock
Exchange and the Company since March 2012.

The Group has implemented a compliance manual which covers areas
such as ongoing compliance obligations of the Company and the
Directors, business operations of the Group, financial management
systems, human resources management systems, internal control
systems, quality assurance and property management systems. In the
opinion of the Board, all the code provisions set out in the Code were met
by the Company throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions entered
into by Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all the
Directors and all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2013.
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The Board of Directors

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Company, including the formulation and approval of overall business
strategies, internal control and risk management systems, and monitoring
the performance of the senior management. The Directors have the
responsibility to act objectively in the interests of the Company. The
Directors also assume the following responsibilities for corporate
governance as set out in code provision D3.1 of the Code:

(@) to develop and review an issuer’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

(e) to review the issuer’'s compliance with the code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including four executive
Directors: Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman), Mr. HSU You Yuan (Chief
Executive Officer), Mr. TAN Xin and Mr. WANG Chunwei (Chief Financial
Officer), and four independent non-executive Directors: Mr. WONG Wing
Kuen, Albert, Ms. FU Shuangye, Dr. LIN Wen and Mr. ZHANG Chun. The
names and biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 32
to 36 of the annual report. The Board has a strong independent element
in its composition with over half of the board members being non-
executive Directors to ensure that all decisions of the Board are made in
the best interest of the Group’s long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board

Committees. Further details of these committees are set out below on
pages 26 to 28.
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Board Meetings

The Company holds Board meetings regularly, at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also be convened
if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and
financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board meeting will be
sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular Board meeting.
Reasonable notices will be given to the Directors for ad-hoc Board
meetings. Directors may participate either in person or through electronic
means of communications. The Company will provide relevant materials
to all the Directors relating to the matters brought before the meetings. All
the Directors will be provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses. All Directors will have the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, 10 Board meetings and
1 Shareholders meeting were held and the attendance of individual
Directors at these meetings is set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

Board Shareholders
Name of Directors meetings meetings
Executive Directors
Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman) 10/10 1/1
Mr. HSU You Yuan 10/10 1/1
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TAN Xin 10/10 0/1
Mr. WANG Chunwei (appointed *5/5 1/1
with effect from 27 June 2013)
Ms. ZHANG Liming (retired with 2/10 0/1
effect from 27 June 2013)
Non-executive Director
Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai (resigned with 2/10 0/1
effect from 1 June 2013)
Independent non-executive
Directors
Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 10/10 11
Ms. FU Shuangye 9/10 0/1
Dr. LIN Wen 9/10 0/1
Mr. ZHANG Chun 8/10 0/1
* Five Board meetings were held after Mr. Wang Chunwei was appointed as an

executive Director on 27 June 2013.
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Independent non-executive Directors

All independent non-executive Directors possess a wealth of professional
and industry expertise and management experience and have provided
their professional advices to the Board. They have played a significant role
in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment and their views carry
significant weight in the Board’s decision. In particular, they bring impartial
views to the Board on issues of the Company’s strategy, performance
and control. The Board also considers that independent non-executive
Directors provide independent advice on the Company’s business
strategy, results and management so that all interests of shareholders
are taken into consideration, and the interests of the Company and
its shareholders are taken into account in all business decisions. The
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of Mr. HSU You Yuan and Mr. WANG Chunwei has been appointed
as an executive Director for a specific term of three years commencing
from 27 June 2013, and Mr. TAN Wenhua has been appointed as an
executive Director for a specific term of three years commencing from 30
June 2011. Mr. Tan Xin has been appointed as an executive director for a
specific term of three years commencing from 28 June 2012. Such terms
are subject to re-appointment by the Company at an annual general
meeting upon retirement.

Mr. ZHANG Chun has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director for a specific term of three years commencing form 26 June
2013, and each of Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert, Ms. FU Shuangye
and Dr. LIN Wen has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director for a specific term of three years commencing from 28 June
2012. Such terms are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. TAN Wenhua, Mr. TAN Xin, and Dr. LIN Wen will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, have agreed
to offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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Training and Professional Development

All Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors have been
given relevant guideline materials to ensure that they are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in
relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and
skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

All Directors had provided a record of training they received during the
year to the Company. According to the training records provided by the
Directors, the trainings attended by them during the reporting period is
summarised as follows:

Trainings on corporate
governance and

Directors regulatory development
Executive Directors
Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman)
Mr. HSU You Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. TAN Xin
Mr. WANG Chunwei

RS N

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert

Ms. FU Shuangye

Dr. LIN Wen

Mr. ZHANG Chun

RS N

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The role of the Chairman was
performed by Mr. TAN Wenhua. Mr. TAN Wenhua is an executive Director
who is responsible for the management of the Board and he also involves
in the day-to-day management of the Group’s business.

The role of CEO is performed by Mr. HSU You Yuan. The overall
management of the Company was performed by the CEO, executive
Directors and senior management of the Company. The executive
Directors (Mr. HSU You Yuan, Mr. TAN Wenhua, Mr. TAN Xin and Mr.
WANG Chunwei) who have extensive experience in the solar energy
industry and their respective areas of profession, spearhead the Group’s
overall development and business strategies.
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Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a resolution
of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant to Rules 3.21 to
3.23 of and Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee include overseeing the financial reporting processes
and internal control procedures of the Group, reviewing the financial
information of the Group and considering issues relating to the external
auditor. Currently, the Audit Committee consists of four independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman),
Ms. FU Shuangye, Dr. LIN Wen and Mr. ZHANG Chun.

In 2013, the Audit Committee met 2 times and the attendance of
individual Directors at these meetings is set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Name of Directors meetings
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman) 2/2

Ms. FU Shuangye 2/2

Dr. LIN Wen 2/2

Mr. ZHANG Chun 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s interim financial report
for the six months ended 30 June 2013 and annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and has also
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters with
the management. The Audit Committee also monitored the Company’s
progress in implementing the Code as required under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant to Rules
3.25 to 3.27 of and Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s structure for remuneration of Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration. Currently, the
Remuneration Committee consists of five members; four of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. FU Shuangye
(Chairman), Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert, Dr. LIN Wen and Mr. ZHANG
Chun, and one is an executive Director, namely, Mr. TAN Wenhua.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

In 2013, the Remuneration Committee met once and the attendance of
individual Directors at the meeting is set out below:

Attendance/
Number of
Name of Directors meetings
Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. FU Shuangye (Chairman) 1/1
Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 11
Dr. LIN Wen 1/1
Mr. ZHANG Chun 1/1
Executive Director
Mr. TAN Wenhua 1/1

The Remuneration Committee has made recommendations to the Board
regarding the remuneration policy of the Company. In addition, it has
also reviewed and approved management’s remuneration proposal
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board,
and ensured that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant to
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for recruiting Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of formal and transparent
procedures for nomination procedures and process and criteria adopted
by the Nomination Committee to select and recommend candidates
for directorship and senior management. Currently, the Nomination
Committee consists of five members; four of whom are independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Dr. LIN Wen (Chairman), Mr. WONG Wing
Kuen, Albert, Ms. FU Shuangye and Mr. ZHANG Chun, and one is an
executive Director, namely, Mr. HSU You Yuan.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

In 2013, the Nomination Committee met once and the attendance of
individual Directors at the meeting is set out below:

Name of Directors Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. LIN Wen (Chairman) 11
Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 1/1
Ms. FU Shuangye 1/1
Mr. ZHANG Chun 11
Executive Director

Mr. HSU You Yuan 11

The Nomination Committee has discussed matters relating to the
appointment of senior management members during the year. The
Nomination Committee also considered and resolved that all the existing
Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the Company.

Financial Reporting and Internal Control

Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Chief Financial Officer and the Finance
Department of the Company, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group. In the preparation
of financial statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
have been adopted and the appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently used and applied. The Board aims to present a clear and
balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the annual and
interim reports to the shareholders, and make appropriate disclosure and
announcements in a timely manner.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The performance and remuneration of the external auditors of the
Company KPMG, have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. During
the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees paid and payable to KPMG
and other external auditors in respect of audit services amounted to
approximately RMB2,972,000 (2012: RMB2,075,000). In addition,
approximately RMB499,000 (2012: RMB2,285,000) was charged for
other non-audit services.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control (continued)
Internal control

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Company conducted regular review to
monitor the Company’s internal management and operation during the
year. Procedures have been designed to ensure maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, ensure compliance of applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

In order to fulfil their fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence,
the Directors will constantly seek advice and assistance from the
Company’s internal legal team and if necessary, seek advice from external
legal advisors in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Company also adopted
internal control procedures relating to, among others, signing authority
and procedures since February 2007. The Company has an Audit and
Legal Department consisting 3 members with extensive experience in the
legal field. The main duties of the Audit and Legal department include:

° providing legal advice on major business decisions
° reviewing and drafting legal documents

° handling legal disputes

. advising on legal issues related to daily operations
o conducting internal training for compliance matters

Directors’ responsibility on the financial statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013, which were prepared
in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company KPMG
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 64 to 65.

Going concern

Other than the events stated in note 1(b) to the Financial Statements on
pages 74 to 76, there are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control (continued)
Investors Relations

The Company places strong emphasis on its communications
with investors, and considers that maintaining on-going and open
communications with investors can promote investors’ understanding of
and confidence in the Company. The Company disclosed all necessary
information to the Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules and
met with media, securities analysts, fund managers and investors on a
regular basis to respond to their enquiries so as to provide them with a
clearer picture of the Company’s achievements in business management
and other aspects.

The general meeting of the Company is also an effective communication
channel between the Board and Shareholders. The Company will meet
with the Shareholders and respond to their enquiries in the general
meetings. The Chairman attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 26 June 2018.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
(“EGM")

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2011
Revision) or the articles of association of the Company. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post or by facsimile,
together with his/her contact details, such as postal address, email or fax,
addressing to the head office of the Company at the following address or
facsimile number:

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited
Room 1402, Harbour Centre

25 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Attention to: Company Secretary

Fax: 8562 3416 2111

Changes to Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these
documents are published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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EENSHREBEAERE

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua (B3 %), aged 57, an executive Director and the Chairman
of the Board. He was one of the founders of the Jinzhou Plants. He was
conferred various honours including the Model for the Labour of the Building
Materials Systems of the Nation, the medal of “May 1st” Labour of Liaoning
Province, the Builders Merit award of Liaoning Province, the Outstanding
Member of the China Communist Party, the Outstanding Entrepreneur of
the Building Materials Industry of the Nation, the Venture Entrepreneur of the
Liaoning Province and First Prize Entrepreneur of Jinzhou. He is also a guest
professor of Liaoning University of Technology and Vice President of Bohai
University. Prior to the founding of Jinzhou Plants, he was the Chairman of §%
MNFTER R (£E) BREEAF (Jinzhou Xinhua Quartz Glass (Group)
Co., Ltd.*) and the Director of #8)1—F A&k (Jinzhou 155 Factory*), a state-
owned factory engaging in quartz crucibles manufacturing. He has been
granted a special subsidy by the State Council in 2004 for his contribution in
engineering technology. He was elected as a delegate of the 11th National
People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China in 2008. He is the
father of Mr. Tan Xin, the executive Director of the Company and General
Manager of the Company.

Mr. HSU You Yuan (FF#5M5E4E), aged 59, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the Group on 6 February
2007 and was appointed an executive Director on the same date. He
graduated with a master degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
Culture University in 1980. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HSU was the
Managing Director of Wafer Works Corp. (“WWX”) from February 1998 to
June 2003 and later became the Vice-Chairman of the board of WWX in
June 2003. WWX is a manufacturer of silicon wafer for the semiconductor
industry and is listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market in Taiwan since May
2002. He was the managing director of Silicon Technology Investment
(Cayman) Corp. and was appointed the Chief Executive Officer of Solar
Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp., responsible for overseeing, amongst
others, WWX’s investment in the solar energy industry. In March 2006,
he was appointed a director and he was subsequently appointed as the
Chairman of the board of Jinzhou Youhua in September 2006. Mr. HSU'’s
previous work credentials also include acting as Deputy General Manager of
Mosel Vitelic Inc., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and as
a member of the board of directors and Executive Vice-President of Mosel
Vitelic (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of Mosel Vitelic Inc. Mr. HSU had
also made contributions to non-commercial sectors in the past. He served
as a researcher, a deputy director, and the director of Business Department
of the Executive Yuan Development Fund of Taiwan (Note: Executive Yuan
Development Fund is now known as National Development Fund, Executive
Yuan). He was also a lecturer of Statistics and Managerial Mathematics for
the Business Administration department at the Chinese Culture University.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. TAN Xin (2%%), aged 30, is an executive Director and the General
Manager of the Company. He joined the Group in July 2005. He holds
a bachelor’s degree of Marketing from the Macau University of Science
and Technology, and a master’s degree of Business Administration from
University of East Anglia, the U.K. Mr. Tan is also a Standing Committee
member of the Liaoning Province Youth Federation (B4 FFEH A € B
ZE&p8), Vice President of the Liaoning Province Young Entrepreneurs
Association (BEEEFFLERHBEEIEK) and Member of the 12th
Jonghou Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (8T E+—EKIHZ E). Mr. Tan was awarded Year 2011
Meritorious Entrepreneur (20114 E I E){> %K) by Jinzhou Municipal
Government. Before taking the role of the General Manager, Mr. Tan also
worked in other subsidiaries within the Group and accumulated plenty of
experiences from his prior positions. He is the son of Mr. TAN Wenhua who is
an executive Director and the Chairman of the Company.

Mr. WANG Chunwei (£ 1{&), aged 42, is an executive Director and the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company. He joined the Company on 1 January 2007
and was the Company’s deputy general manager of China region, who was
responsible for the accounting and finance matter of the Group. He obtained
a Master of Business Administration from the State University of New Jersey
(Rutgers). He is a certified public accountant in Maryland, the United States.
He is currently a director of Cayman Tung Ling Co., Limited, a company
listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market in Taiwan. Prior to joining the Group,
he was a Special Assistant to President & Deputy Spokesman of The Office
of General Manager of WWX, the Spokesman and Chief Financial Officer
of Panram International Corp., a company listed on the Gre Tai Securities
Market in Taiwan.

Ms. ZHANG Liming (sREERB), aged 56, was an Executive Director and
retired with effect from 27 June 2013. She joined the Original Group
(i.e. the Group prior to the acquisition of Solar Technology Investment
(Cayman) Corp. and its subsidiaries on 1 April 2003) responsible for
overseeing, amongst others, the administration of the Original Group.
She is also the chairman of the labour union of the Jinzhou Plants. She
graduated from the Faculty of Economic Management of the Party School
of the CPC Central Committee in 1996. Prior to joining the Group, she
was appointed as the head of the supply division of $8/M 5 ZE Ik FE (& 22 R
(Jinzhou Quartz Glass Instrument Factory®), the director of management
of $2MTEREMBEEFRE(E2A T (Jinzhou Crystalline Material Co.,
Ltd.*) during 1993 to 1994 and the general manager of $8M#ERA/K ST
SBRBFMR AT (Jinzhou Huaming Crystal Art & Craft Co., Limited*) during
1994 to 2003.
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Directors (continued)

Non-executive Director

Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai (£ 75), aged 63, was a Non-executive Director and
resigned with effect from 1 June 2013. He was appointed a non-executive
Director in July 2007. He graduated from the Chung Yuen University
with a bachelor degree in Chemical Engineering and master degree in
Chemistry from the University of California, San Jose in 1973 and 1978,
respectively. He is the Chairman and General Manager of WWX and the
President of Helitek Company Ltd., a subsidiary of WWX.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (£ k), aged 62, was appointed an
Independent non-executive Director on 12 January 2008. Mr. Wong
is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries,
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, Chartered Institute for Securities
and Investments, Chartered Management Institute, UK, Association of
International Accountants, Society of Registered Financial Planners, Hong
Kong, The Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Ireland, UK, as well
as a member of Hong Kong Securities Institute, The Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators, Macau Society of Certified Practising Accountants and
an associate member of The Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland,
UK. Mr. WONG had also been a director and Chief Executive Officer of
Minghua Group International Holdings Limited, a listed public company
in the United States, until 30th September 2004. According to the filings
made available to public through the EDGAR database in U.S., for the
quarterly period ended 30 September 2005, Minghua Group International
Holdings Limited was “a small business issuer” and “a development
stage company”. Mr. WONG has been the Managing Director of KND
Corporate Advisory Service Limited, a private professional consulting
firm in Hong Kong, an independent non-executive director of APAC
Resources Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, since July 2004; an independent non-executive
director of Rare Earths Global Limited, a company listed on the London
Stock Exchange — AIM Market, since March 2012; and an independent
non-executive director of Tonic Industries Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, June 2012.

Ms. FU Shuangye (&%), aged 45, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director on 12 January 2008. Ms. FU graduated from
Wuhan University with a bachelor degree in English Literature in 1990 and
obtained her further legal studies certificate in the Law School of China
Politics and Law University in 1997. She was qualified as a PRC lawyer in
1998. She was a partner of Zhong Lun W&D Law Firm in Beijing. Ms. FU
is now the Managing Partner of Zhong Hao Attorneys-at-Law. She is also
a member of the Foreign Direct Investment Expertise Committee of the
Beijing Judiciary Bureau.
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. LIN Wen (#£X), aged 74, an independent non-executive Director,
joined the Group on 12 January 2008. Dr. LIN received his Ph.D. degrees
in Materials Science & Engineering. He joined AT&T Bell Laboratories
(subsequently, Lucent Bell Labs/Agere) and engaged in the research and
development of silicon semiconductor materials in 1975. Dr. LIN is the
author of over 60 papers and book chapters published by internationally
recognised science magazines, including Czochralski process of silicon
crystals and the application and manufacturing of silicon crystals in
semiconductors. Czochralski process is the key process employed by the
Group in the manufacturing of monocrystalline silicon ingots. He owns
several patents. Dr. LIN was a recipient of the 1983 Bell Laboratories
Distinguished Technical Staff Award. Since 1999, Dr. LIN has been a
member of the Starting Materials Team of ITRS (International Technology
Roadmap of Semiconductor). Dr. LIN is a member of Phi Tau Phi Honor
Societies and was served as its Chairman. Dr. LIN is a life member of
the Chinese Institute of Engineers-USA, and he served as its president
in 1987 and National Council Chairman in 1995. In addition, Dr. LIN
also served as Chairman of METS (Modern Engineering and Technology
Seminars), as well as Chairman of Sino-American Technology and
Engineering Conference.

Mr. ZHANG Chun (3&#5), aged 81, an independent non-executive
Director, joined the Group on 12 January 2008. Mr. ZHANG graduated
from Tianjin University in 1955 and conducted research on semiconductor
silicon material in 3t REB&BHI 47 (Beijing Non-Ferrous Metal
Research Institution®) in the same year. During 1965 to 1979, he was
involved in the establishment of the semi-conductor materials factory
in Emei and the monocrystalline silicon factory in Luoyang and their
production and technological management. During 1979 to 1998, he
was the supervisor of a semi-conductor material research unit of Beijing
NonFerrous Metal Research Institution, the supervisor of the BIZ
mea iRl TIRR 9SO (State Semi-conductor Material Engineering
Research Centre*) and he also acted as the general manager of & &4
EEEP R AR AT (Jinxin Semi-conductor Material Company Limited®).
The (a) project on 3 to 4 inches monocrystalline silicon for the use in
integrated circuit and (b) the research project on the manufacture of
1256mm monocrystalline silicon wafer for the use in 2 to 3um integrated
circuit organized and led by Mr. ZHANG received RlIER i £ — 548
(the Science and Technology Progress First Prize*) by the China National
Non-Ferrous Metals Industry Corp. Mr. ZHANG was granted a special
subsidy of government from the State Council since 1992, was awarded
the title of Supreme Model for the Labour of the Non-ferrous Metals
Industry of the Nation in 1993 and was awarded as a 2[4t TE#&
(National Pioneer*) by the State Council in 1995.
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

The Directors’ interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) are set out in the section headed “Interest and
Short Positions of the Directors and the Chief Executives of the Company
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations” in this annual report. Each Director has been
appointed for a term of three years. The Directors’ emoluments, the basis
of determining the same (including any bonus payments, whether fixed or
discretionary in nature, irrespective of whether the Director has or does
not have a service contract) and the Directors’ fees are set out in note 11
to the Financial Statements and the section headed and “Report of the
Directors — Emolument Policy” of this annual report. Save as disclosed
above, each Director confirmed that there are no other matters that need
to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company and
there is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Senior Management

Mr. Yeung Wai On, (#{&%), aged 28, was appointed as the Company
Secretary in October 2013. He joined the Company since January 2012
and was the Company’s finance manager. He obtained a Bachelor
of Business Administration (Honours) in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong and he is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Yeung
worked in an international accounting firm and accumulated over 3 years
of accounting and auditing experience.

Ms. CHEUNG Lai Lai (5RE®E), aged 42, was the Company Secretary
of the Company and resigned with effect from 8 October 2013. She
holds a bachelor’s degree of Arts (Hons) in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong, and she is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a practising member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a certified tax adviser
of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Ms. Cheung is currently the
Managing Principal of MCL & Co. CPA (Practising). She has over 20 years
of experience in auditing, finance, accounting and company secretarial
services.
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Senior Management (continued)

Mr. DU Fusheng (t£#8%4), aged 69, is the Technology Research and
Development Consultant (full-time) of the Company. He joined the Group
on 6 August 2008. He graduated from Tsinghua University majoring in
semiconductor materials. He is a senior engineer of research level. Prior to
joining the Group, he was a researcher and professor of FEE T RH &%
&+ )\H#ZTFT (Eighteen Institute of China Electronic Technology Group*),
and a technical consultant in JT & Z AR5 aRHE AR A F (Jiangsu Aide
Solar Energy Technology Co., Ltd.*). He has been engaged in research
and development of solar cells for use of semiconductor for nearly 40
years. He has his own unique theories and empirical analysis in solar cells
and loss from encapsulation of modules, which significantly contributed to
improvement in cell conversion rate and capacity testing technology. He
successfully applied the solar cells into several satellites launched by the
PRC, and made major contribution to the development of solar cells for use
of semiconductor and the science of aerospace in the PRC.

Mr. Joe CHOU (75 X), aged 54, is the Quality Management Consultant
(full-time) of the Company. He joined the Group on 3 February 2009. He
holds a bachelor’s degree of Chemical Engineering from the Chung Yuen
Christian University, Taiwan, a master’s degree of Business Administration
from City University of Seattle, and an Executive Masters of Business
Administration degree from National Taiwan University. Prior to joining the
Group, he was appointed as Director of Quality Assurance Department of
WWX. He has over 24 year of experience in semiconductor industry and
has over 21 year of experience in quality assurance.

Dr. CHEN Wei (B &Y), aged 42, Special Assistant to the Chairman and
Overseas Sales Representative. She joined the Group in July 2006. She
obtained her Doctor of Philosophy in Management at Wuhan University
of Technology (&£ T K22 in 2005. Prior to joining the Group, she
was appointed Vice-President of Xi’an International Trade Promotion Co.
Ltd. (AR TIMEEgT&REE A7) and the Vice-President of International
Transport Division of Shaanxi Machinery & Equipment Import & Export
Corp. (PRE#M R L 0 A RIBIREES A A).

Mr. CHEN Zhijun (BRZEE 5t 4), aged 32, the general manager of business
department of the Group. He graduated from Wuhan University of
Technology with a master degree in material physics and chemistry in
2008. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. CHEN was the process supervisor
of Changzhou Trina Solar Energy Co., Ltd. (/M X & K eEBR A A)
(“Changzhou Trina”) from April 2008 to April 2011 and later became the
senior engineer of Suzhou GCL Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd. (&N
HEHARBHE AR A F) from April 2011 to October 2013. He has been
served as the general manager of Chipping business department since
October 2013.
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Senior Management (continued)

Mr. WANG Lixin (E£3Z%7), aged 46, the general manager of Business
Department of the Group. He graduated from the Party School of
Liaoning Province in 2000. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. WANG was the
Chief Engineer of Jinzhou Thermal Power Corporation ($ /M Z & 481\ 7])
from April 1990 to May 2008. He joined the Group as the head of Cell
Chips Business Department and Equipment Department in 2008 and later
became the plant head of Cell Chips Business Department since 2012
and the general manager of Cell Chips Business Department since 2014.

Mr. SONG Rulai (&R Z12R), aged 41, the general manager of Business
Department of the Group. He graduated from The Northeast Heavy
Machinery Institute (8R4t Z B ELPT) with a bachelor’s degree in heat
processing and quality engineer black belt certification in 1997. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. SONG served as the inspector of Changzhou
Lithium Bromide Central Air-Conditioning Plant (& Rt 8 g z= 5
) from July 1997 to July 2000 and later became the chief-in-charge of
Changzhou Science Research Machinery Company Limited (% N ERF#E
T#m AR F) from July 2000 to July 2005. He served as the manager
of Changzhou Trina Solar Company Limited (X & X EEEFRA 7)) from
2005 to 2008 and the quality director and vice president of technology of
Chengdu Tianwei New Energy Co., Ltd. (B &K B FEEREA R A F) from
2009 to August 2011. He joined the Group and has been served as the
general manager of Modules Business Department since August 2011.

Mr. BAI Yan (H2%), aged 59, the general manager of Business
Department of the Group. He graduated from Liaoning Radio and TV
University GREZEH AE) in 1984 and was awarded the qualification of
electrical engineer. Mr. BAI served as chief engineer of Wintek Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. (343 Z =M B AR A 7)) from 2007 and later became
the deputy general manager of Wintek Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. in
2012. He was appointed as the general manager of System Engineering
Business Department after the acquisition of Wintek Silicon Materials
Co., Ltd. by the Group in 2014.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHREFE

The Directors present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company of the Group. The
principal activities of the Group are the trading of, manufacturing of and
provision of processing services for polysilicon and monocrystalline silicon
solar ingots/wafers, and the producing of and trading of photovoltaic cells
and modules, the installation of photovoltaic systems and the operating
of photovoltaic power plants. The analysis of the principal activities and
geographical locations of the operations of the subsidiaries during the
financial year are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s top five customers are mainly silicon solar wafer, cell or
modules manufacturers or traders. In aggregate, the largest and five
largest customers did not exceed 71% (2012: 13%) and 85% (2012:
56%) of the Group’s total sales in 2013 respectively.

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012
was Sharp Corporation (“Sharp”), the world’s leading solar photovoltaic
enterprise. The Company has a well-established supply and sales
relationship with Sharp for almost 10 years, from initial cooperation by the
Company to supply solar ingots, and then gradually expanding to solar
wafers and solar cells. From 2013 onwards, the Company has added a
solar module supply deal to its solid relationship with Sharp. Compared
to last year, the range of products the Company now sells to Sharp has
expanded rapidly, to include not only ingots, wafers and cells but also
solar modules. The Company has not only become Sharp’s photovoltaic
industry whole chain products supplier, but is also the largest supplier in
the PRC for Sharp.

The Group currently procures raw materials from about 139 suppliers
(2012: 69). In aggregate, purchases from its largest and five largest
suppliers did not exceed 13% (2012: 16%) and 42% (2012: 46%) of the
Group’s total purchases in 2013 respectively. Save for WWX, at no time
during the year have the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
suppliers and/or customers.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 66 to 168. The Directors do
not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.
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Transfer to Reserves

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2013 was RMB135,504,000 (2012: loss of
RMB1,276,554,000) had been transferred to reserves. Other movements
in reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 71.

As at 31 December 2013, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB1,146,356,000 (2012: RMB951,342,000).

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMB380,000 (2012: RMB674,000).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2013 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Five-year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of the annual report.

Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua, Chairman

Mr. HSU You Yuan, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. TAN Xin

Mr. WANG Chunwei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert

Ms. FU Shuangye

Dr. LIN Wen

Mr. ZHANG Chun
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Report of the Directors EE&WREE

Directors (continued)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. TAN Wenhua, Mr. TAN Xin, and Dr. LIN Wen will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, have agreed
to offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service agreement with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group has entered into a number of agreements with certain parties
which are regarded as connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the Company’s continuing connected transactions,
details of which are set out below.

A. Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
The following transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules
and would be exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements but are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 and the annual
review requirements set out in Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 of the Listing
Rules:

Provision of water and heat services by FEMZELL Y2 EIEH R
723 7] (Jinzhou Huarong Property Management Company Limited”)
(“Jinzhou Huarong”)

On 2 December 2009, Jinzhou Huarong entered into a framework
service agreement with the Company pursuant to which Jinzhou
Huarong agreed to provide water and heat (the “Services”) to the
Company and its subsidiaries designated by it from time to time.
The agreement commenced on 1 January 2010 and expired on 31
December 2012.

On 19 October 2012, the Company has entered into a new service
agreement (the “New Service Agreement”) with Jinzhou Huarong to
renew the pre-existing agreement as well as to determine the annual
cap for the transactions for the years ending 31 December 2015.
The term of the New Service Agreement commenced on 1 January
20183 and will expire on 31 December 2015.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

42

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Provision of water and heat services by fEM 2452 &1 5 R
23 |] (Jinzhou Huarong Property Management Company Limited”)
(“Jinzhou Huarong”) (continued)

The New Service Agreement was entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business and on normal commercial terms. The
fees to be charged by Jinzhou Huarong in relation to the Services
were determined comparable to the prevailing market prices in local
markets in the PRC based on the actual consumption of the water
and heat supplied to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate fees paid by
the Group to Jinzhou Huarong in relation to the Services amounted
to approximately RMB1,856,000 (2012: RMB1,741,000).

Based on an estimate of the Group’s expected consumption of
water and heat for the two years ending 31 December 2015, it is
expected that the following annual cap amounts payable by the
Group under the New Service Agreement will not exceed:

(@ RMB2,479,000 for the year ending 31 December 2014; and

(b) RMB2,603,000 for the year ending 31 December 2015.

The above annual cap amounts are determined with reference to
(i) the expected increase in the Group’s production capacity for
the two years ending 31 December 2015; (ii) the increase in the
expected consumption of water and heat in the production process
resulting therefrom; (jii) the expected utilisation rate of the Group’s
production capacity for the two years ending 31 December 2015;
and (iv) the expected inflation rate in the PRC for 2013.

To the best of the Director’s knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
Jinzhou Huarong is owned as to 90% by £ /M 87 5L 41 ) 48 & &R
(Jinzhou Huaxin Silicon Material Trading Department) (“Huaxin
Silicon”), a sole proprietorship established in the PRC and wholly-
owned by Mr. TAN Wenhua, an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company and as to 10% by an independent third
party. Jinzhou Huarong is an associate of Mr. TAN Wenhua and
hence a connected person of the Company. As the applicable ratios
in respect of the annual caps of these transactions are less than
5%, the transactions under the New Service Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Rule
14A.34 of the Listing Rules and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement but are subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47
and the annual review requirements set out in Rules 14A.37 to
14A.40 of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors EE&WREE

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Sale of wire slurry to Jinzhou Jixing New Materials Co., (“Jinzhou
Jixing”) and purchase of recycled abrasives and mineral oil from
Jinzhou Jixing

On 17 April 2009, the Company entered into a framework agreement
with Jinzhou Jixing (the “Jinzhou Jixing Agreement”) pursuant to
which (a) the Company agreed to sell, or procure its subsidiaries
to sell and Jinzhou Jixing agreed to purchase, or procure its
subsidiaries to purchase, wire slurry (the “Sale Transactions”); and
(b) Jinzhou Jixing agreed to sell, or procure its subsidiaries to sell,
and the Company agreed to purchase, or procure its subsidiaries
to purchase, recycled abrasives and mineral oil which serve as the
Group’s materials for the slicing of silicon solar ingots into silicon
solar wafers (the “Purchase Transactions”).

The Company obtained the approval from its independent
shareholders on 12 June 2009. Upon approval, the Jinzhou Jixing
Agreement commenced on 17 April 2009 and has expired on 31
December 2011.

On 19 December 2011, the Company has entered into a new
framework agreement (the “New Jinzhou Jixing Agreement”) with
Jinzhou Jixing to renew the pre-existing agreement as well as to
determine the annual cap amounts for the transactions for the three
years ending 31 December 2014. The term of the New Jinzhou
Jixing Agreement took effect on 1 January 2012 and will expire on
31 December 2014.

The New Jinzhou Jixing Agreement was entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business and on normal commercial terms.
The basis of determining the prices for the Sale Transactions and
the Purchase Transactions (as the case may be) is determined
with reference to the prevailing market price of wire slurry or the
processed materials (as the case may be). Other business terms of
the Sale Transactions or the Purchase Transactions (as the case
may be) are determined on an individual order basis and the terms
of which are on normal commercial terms and no less favourable to
the Company than the terms available to or from independent third
parties (as the case may be). Payments for the Sale Transactions or
the Purchase Transactions (as the case may be) will be determined
based on normal commercial terms to be agreed after arm’s length
negotiation between the Group and Jinzhou Jixing or its subsidiaries
(as the case may be) from time to time, including without limitation,
payment by cash on delivery, payment with a credit term ranging
from 30 to 90 days.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

44

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Sale of wire slurry to Jinzhou Jixing New Materials Co., (“Jinzhou
Jixing”) and purchase of recycled abrasives and mineral oil from
Jinzhou Jixing (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of
the sale price paid by Jinzhou Jixing to the Group in relation to the
sale of wire slurry amounted to approximately RMB2,053,000 (2012:
RMB7,906,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of
the purchase price paid by the Group to Jinzhou Jixing in relation
to the purchase of recycled abrasives and mineral oil amounted to
approximately RMB9,789,000 (2012: RMB17,130,000).

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the Sale Transactions for the
year ending 31 December 2014, it is expected that the annual cap
amounts receivable by the Group under the Sale Transactions will
not exceed RMB42,500,000.

The proposed annual caps under the Sale Transactions are
determined with reference to, among other things, (i) the Group’s
silicon solar wafer production capacity as at 19 December 2011;
(i) the anticipated increase in Jinzhou Jixing’s demand for wire
slurry; and (iii) the average market price of wire slurry sold to an
independent third party and Jinzhou Jixing in 2011.

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the Purchase Transactions
for the year ending 31 December 2014, it is expected that the
annual cap amounts payable by the Group under the Purchase
Transactions will not exceed RMB22,000,000.

The proposed annual caps under the Purchase Transactions are
determined with reference to, among other things, (i) the actual
quantity of abrasives and mineral oil used by the Group in 2010;
(i) the Group’s silicon solar wafer production capacity as at 19
December 2011; (iii) the average recycled rate of abrasives and
mineral oil, respectively, and hence the estimated quantity of
recycled abrasives and mineral oil to be produced by Jinzhou Jixing
from the processing of wire slurry to be supplied by the Group; and
(iv) the estimated price of recycled abrasives and mineral oil to be
purchased from Jinzhou Jixing which are determined by reference to
the market price of brand new abrasives and mineral oil purchased
from independent third parties and the processing fee of wire slurry
charged by independent third parties.
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Report of the Directors EE&sfEE

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Sale of wire slurry to Jinzhou Jixing New Materials Co., (“Jinzhou
Jixing”) and purchase of recycled abrasives and mineral oil from
Jinzhou Jixing (continued)

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
Jinzhou Jixing is owned as to 35% by Jinzhou Yuexin (a PRC
company wholly owned by Mr. Tan Xin, a Director of the Company
and the son of Mr. Tan Wenhua) and as to 65% by independent
third parties. Jinzhou Jixing is therefore an associate of each of Mr.
Tan Xin and Mr. Tan Wenhua and hence a connected person of the
Company. As the applicable ratios in respect of the annual caps
of these transactions are less than 5%, the Sale Transactions and
Purchase Transactions under the New Jinzhou Jixing Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules and are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement but are subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements set out in Rules
14A.45 to 14A.47 and the annual review requirements set out in
Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 of the Listing Rules.

Provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers
by ERINRZF BRI K ERL F Jinzhou Jingxin Semi-conductor
Material Company Limited™ (“Jinzhou Jingxin”)

On 2 November 2009, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Jinzhou Jingxin (the “Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company has agreed to
engage or procure its subsidiaries to engage Jinzhou Jingxin for
the provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers
which is necessary for slicing of silicon solar ingots into silicon solar
wafers.

The Company has obtained the approval from its independent
shareholders in respect of the Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement on 31 December 2009. Upon approval, the Jingxin
Guide Rollers Service Agreement commenced on 2 November 2009
and expired on 31 December 2011.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.
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Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers
by fEINRZF BRI K ERA F Jinzhou Jingxin Semi-conductor
Material Company Limited™ (“Jinzhou Jingxin”) (continued)

On 19 December 2011, the Company has entered into a new
framework agreement (the “New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement”) with Jinzhou Jingxin to renew the pre-existing
agreement as well as to determine the annual cap amounts for the
transactions for the years ending 31 December 2014. The term of
the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service Agreement took effect on 1
January 2012 and will expire on 31 December 2014.

The New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service Agreement was entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business and on normal
commercial terms. The basis of determining the prices for
the transactions under the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement are determined with reference to the prevailing market
price for the provision of service for re-coating and re-grooving
guide rollers. The terms of the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder are
determined on an individual order basis and the terms of which are
on normal commercial terms and no less favourable to the Company
than the terms available from independent third parties. Payments
for the transactions under the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement will either be cash on delivery or on such credit terms as
may be agreed between the parties on normal commercial terms
and no less favourable to the Company than terms available from
independent third parties. It is agreed that Jinzhou Jingxin will grant
to the Group a credit period of 30 to 90 days.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of the service fee paid by the Group to Jinzhou Jingxin under
the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service Agreement was nil (2012:
RMB884,000).

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the transactions under the
New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service Agreement for the year ending
31 December 2014, it is expected that the following annual cap
amounts payable by the Group will not exceed RMB3,000,000.

The proposed annual caps under the New Jingxin Guide Rollers
Service Agreement are determined with reference to, among other
things, (i) the Group’s silicon solar wafer production capacity as at
19 December 2011; and (i) the projected service fee for re-coating
and re-grooving guide rollers in the next three financial years.
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Report of the Directors EE&sfEE

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers
by fEINRZF BRI K ERA F Jinzhou Jingxin Semi-conductor
Material Company Limited* (“Jinzhou Jingxin”) (continueq)

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
Jinzhou Jingxin is owned as to 40% by Ms. Chen Man, the
daughter-in-law of Mr. Tan Wenhua, an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company, as to 10% by Ms. Chen Man’s aunt
and as to 50% by independent third parties. Therefore, Jinzhou
Jingxin is an associate of Mr. Tan Wenhua and hence a connected
person of the Company. As the applicable ratios in respect of the
annual caps of these transactions are less than 5%, the transactions
under the New Jingxin Guide Rollers Service Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Rule
14A.34 of the Listing Rules and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement but are subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47
and the annual review requirements set out in Rules 14A.37 to
14A.40 of the Listing Rules.

Provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers by
Jinzhou Youlin Semi-Conductor Material Co., Ltd. (“Jinzhou Youlin”)
On 19 December 2011, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Jinzhou Youlin (the “Youlin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company has agreed to engage
or procure its subsidiaries to engage Jinzhou Youlin for the provision
of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers which is
necessary for slicing of silicon solar ingots into silicon solar wafers.
The term of the Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement took effect
on 1 January 2012 and will expire on 31 December 2014.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

48

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers by
Jinzhou Youlin Semi-Conductor Material Co., Ltd. (“Jinzhou Youlin”)
(continued)

The Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement was entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business and on normal commercial
terms. The basis of determining the prices for the transactions
under the Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement are determined
with reference to the prevailing market price for the provision of
service for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers. The terms of
the Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement and the transaction
contemplated thereunder are determined on an individual order
basis and the terms of which are on normal commercial terms and
no less favourable to the Company than the terms available from
independent third parties. Payments for the transactions under
the Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement will either be cash on
delivery or on such credit terms as may be agreed between the
parties on normal commercial terms and no less favourable to the
Company than terms available from independent third parties. It is
agreed that Jinzhou Youlin will grant to the Group a credit period of
30 to 90 days.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of the service fee paid by the Group to Jinzhou Youlin under the
Youlin Guide Rollers Service Agreement amounted to approximately
RMB3,458,000 (2012: RMB2,699,000).

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the transaction under the Youlin
Guide Rollers Service Agreement for the year ending 31 December
2014, it is expected that the annual cap amounts payable by the
Group will not exceed RMB3,500,000.

The proposed annual caps under the Youlin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement are determined with reference to, among other things,
(i) the Group’s silicon solar wafer production capacity as at 19
December 2011; and (i) the projected service fee for re-coating and
re-grooving guide rollers in the next three financial years.
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Report of the Directors EE&WREE

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

A.

Continuing Connected Transactions Exempt from the
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements
(continued)

Provision of services for re-coating and re-grooving guide rollers
by Jinzhou Youlin Semi-Conductor Material Co., (“Jinzhou Youlin”)
(continued)

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
Jinzhou Youlin is owned as to 87% by Ms. Chen Man, the daughter-
in-law of Mr. Tan Wenhua, and as to 13% by independent third
parties. Jinzhou Youlin is therefore an associate of Mr. Tan Wenhua
and hence a connected person of the Company. As the applicable
ratios in respect of the annual caps of these transactions are less
than 5%, the transactions under the Youlin Guide Rollers Service
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules and are exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement but are
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements set out in
Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47 and the annual review requirements set out
in Rules 14A.35 to 14A.40 of the Listing Rules.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

The following transactions constituted non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company and are thus subject to
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Rules 14A.45 to 14A.48 and the annual review
requirements set out in Rules 14A.35 to 14A.40 of the Listing Rules:

Supply of graphite materials by #8/M 5 #E %3 B R &
(Jinzhou Changhua Carbon Products Company Limited”) (“Jinzhou
Changhua”)

On 2 December 2009, the Company entered into a framework
supply agreement with Jinzhou Changhua and $§M{G&E F 4
BBR/AF (Jinzhou Youxin Electronic Co., Ltd.) (“Jinzhou Youxin”)
pursuant to which Jinzhou Changhua and Jinzhou Youxin agreed
to supply graphite materials and quartz crucibles respectively to
the Company or its subsidiaries as requested by them from time
to time. Such graphite materials and quartz crucibles serve as the
essential materials for the Group’s production of silicon ingots. The
supply agreement commenced on 1 January 2010 and expired
on 31 December 2012. Formal purchase agreements (by way of
purchase orders and confirmations) were entered into between the
Group, Jinzhou Changhua and Jinzhou Youxin (as the case may be)
with the detailed terms and conditions as specified in the relevant
purchase orders. The purchase arrangement under the supply
agreement has been conducted on normal commercial terms and
on terms no less favourable than those available from independent
third parties.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

B.

50

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Supply of graphite materials by #EM 5 i & #4m B R4 &
(Jinzhou Changhua Carbon Products Company Limited”) (“Jinzhou
Changhua”) (continued)

On 19 October 2012, the Company entered into a new supply
agreement (the “New Materials Supply Agreement”) with Jinzhou
Changhua to renew the pre-existing agreement as well as to
determine the annual cap for the transactions for the three years
ending 31 December 2015. The Company obtained the approval
from its independent shareholders in respect of the New Materials
Supply Agreement on 27 December 2012. Upon approval, the term
of the New Materials Supply Agreement commenced on 1 January
2013 and will expire on 31 December 2015.

The New Materials Supply Agreement was entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and on normal
commercial terms. The purchase price payable by the Group to
Jinzhou Changhua under the New Materials Supply Agreement is
estimated with reference to the expected purchase amount of the
graphite materials and the prevailing market prices.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of the purchase price paid by the Group to Jinzhou Changhua in
relation to the sale and purchase of graphite materials amounted to
approximately RMB36,054,000 (2012: RMB34,213,000).

Based on the Directors’ estimate of the purchase of graphite
materials for the two years ending 31 December 2015, it is expected
that the following annual cap amounts payable by the Group for
transactions under the New Materials Supply Agreement will not
exceed:

(@) RMB108,973,000 for the year ending 31 December 2014; and

(b) RMB114,421,000 for the year ending 31 December 2015;

The above annual cap amounts are determined with reference to
(i) the costs incurred by the Group for the purchase of the graphite
materials for the nine months ended 30 September 2012; (i) the
expected increase in the Group’s production capacity for the two
years ending 31 December 2015; (iii) the expected increase in
demand for the graphite materials for the production requirements
of the Group in anticipation of the expected increase in demand for
the Group’s products; and (iv) the expected utilisation rate of the
Group’s production capacity for the two years ending 31 December
2015.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

B.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Supply of graphite materials by #8M 5 Z#E#mE R &
(Jinzhou Changhua Carbon Products Company Limited*) (“Jinzhou
Changhua”) (continued)

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
Jinzhou Changhua is owned as to 40% by Huaxin Silicon, which is
wholly owned by Mr. Tan Wenhua. Jinzhou Changhua is therefore
an associate of Mr. Tan Wenhua and hence a connected person of
the Company. As the applicable ratios in respect of the annual caps
of these transactions are more than 5%, the transactions under the
New Materials Supply Agreement constitute non-exempt continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.35 of the
Listing Rules.

Supply of scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers by Wafer
Works Corp. (“WWX”)

On 12 January 2008, the Company entered into a framework supply
agreement (the “WWX Supply Agreement”) with WWX pursuant
to which WWX agreed to supply, and/or procure its subsidiaries
(together with WWX, the “WWX Group”) to supply scrap polysilicon
raw material, scrap ingots and scrap wafers to the Company or its
subsidiaries as requested by them from time to time. Such scrap
polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers serve as the Group’s
materials for its production of wafers. The WWX Supply Agreement
had a term commencing on 31 March 2008 and expired on 31
December 2009. Formal purchase agreements (by way of purchase
orders and confirmations) were entered into between the Company
(and/or its subsidiaries) and WWX (and/or its subsidiaries) with the
detailed terms and conditions as specified in the relevant purchase
orders. The purchase arrangements under the supply agreement
were conducted on normal commercial terms and on terms no less
favourable than those available from independent third parties.

The WWX Supply Agreement was entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business and on normal commercial terms. The
purchase price payable by the Group to WWX under the WWX
Supply Agreement is estimated based on the expected purchase
amount of the scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers and is
comparable to the prevailing market prices in the scrap polysilicon,
scrap ingots and scrap wafers market in the PRC.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Supply of scrap polysilicon, scrap ingots and scrap wafers by Wafer
Works Corp. (“WWX?”) (continued)

On 4 June 2008, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement (the “WWX Supplemental Supply Agreement”) with
WWX to revise the caps for the transactions under the WWX
Supply Agreement as well as to determine the annual cap for the
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2010. The Company
had obtained the approval from its independent shareholders in
respect of the WWX Supplemental Supply Agreement on 27 June
2008. Upon approval, the term of the WWX Supplemental Supply
Agreement commenced on 27 June 2008 and expired on 31
December 2010.

On 3 November 2010, the Company entered into a new supply
agreement (the “New WWX Supply Agreement”) with WWX to renew
the pre-existing agreement as well as to determine the annual cap
for the transactions for the years ended 31 December 2013. The
Company obtained the approval from its independent shareholders
in respect of the New WWX Supply Agreement on 26 January
2011. Upon approval, the term of the New WWX Supply Agreement
commenced on 1 January 2011 and expired on 31 December 2013.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of
the purchase price paid by the Group to the WWX Group in relation
to the supply of scrap polysilicon raw material, scrap ingots and
scrap wafers amounted to approximately RMB13,656,000 (2012:
RMB17,096,000).

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiry, as at the date of this report,
WWX holds 100% interests in Wafer Works Investment Corp.
(“WWIC”). WWIC was a substantial shareholder of the Company
and each of WWX and its subsidiaries was therefore an associate
of WWIC and hence a connected person of the Company. As the
applicable ratios in respect of the annual caps of these transactions
are more than 5%, the transactions under the New WWX Supply
Agreement constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing
Rules. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and
belief having made all reasonable enquiry, WWIC has ceased to
hold 10% or more of the issued shares of the Company since 9
January 2013 and therefore each of WWIC and WWX is no longer a
connected person of the Company and the transactions disclosed
above no longer constituted continuing connected transactions for
the Company.
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B.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Sale of upgraded and processed polysilicon, silicon solar ingots and
silicon solar wafers to WWX

On 12 January 2008, the Company entered into a framework sale
agreement with WWX (the “WWX Sale Agreement”) pursuant to
which the Company has agreed to sell, or procure its subsidiaries
to sell upgraded and processed polysilicon, silicon solar ingots and
silicon solar wafers to WWX and/or its subsidiaries. The WWX Sale
Agreement had a term commencing on 31 March 2008 and expired
on 31 December 2009. Formal sale agreements (by way of purchase
orders and confirmations) were entered into between the Company
(and/or its subsidiaries) and WWX (and/or its subsidiaries) with the
detailed terms and conditions as specified in the relevant purchase
orders. The sale arrangements under the WWX Sale Agreement
were conducted on normal commercial terms and on terms no less
favourable than those available from independent third parties.

The WWX Sale Agreement was entered in the ordinary and
usual course of business and on normal commercial terms. The
purchase price payable by WWX to the Group under the WWX Sale
Agreement is determined with reference to the prevailing market
price of upgraded and processed polysilicon, silicon solar ingots and
silicon solar wafers.

On 4 June 2008, the Company entered into a supplemental
agreement (“the WWX Supplemental Sale Agreement”) to revise the
caps for the transactions under the WWX Sale Agreement as well as
to determine the annual cap for the transactions for the year ended
31 December 2010. The Company had obtained the approval from
its independent shareholders in respect of the WWX Supplemental
Sale Agreement on 27 June 2008. Upon approval, the term of the
WWX Supplemental Sale Agreement commenced on 27 June 2008
and expired on 31 December 2010.

On 3 November 2010, the Company entered into a new sale
agreement (the “New WWX Sale Agreement”) with WWX to renew
the pre-existing agreement as well as to determine the annual cap
for the transactions for the year ended 31 December 2013. The
Company obtained the approval from its shareholders in respect
of the New WWX Sale Agreement on 26 January 2011. Upon
approval, the term of the New WWX Sale Agreement commenced
on 1 January 2011 and expired on 31 December 2013.
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Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Sale of upgraded and processed polysilicon, silicon solar ingots and
silicon solar wafers to WWX (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, no sales proceeds received
by the Group from the WWX Group in relation to the sale of
upgraded and processed polysilicon, silicon solar ingot and silicon
solar wafers (2012: RMBNIil).

As mentioned in the paragraph headed “Supply of scrap polysilicon,
scrap ingots and scrap wafers by WWX” above, WWX was a
connected person of the Company. As the applicable ratios in
respect of the annual caps of these transactions are more than 5%,
the transactions under the New WWX Sale Agreement constituted
non-exempt continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules. To the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable
enquiry, WWIC has ceased to hold 10% or more of the issued
shares of the Company since 9 January 2013 and therefore each of
WWIC and WWX is no longer a connected person of the Company
and the transactions disclosed above no longer constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company.

The transactions as set out in section (A) “Continuing Connected
Transactions Exempt from the Independent Shareholders’ Approval
Requirements” above constitute continuing connected transactions
for the Group which are exempt from independent shareholders’
approval under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules and are subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements set out in Rules
14A.35 to 14A.47 and the annual review requirements set out in
Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 of the Listing Rules. The transactions as set
out in section (B) “Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions”
above are subject to reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements set out in Rules 14A.45 to
14A.48 and the annual review requirements set out in Rules 14A.37
to 14A.40 of the Listing Rules. The Board has reviewed and the
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) for the year ended 31 December 2013 were entered
into and conducted:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable
to the Company than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
and the terms and the proposal annual caps set out above that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.
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Report of the Directors EE&sfEE

Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions (other than the transactions between
the Group and WWX which have ceased to constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company since 9 January 2013) disclosed
by the Group from pages 41 to 55 of the Annual Report in accordance
with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Share Option Scheme

The Company has conditionally approved and adopted the share option
scheme on 27 February 2008 (“Share Option Scheme”) in which certain
participants may be granted options to subscribe for the ordinary shares
in the share capital of the Company with a nominal value of HK$0.10
each (“Shares”). The Directors believe that the Share Option Scheme
is important for the recruitment and retention of quality executives and
employees.

The subscription price for the Shares to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme will be determined by the Board and will be the highest
of:

(i)  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must
be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business

days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other share
option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of Shares in issue immediately following completion of
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange (“the Listing”)
(but taking no account of any Shares which may be sold pursuant to the
exercise of the over-allotment option in connection with the Listing) and
capitalisation issue, being 169,076,650 Shares which represents 5.26%
of the existing issued share capital of the Company.

The total number of securities available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2013 was 158,186,650 Shares which
represents 4.93% of the existing issued share capital of the Company (after
deducting the grant of options to subscribe for 42,269,163 Shares on 29
December 2008 and adding back the number of options to subscribe for
10,285,000 Shares and 21,094,163 Shares lapsed on 30 April 2009 and
31 December 2010, respectively).

No option may be granted to any person such that the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted to each participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of the latest grant under the Share Option Scheme exceeds 1% of the
number of Shares in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the Board,
which must not be more than 10 years from the date of the grant.

No share option was granted under the Share Option Scheme during the
year.

Save as otherwise disclosed, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.
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Purchase, Sale Or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has issued
498,260,094 new Shares pursuant to an open offer on the basis of
one offer share for every five existing Shares held on the record date at
the subscription price of HK$0.51 per offer Share (the “Open Offer”).
The Open Offer was completed on 20 March 2013. The net proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$251 million and have been utilized to
repay the Company’s bank loans as initially intended. Furthermore,
14,412,515 units of TDRs (Taiwan Depositary Receipts), representing
14,412,515 Shares issued by the Company under the Open Offer were
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange on 10 April 2013.

In addition, the Company has issued 199,998,000 new Shares and
22,222,000 new Shares to Hiramatsu International Corp. and Ding
Chenxi, respectively, at the subscription price of HK$0.36 per Share
(the “Subscription”). Based on the closing price of HK$0.42 per Share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 16 May 2013, being the date on
which the terms of the Subscription were fixed, the total market price of
the Shares issued pursuant to the Subscription was HK$93,332,400.
The aggregate nominal value of the Shares issued under the Subscription
amounted to HK$22,222,000 and the net price of each Share so issued
is approximately HK$0.36. The purpose of the Subscription was to raise
funds for repayment of the Company’s bank loan and to strengthen
the financial position of the Group in the face of a challenging operating
environment in the solar industry. The Subscription also allowed the
Company to further expand its shareholders and capital base and enjoy
more financial flexibility. The Subscription was completed on 27 May
2013. The net proceeds amounted to approximately HK$80 million and
has been applied towards repayment of the Company’s bank loans as
initially intended.

Save as disclosed above, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Report of the Directors EEEMREE

Interest and Short Positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company and its Associated Corporations
As at 31 December 2013, so far as the Directors are aware, the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company and their associates had the
following interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code:

EEREQTFRSTHRABRELQTR
HEBZEARD - HEROREZH

BERAR

REZE-—ZF+ZA=+—80 BESHE EFERLX
RARBTHAERFEE 2BHEA T RA QT R EARR
EE(ERRFBSRPERE(TEZRBEMRD ) EXV
MBS - MEROREST - BFECTHIMRERS
KB RGIE3AF R EFEN B MR RBEEEFRIA
SITHEARD AR ANESRNT

Number of ordinary Approximate

shares held percentage of
(Note 1) shareholding (%)
Name of Director Nature interest FIFEEREBE #MABEREDIL
EEHA BEME (Mt 5E1) (%)
Mr. TAN Wenhua Beneficial interest (Note 2) 528,624,443 (L) 16.46%
BN ESLE BEREmR (T2
Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 155,320,308 (L) 4.84%
SZEEEEEME2)
Mr. HSU You Yuan Beneficial interest 13,861,346 (L) 0.43%
PN SEE EEER
Interest in options (Note 3) 239,835 (L) 0.01%
A 55 BR R 0 4 35 (O 23)
Security interest (Note 3) 239,835 (L) 0.01%
I ] E = (M EE3)
Trustee’s interest 7,252,085 (L) 0.23%
FREAES
Mr. WANG Chunwei (appointed on  Beneficial interest (Note 4) 100,500 (L) 0.01%
27 June 2013)
FEREE(R=ZB—=F BERER (T4
ANAZT+EREZM) Family interest (Note 4) 262 (L) 0.01%
= ik FE & (Mf 52 4)
Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai (resigned on Beneficial interest 6,135,500 (L) 0.19%
1 June 2013)
EEBEE(R=E—=F EEER
<A—BHEHME) Interest in an option (Note 3) 7,012,250 (L) 0.22%
BB R R Y R & (T EE3)
Security interest (Note 3) 7,012,250 (L) 0.22%
IR R & (M EE3)
Ms. ZHANG Liming (retired on Beneficial interest 3,133,500 (L) 0.10%

27 June 2013)
REALZLE(R=F—=F
RAZTEHEMD

BExXfER
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Report of the Directors &&=

Interest and Short Positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company in the
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company and its Associated Corporations

(continued)
Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

(2)  As at 31 December 2013, Mr. Tan Wenhua is interested in an aggregate of
683,944,751 Shares, of which (i) 528,624,443 Shares are directly held by Mr.
Tan Wenhua; and (i) 155,320,308 Shares are held by You Hua Investment
Corporation, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Tan Wenhua.

(8) As at 31 December 2013, Mr. Hsu You Yuan and Mr. Chiao Ping Hai had
security interest in these Shares pursuant to a share charge granted by the
relevant employees and consultants to secure their obligations to pay for the
purchase price of the Shares and their obligations to comply with the relevant
regulatory requirements to which they are subject to (if any).

(4)  As at 31 December 2013, Mr. Wang is interested in an aggregate of 100,762
Shares, of which 100,500 Shares are directly held by Mr. Wang and 262
Shares are held by Mr. Wang’s spouse.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2013, so far as the Directors are aware, save as
disclosed above, the persons or corporations (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who have interest or short positions
in the shares and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO or have
otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

EEREDRFARSITHRAEREQTR
HMEEZENRD - HERODRESFH

EHERAE @

(1) FEILEZALTRZSRSNER -

@ MRZE-—=F+ZA=+-0 BXEXEEGHR
683,944,751 R IR P EE R - B () 528,624,443 %
PHEXELEEEREE 0 &) 155,320,308 5 H:E
NEREZERB2EEREBRATEE -

@ RIB-—Z=ZF+ZA=+—H FHEHTERETERE
REAREERBEERENRDERTEEZSRONE
RiED - URARERTIXNROUBEUREREER
HRHNERRERE (WE)WELE -

@ RZZ—Z=F+=ZA=+-—8  EEEEHM100,762
BROPEEER  BH100,500BRABFELEHZEE
K262 E EERBISE ©

FERREHEMATRRSG RAEBERS
PHERER AR

BE-T-=FT-A=t-8 BESHE BLX
BHEN  ATALREE LFESAADTRBTH
ABRADARORIEBRG T - FECRSNREE
B RUEEAFCeRREFENBRRAE STARA
ATWBBAAAR

Number of ordinary Approximate

shares held percentage of

(Note 1) shareholding (%)

Name Capacity FEHEEREE BABRE DL

2B HE 55 (FffsE1) (%)

Hiramatsu International Corp. Beneficial owner 349,118,692 (L) 10.87%
BERnEEA

Hiramatsu Hiroharu (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 349,118,692 (L) 10.87%

(HMizk2) SELEER

Wafer Works Investment Corp. Beneficial owner 248,759,822 (L) 7.75%
("WwiC”) BEREEA

Wafer Works Corp. (“WWX”) (Note 3) Interest of a controlled corporation 248,759,822 (L) 7.75%

BRMERNERAT
(T& @B (BfEE3)

ZEEEER
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Report of the Directors EE&iREE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and

Underlying Shares (continued)
Notes:

1. The letter “L.” denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

2. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having
made all reasonable enquiry, Hiramatsu International Corp. is wholly-
owned by Hiramatsu Hiroharu as at the date of this report. By virtue of the
SFO, Hiramatsu Hiroharu is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Hiramatsu International Corp.

3. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having made
all reasonable enquiry, WWIC is wholly-owned by WWX as at the date of this
report. By virtue of the SFO, WWX is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by WWIC.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or short
position in shares and underlying shares of the Company which fall to be
disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Directors’ Interest in Potentially Competing
Businesses

Mr. TAN Wenhua, being the executive Director, and Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai,
being the non-executive Director (resigned with effect from 1 June 2013)
are interested in other related businesses, particulars of which are set out
below:

Mr. TAN Wenhua

For the year ended 31 December 2013, Mr. Tan held approximately
40% interest in Jinzhou Changhua. Jinzhou Changhua is engaged in the
manufacturing of graphite and graphite related products. The business
of Jinzhou Changhua does not compete with that of the Group. Jinzhou
Changhua, as a company which manufactures graphite and graphite
related products, is not a competitor of the Group because (a) the
Group is not engaged in the manufacturing of graphite or any graphite
related products; and (b) graphite is not a substitute for polysilicon in the
manufacturing of solar products currently produced by the Group.

Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai (Resigned with effect from 1 June 2013)
For the year ended 31 December 2013, Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai had interests
in WWX, B85 &EMEERAT (Wafer Works (Shanghai) Corp?)
(“WWXS”) and Wafer Works Epitaxial Corp. These three companies are
all engaged in the business of manufacturing silicon wafers used in the
semi-conductor industry. Mr. CHIAO Ping Hai also has indirect interests
in Helitek and Heli-Vantech, Inc., both of which are engaged in the
trading of silicon wafers used in the manufacture of semi-conductors. As
explained above, the semi-conductor industry is different from that of the
solar technology industry; thus, WWX, WWXS and Wafer Works Epitaxial
Corp., Helitek and Heli-Vantech, Inc., are not engaged in any competing
business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors EE&sfEE

Non-competition Undertaking

The Directors confirm that they have no interest in any business (apart
from the Group’s business) which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business. The Directors have also
signed a non-competition undertaking with the Company.

Disclosure on how the non-competition undertaking has been complied
with and enforced would be consistent with the principles of making
voluntary disclosures under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the non-competition undertaking dated 27 February 2008,
Mr. TAN Wenhua shall continue to be bound by the terms of the
non-competition undertaking in the event that he ceases to be a Director
but remains a substantial shareholder of the Company.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is
actual or potential conflict in interest.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 41 to 55, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set out by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Retirement Benefit Schemes
Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in
note 33 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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Report of the Directors EE&WREE

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Special enquiries have been made by the Company to
confirm that all Directors have been complied with the Model Code for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Corporate Governance
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the corporate governance report on pages 21 to 31.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 27 February 2008 with
written terms of references adopted in compliance with the Code set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The members of the Audit Committee
are the four independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Wong Wing
Kuen Albert, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is to serve as a focal point for communication
between other Directors, the external auditor and the internal auditor
(where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards their
duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls, external
and internal audits and such other financial and accounting matters as the
Board determines from time to time.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in providing an independent
review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management system of the Group, overseeing the
audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities as may
be assigned by the Board from time to time. The audit committee
has reviewed the Group’s interim and annual consolidated financial
statements for the year 2013, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group.
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Report of the Directors EE&sfEE

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital
of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the
Stock Exchange, based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Company for the year have been
audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
TAN Wenhua

Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2014

RALARGRE
BEAQDEBAMRCNERRBEEME - NE
FRAH AR —EER LR TALCEER
FRERAAEBTRAETONE%N AR RE -

B 5D aER
AAREEEEB LN TESRE L TRASI 3%
BHOFEBISOBRE  LRHLWBIFNTE
EURWIAL ©

B ERET
ARARFENHBRREMBERAGTHNEH I E
¥ REREHMERAHER SR EGAERE
PSR TS -

FHERESREMISEEMALRARHUMARER
EREERRBFAS LIRS -

AEEED
BXE
E31

&8 ZE-NOFE=A=+7H

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3 63



Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 BRD iR

ane

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solargiga
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 66 to 168, which comprise the
consolidated and the Company’s statements of financial position as at
31 December 2013, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor's Report 137 1% ek

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

] = NZ
,%m/E\u E\ﬁﬁ%

for the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_-_ZT—=F+-_HA=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A RE7I/(H)

2013 2012
—EB-=F —E-—_F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FiEE ARET T AR®T T
Turnover [=E 20 3 2,150,328 996,836
Cost of sales SHERA (2,000,335) (1,288,220)
Gross profit/(loss) ER,(18) 149,993 (291,384)
Other revenue Heb g X 4 61,420 55,808
Other net (loss)/income Hith(B518), WA FEE 5 (2,324) 3,698
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (18,172) (19,303)
Administrative expenses TR (230,621) (252,539)
Loss from operations REEE (39,704) (508,720)
Reversal of impairment losses/ ME - BERZERE
(impairment losses) on property, BRMERE A (5HR)
plant and equipment 14 19,166 (161,200)
Impairment losses on intangible assets  ELEERER XHTHRE 15 - (201,493)
Impairment losses on goodwill EEFEEkNEHE 16 - (208,237)
Impairment losses on prepayments for  FEAFRITE S FOERE
raw materials BERKEHE 18 = (134,485)
Share of profits less losses of associates  FE{L B A T RERIEE 2,238 1,511
Finance costs BE A 6(a) (107,265) (110,967)
Loss before taxation MREBLAIEE 6 (125,565) (1,318,591)
Income tax Fi8%: 7 8,998 23,538
Loss for the year FEEE (116,567) (1,295,053)
Attributable to: PPN
Equity shareholders of the Company AATERRER (135,504) (1,276,554)
Non-controlling interests FEIEFIEER 18,937 (18,499)
Loss for the year FEEE (116,567) (1,295,053)
Loss per share (RMB cents) BERERARES) 10
Basic and diluted BEAXREE (4.57) (55.99)

The notes on pages 74 to 168 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AN

ceEm REMEREE AR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—T—=F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R#%I/(&)

2013 2012
—=2—=fF —E—-TfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT

Loss for the year FEFE (116,567) (1,295,053)

Other comprehensive income for the year FEHMEEKRA

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to AREA RSN ERIBEMNIER
profit or loss:
- Exchange differences on translation of financial ~— —#& I A RELME ([ HEH )
statements of companies outside of the BOMA TS IRRAVE HERE
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) 2,983 407
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEKWALE (113,584) (1,294,646)
Attributable to: VSN
Equity shareholders of the Company RDERER R R (132,521) (1,276,147)
Non-controlling interests ISR RS 18,937 (18,499)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXEWAETE (113,584) (1,294,646)
The notes on pages 74 to 168 form part of these financial statements. HT4Z168E ZMiFH AR AN B R R 2 —
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B AR R &

at 31 December 2013 R-_ZT—=F+-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ARFI(E)

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MiEE ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENRE 14 2,064,687 1,917,684
Prepayments for acquisition of property, BBV - BE KR ENFESTE
plant and equipment 27,333 4,582
Lease prepayments HERAFRE 17 118,345 101,361
Prepayments for raw materials EM BB FRIE 18 320,233 316,543
Interests in associates PABEE AR R 21 74,568 124,457
Other non-current assets HiERBEE 22 31,390 -
2,636,556 2,464,627
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 441,494 424 187
Trade and other receivables FEUR E 5 BRI H A FE IR SR IE 24 720,316 720,747
Current tax recoverable B ER AT Uk [E1 554 18 29(a) 500 7,070
Pledged bank deposits 2IRIFRITER 25 206,910 174,234
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERS 26 234,398 153,793
1,603,618 1,480,031
Current liabilities REAE
Bank loans RITER 27 1,114,482 1,018,985
Trade and other payables ENE SRR EENTUE 28 761,153 846,098
Current tax payable BIERFE(S R 1B 29(a) 1,266 -
Bonds (=t 30 299,200 -
2,176,101 1,865,083
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (572,483) (385,052)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZAERTBERS 2,064,073 2,079,575
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #R& B1i&AR R TR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (R BB EREIN - UARESIE)

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FMIEE AR®T T AR®F T

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank and other loans RITREMER 27 591,718 487,280
Bonds &% 30 - 298,600
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHEEE 29(b) 1,017 11,757
Deferred income IEFEURA 31 209,988 221,701
Other non-current liabilities Hitt3ERBAEE 32 22,554 9,007
825,277 1,028,345
Net assets EEFE 1,238,796 1,051,230

Capital and reserves ERRHE
Share capital i &N 34 276,727 218,787
Reserves #& 34 876,331 800,091

Total equity attributable to equity A TERERREGRERZBE

shareholders of the Company 1,153,058 1,018,878
Non-controlling interests FEERFI R 85,738 32,352
Total equity RSB 1,238,796 1,051,230

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March ~EEE8R-Z—NF=F -+ SBRELFAEE -
2014.

TAN Wenhua HSU You Yuan
BN E B
Director Director
EE EE
The notes on pages 74 to 168 form part of these financial statements. $E74F168H 2 M AR A HERE 2 — 2D ©
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Statement of Financial Position
B 7% AR R 3R

=

—=Ft+-A=+—H

at 31 December 2013
(AAREIE)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MIEE AR¥T T ARBEF T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB ATINRE 19 1,680,576 1,755,530
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables Hih e FRIE 24 16,518 9,751
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS 26 449 1,363
16,967 11,114
Current liabilities P =R
Bank loans RITER 27 128,855 397,586
Other payables HAth I FIE 28 17,059 20,205
Bonds &% 30 299,200 -
445,114 417,791
Net current liabilities RBAETFHE (428,147) (406,677)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERMRBEE 1,252,429 1,348,853
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bonds E% 30 - 298,600
Net assets EERE 1,252,429 1,050,253
Capital and reserves EARREE 34(b)
Share capital i 276,727 218,787
Reserves & 975,702 831,466
Total equity R 1,252,429 1,050,253

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March ~EEER-ZT—NE= =+ NBRELFAIEE o
2014.

TAN Wenhua HSU You Yuan
I B
Director Director
EE EE
The notes on pages 74 to 168 form part of these financial statements. HE74F168E Z M A R A IEHRK 2 — LD ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AEREmEE K

for the year ended 31 December 2013 g,j ST E-—=F+ - A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (JAAREEFIE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAARERRELER
Retained
General profits/ Non-
Share Share reserve Capital  Exchange Other  (Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium fund reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests equity
RExNE/ E2]

Bx  B#EE -BEke BARE  ENRR  RtER  (ZHER) it B EEEE
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARETR  ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR ARBTR ARNTR ARBTR ARNTR ARRTR ARETR

Balanceat 1 January 2012  W=Z-Z%-fA-RM&H 198585 1470106 139,356 42,768 (17,008) (66,710) 454998 2,222,045 50861 2272,8%

Changes in equity for 2012 —Z——EHERESE:

Loss for the year EEFR - - - - - - (1218,554)  (1,276,554) (18499 (1,295,053

Other comprehensive income  EE2ERA - - - - 407 - - 407 - 407
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EWAZE - - - B 407 . (1,276,554)  (1,276,147) (18,499)  (1,294,646)
Shares issued under DERERTRA (HE4(0)

open offer (note 34(d)) 20,202 52,778 - - - - - 72,980 - 72,980
Appropriation to reserves PERZRE - - 48,69 - - - (48,69) - - -
Balance at R-B-—E+-A=1-AH

31 December 2012 e 218,787 1,622,884 188,052 42,768 (16,651) (66,710) (870,252) 1,018,878 32,352 1,061,230

Balanceat 1 January 2018 W=B-ZF-A-RM&H 216787 1522884 188,052 42,768 (16,651) (66,710) (870,252) 1,018,878 32,352 1,051,230

Changes in equity for 2013 —E—-=EHEZESE:

Loss for the year EEFE - = - - = - (135504  (135504) 18937  (116,567)

Other comprenensive income  EAE2TEHA - - - - 2,983 - - 2,983 - 2,983
Total comprehensive income  2EWAZE - - - - 2,983 - (135,504)  (132,521) 18,937 (113,584)
Shares issued under DHRBERTRA (HE34(0)

open offer [note 34(d) 20238 162774 = = . = - 203012 - 23012
Shares issued under ABFROETRITRG

subscription of (GERIC)

new shares (note 34(e)) 17,702 45,987 - - - - - 63,689 - 63,689
Acquision of a subsidiary ~ WiEE— KA R (Hi3E20)

(note20) - - - - - - - - 34,208 34,208
Establishment of a new RiI-EHHEAR

subsidiary - - - - - - - - 241 24
Appropriation toreserves AR EE - - 1,601 - - - (1,601) - - -
Balance at R=B-=%+-A=1-A

31 December 2013 ikt 216,727 1,731,645 189,653 42,768 (13,668) (66,710) (1,007,357) 1,153,058 85,738 1,238,796

The notes on pages 74 to 168 form part of these financial statements. HE74Z168B Z M sF AR A IEIRE 2 — °
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Consolidated Cash
GERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZE_—ZT—
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A RE7I/(H)

Flow Statement

=ET-A=1+—HItFE

2013 2012
—E-=% —E--F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARETT ARBTT
Operating activities KETER
Loss before taxation BRI RIEE (125,565) (1,318,591)
Adjustments for: A
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE 170,874 202,830
Gain on disposals of property, plant and HENE  BERREBEHRE
equipment (2,717) -
Share of profits less losses of associates FEALHEE A R RERE B (2,238) (1,511)
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ impairment 4] + BiE R R4 HE
losses on property, plant and equipment BN (ER), 3HE (19,166) 161,200
Impairment losses on intangible assets BV EERERKLNE = 201,493
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREBRXWFIR - 208,237
Impairment losses on prepayments for raw B BFE R IB A
materials BERMEHE = 134,485
Write-down of inventories ZEMR 21,114 154,590
Impairment of trade debtors U E 5 RFURE 22,623 1,159
Finance costs BB A 107,265 110,967
Provision for warranty costs REARARNEE 13,547 1,672
Interest income from bank deposits BIRTERNR 2 WA (1,837) (4,430)
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) ERERE (k) 3,509 (2,051)
Changes in working capital: EEESEE .
Increase in inventories FEEM (38,421) (209,956)
Increase in trade and other receivables FEWN & 5 BR R R Ho A PR R R IE 1 N (134,550) (66,502)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments for raw — BRARIHFERTRIERL /(5 0)
materials 18,720 (62,537)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and EBNE SRR EMEMRE(RD),
other payables &0 (29,622) 277,426
Decrease in deferred income EEBARD (11,713) (202)
Cash used in operating activities RETHAARS (8,177) (201,721)
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")  BRETEARLME ([ HE ) FrEH
income tax refunded 6,570
Withholding tax paid ENENHIE (476) (858)
Net cash used in operating activities RETBHRARETE (2,083) (202,579)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement #r&BERER

for the year ended 31 December 2013 HE_—_ZE—=F+_A=+—HILtFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR #%I(&)
2013 2012
—E-=% —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MizE ARBT T ARBTT
Investing activities RETH
Payment for the acquisition of property, MEEYE  BENRREIHTE
plant and equipment (171,035) (122,378)
Capital injection to an associate n—EHEAREE (4,900) -
Decrease in deposits with banks with FRE A A=A U LNETERRED
original maturity over three months - 3,770
Decrease in amounts due from an associate  FEUN — B A RFIBRD 118,802 -
Net cash inflow from acquisition of WEE—EHB L TRERAFE
a subsidiary 20 18,442 -
Proceeds from disposals of property, HENE  BERRBEIE
plant and equipment 12,231 -
Interest received 2WAE 1,837 4,430
Net cash used in investing activities RETBFMARESTE (24,623) (114,178)
Financing activities MEEH
Placement of pledged bank deposits BERFCEBRITIER (187,319) (174,234)
Release of pledged bank deposits R EIKIFRITER 154,643 151,643
Proceeds from bank loans and other loans ~ $R{TEH R EME S FEZE 1,232,316 1,455,143
Repayment of bank loans and other loans ~ EEBRITERRHEER (1,242,196) (1,501,770)
Net proceeds from open offer NEREMSRETFE 34(d) 203,012 72,980
Net proceeds from subscription of new shares BB FT 578 F 48 34(e) 63,689 -
Interest paid 2RFE (116,331) (113,234)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEHFE(FTR)REBHE
financing activities 107,814 (109,472)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BERBEEEMHNEM (R )BE
cash equivalents 81,108 (426,229)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNRERBRESEEY
the beginning of the year 133,793 559,973
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ERZENEE (503) 49
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRASRBRESEEY
of the year 26 214,398 138,793

The notes on pages 74 to 168 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Br 7% ¥R 3% M &%

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1

74

R B AERAEN - AARKESIE)

Significant accounting policies

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group sustained
a net loss of RMB116,567,000 and as of that date, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB572,483,000. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had
cash and cash equivalents of RMB214,398,000 and short-
term bank loans, including current portion of long-term bank
loans of RMB1,114,482,000 and bonds issued due within one
year of RMB299,200,000. The liquidity of the Group is primarily
depending on its ability to maintain adequate cash flows from
operations, to renew its short-term bank loans and to obtain
adequate external financing to support its working capital and
meet its obligations and commitments when they become due.

SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED B3 ¥ 88/RIZRBR A
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bff&sRZ=MizE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1

Significant accounting policies (continueq)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The Group has carried out a review of its cash flow forecast
for the twelve months ending 31 December 2014. Based on
such forecast, the directors believe that adequate sources of
liquidity exist to fund the Group’s working capital and capital
expenditures requirements, and to meet its short term debt
obligations and other liabilities and commitments as they
become due. In preparing the cash flow forecast, management
has considered historical cash requirements of the Group,
as well as other key factors, including a new banking facility
obtained from one of the Group’s major banks with a total
amount of RMB1,200,000,000 and its ability to renew its
short-term bank loans during 2014.

Based on the above factors, the directors are confident that
the Group will have sufficient funding to enable the Group to
operate as going concern and meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due for at least 12 months from the
reporting date. Accordingly, the financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the value of assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interests
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the accounting policies set out below.

1

FESHBER @)

(b)

IR R RAELE (1)

AEECHESZE_Z—NFEF+_A=+—
BiE+=EANBELSREFEAELEMN - &
BZER  ESRARARBESER T
NAEENEEESREAHTERRAZ
HEETHEREREERAtME EHEK
E-ERESREEINS  BEECE
EAEEBTRESERREMTFEREZ - &
FERAEEEP-—BEBRTESHABEAA
FR#1,200,000,000 THERTRIER AR ==
—MEAEERERITERAIEES ©

EREXEZ - EBHEL  A5EEHEE
RHET  UEHEFELE  TRRAE
ERBEEAMERD T ZEANMBERE -
Hit - BHERRDESELSLEEERR - iy
REBAREUSELENTAEELSE &
FFHARUMREEEEZETWE S -
LU — PRI RE IR B ERAURE - XD
RMEHDBEFRBEERFRBDRERRE
EERABAE - ZERABNTELERE
BRI o

BE-ZE—=F+-A=1+—HLEFENEG
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ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3§ 75



Notes to the Financial Statements Bff&skz=RMizE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1

76

R ¥5I{E)

Significant accounting policies (continuedq)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 40.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bff&sRZ=MizE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR

1

Significant accounting policies (continueq)

(©

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1())).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bff&skz=RMizE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1

78

R ¥5I{E)

Significant accounting policies (continuedq)

(d)

Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 1(j)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bff&sRZ=MizE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 1(j)).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1j)(ii):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating leases
(see note 1(i); and

- other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportions of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(u)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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Significant accounting policies (continuedq)

)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

- Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years

—  Other fixed assets 5 years
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Construction in progress
Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1j)(ii).

Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as interest
expenses capitalised during the periods of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use are completed. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction in progress
until it is substantially ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group with a finite
estimated useful life are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1 j)(ii).
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (A AR

1

Significant accounting policies (continueq)

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives as follows:

- Patents 9 years
— Customer relationship 10 years
—  Customer contracts 1 year

Both the period and method of amortisation of intangible assets
are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal installments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.
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Significant accounting policies (continuedq)
Impairment of assets

()

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities and trade
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and trade and other
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in associates accounted for under
the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements (see note 1(d)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment as a whole with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 1(j)(i)). The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 1j)(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bff&sRZ=MizE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

1

Significant accounting policies (continueq)
Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and trade

and other receivables (continued)

- For trade and other receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is determined as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for receivables which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESTEHEXR®w
() Impairment of assets (continued) () EERE®
(i) Impairment of other assets (i)  EZERE

REERZREMBLEE B FRAAM
IRMEERR - PR TIEERS
AIREHIRRE - SAERRARERE
ERCTBFERERED :

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment; - YE- BEKREE

pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

intangible assets;

goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

—  construction in progress; -

EEIR;

EoEARBEEHERHANAE
&+ i A R R

BILEE

(G

RRABHBEARRRFAKE R E
HYIRE o

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable MEHBEARETR  FEHEEN
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the ARESEELGE o thih > BEEm
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not  AJ el £ FEE FEATMHE BURIRE

there is any indication of impairment. =R HREMRETR

84

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

1

Significant accounting policies (continueq)
Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of other assets (continued)

0

(k)

(i)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if measurable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.
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Significant accounting policies (continuedq)

(k)

Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(j)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Trade and other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continueq)

(0)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits
Salaries, annual bonuses and staff welfare costs are
accrued in the period in which the associated services
are rendered by employees of the Group. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their fair values.

(i) Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to local retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, Taiwan
and Hong Kong are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as
an expense.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate
to business combinations, items recognised directly in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.
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Significant accounting policies (continuedq)

@

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences, respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities
and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purpose, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continueq)

(@

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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Significant accounting policies (continuedq)
Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

("

()

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Company or the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other
payables. The fair value of financial guarantees issued
at the time of issuance is determined by reference
to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable,
or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates
of such information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Company’s or the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continueq)
Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

("

(s)

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer. Revenue excludes value added
tax and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Services rendered
Revenue from services rendered is recognised as and
when the services are performed or rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it
accrues using the effective interest method.
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Significant accounting policies (continuedq)

(s)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)  Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially as deferred income when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attached to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as other revenue in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are amortised to profit or
loss as other revenue over the useful life of the asset.

(v)  Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

Translation of foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and
circumstances relevant to that entity (“functional currency”).
The financial statements are presented in Renminbi Yuan
(“RMB”) (“reporting currency”).

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continueq)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated into RMB
at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use of sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(v) Research and development expenses
Expenditure on research and development is charged to profit
or loss as an expense when incurred.

(w) Related parties
(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  bhas control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group.

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(v) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

(vl A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

1

Significant accounting policies (continueq)
(w) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
have a majority of these criteria.

Prepayments to suppliers

Prepayments to suppliers which use to offset against future
purchases of raw materials are stated at cost less impairment
losses. Impairment of prepayments to suppliers are recognised
when there is objective evidence that the economic benefits
expected to be received under the purchase agreements are
less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the contractual
obligations; or the financial conditions of the suppliers
deteriorate. Impairment losses are measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the prepayments and the
economic benefits expected to be received under the purchase
agreements which take into consideration the projected
revenue, related expenses, capital spending and other costs.
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E#5IE)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Of these, the following developments
are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 18, Fair value measurement

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

(@)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions
are met from those that would never be reclassified to profit or
loss. The Group’s presentation of other comprehensive income
in these financial statements has been modified accordingly. In
addition the Group has chosen to use the new titles “Statement
of profit or loss” and “Statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income” as introduced by the amendments in
the financial statements.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating to the
preparation of consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC
12 Consolidation — Special purpose entities. It introduces a
single control model to determine whether an investee should
be consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity has power
over the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and the ability to use its power
to affect the amount of those returns.
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2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements
(continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to determining
whether it has control over an investee. The adoption does not
change any of the control conclusions reached by the Group
in respect of its involvement with other entities as at 1 January
2013.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures required by
HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than those previously
required by the respective standards. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has
provided those disclosures in notes 19 and 21.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 183 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs
with a single source of fair value measurement guidance.
HKFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure requirements
about fair value measurements for both financial instruments
and non-financial instruments. To the extent that the
requirements are applicable to the Group, the Group has
provided those disclosures in note 39.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments
to five standards with consequential amendments to other
standards and interpretations. Among them, HKAS 34 has
been amended to clarify that total assets for a particular
reportable segment are required to be disclosed only if the
amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker (CODM) and only if there has been a material change
in the total assets for that segment from the amount disclosed
in the last annual financial statements. The amendment also
requires the disclosure of segment liabilities if the amounts are
regularly provided to the CODM and there has been a material
change in the amounts compared with the last annual financial
statements. In respect of this amendment, the Group has
continued to disclose segment assets and now also discloses
segment liabilities in note 13.
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2 Changes in accounting policies (continued) 2 EBIBEREH @
()  Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Disclosures — Offsetting ) BEMKEKEERE7TIHRMBEIT AN -
financial assets and financial liabilities E-RENEEERMKEAE
The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of BBEEIIRIRENEEERMKEAGESIAH
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those new WERTE - RIBBBSHERIEI25R - HHF
disclosures are required for all recognised financial instruments TH:Z2JEENAECEIVBIE KU
that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32, Financial RZEZ RGN TEFRLEERHSRE
instruments: Presentation and those that are subject to an HUMBEIARRZNEUGEMRRNE
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement BRMKEIA  HAFLEZEHEE > M-
that covers similar financial instruments and transactions, MZENETIAERARCREEBEERNSE
irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set off in 30IRIELY o AL BTN T EEEHBR
accordance with HKAS 32. The adoption of the amendments RENTE  RERAEELEKETKET
does not have an impact on these financial statements B NEITVAFREERERBOUGE
because the group has not offset financial instruments, nor has MEHR 2B BREE B HERELER
it entered into master netting arrangement or similar agreement ETHRAEHEE o
which is subject to the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the
periods presented.
3 Turnover 3 EXEH
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacturing, AEEFEERAZEREURAKGHEERR S SHE
trading and provision of processing services for polysilicon and fE EANEE  BERREHZSEEURABGAE
monocrystalline and multicrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers, the ERZRER TEANMIRE REREEABE
manufacturing and trading of monocrystalline silicon solar cells, BREEESURARAGEZERRAGUARKE R
the manufacturing and trading of photovoltaic modules, installation REEB UL o
of photovoltaic systems and the operating of photovoltaic power
plants.
Turnover represents the sales value of goods and electricity supplied EEREHRETEFEYRENNEERCRIZE
to customers less value added tax and trade discounts and income HRESHMN) UREMHMTRBIABURA  F
from the provision of processing services. The amount of each A BERNEEEPEIZNEARAERIWOT :
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during the
year is as follows:
2013 2012
== —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ET T
Sales of polysilicon and monocrystalline and HEZRERAKIGREERRE
multicrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers RZRERE EE 524,150 398,971
Sales of monocrystalline silicon solar cells HEXIGREERESHT 204,637 208,684
Sales of photovoltaic modules HEXREMH 1,327,876 149,878
Processing service fees MMIREE 81,624 239,303
Sales of electricity generated HEED 12,041 -
2,150,328 996,836
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3 Turnover (continued) 3 EXEH@
During the year ended 31 December 2013, 85% (2012: 56%) of BE-T—=F+-A=1+—HLEE E%H
turnover was derived from the five largest customers. 85%(=F——fF : 56%) REABRAEF °
Turnover from major customers, each of whom amounted to 10% REFTEEFMEERE  SEGEEETE10%HA
or more of the total turnover, is set out below: EEHSIWT :

2013 2012
—F2—= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBT T

Customer A Z2FEA 1,523,259 119,173
Customer B =FB * 126,315
Customer C ZFEC * 115,643
Customer D =FED * 105,627
* The sales value is less than 10% of the total turnover. ¥ HESEEBEETEI0%MUT ©
Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are BRARNEEEEXBIE— T HFBERA T ERTM
disclosed in note 13 to these financial statements. FF13

4 Other revenue 4 HMBKA

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®BT T

Government grants (note 31) BUF R (BEES1) 24,654 41,033
Interest income from bank deposits RITEROREWA 1,837 4,430
Compensation received from a contractor for — BIZE R 3E ¢ (R 3% T uh m W EURGERS
the delay of construction of a photovoltaic BT {E
power plant 28,700 -
Others Hith 6,229 10,345
61,420 55,808
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(Expressed in Renminbi)  (JAA R#%I(&)

5 Other net (loss)/income 5 Hfb(EE) WARE

2013 2012
—E-—= —E-—f
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREETTT

Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain HNE (B518) R F 58 (2,324) 3,698
6 Loss before taxation 6 KRBAEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREATEEE MR, (FTA)

2013 2012
=== —E-—fF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBF T

(@) Finance costs (@) mERK
Interests on bank and other loans wholly BERAEFAEEESNRITR
repayable within five years HihEFFE 99,236 97,648
Interests on bonds BEHFE 15,393 16,019

Total interest expenses on financial liabilities FERATFEMERIRSI RIS

not at fair value through profit or loss BENRSMXEE 114,629 113,667
Less: interest expenses capitalised into B ERIBRERMEF SR
construction in progress * (7,364) (2,700)
107,265 110,967
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 7.04% to 8.32% * EERACRERNERT.04%E8.32% (=B ——4F :
(2012: 6.65% to 8.32%) per annum. 6.65%Z8.32%) F LAE AL o
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(Expressed in Renminbi)  (JAA REEFIE)

6 Loss before taxation (continued)

6 PFRTATEE @)

2013 2012
—E—= —Z2——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT AR¥ETT

(b) Staff costs (b) BIRAE
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRETEIHRR 20,568 16,678
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMIER 135,693 112,483
156,261 129,161

(c) Auditor’s remuneration (c) BHmME

Audit services BERE 2,972 2,075
Tax services IR 59 64
Other services H PR 440 2,221
3,471 4,360

(d) Other items (d HfnEg
Amortisation of lease prepayments HEREMTIaEE 2,521 2,497
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHN = 26,591
Depreciation e 168,353 173,742
Provision for warranty costs R 2 #45 13,547 1,672
Operating lease charges — properties KEHETH-WFE 1,209 1,266
Research and development costs e R B 3 A 81,808 90,994
Impairment of trade receivables FEURE 5 BRFURIE 22,623 1,159
Write-down of inventories FEMR 21,114 154,590
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(Expressed in Renminbi)  (JAA REEFIE)

7

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents:

7

REBERRAMES

(@)

FRBHERAMSHAR

2013 2012
—E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETT ARBF T
Current tax - the PRC BENEABi 18 — b
Provision for the year FERE 1,266 -
Over-provision in respect of prior years BAFEBERE = (5,845)
1,266 (5,845)
Withholding tax FEMB 476 858
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary B 5B 2 IR R E (MFEE29())
differences (note 29(b)) (10,740) (18,551)
Income tax iS4 (8,998) (23,538)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the year ended 31 December 2012. No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group either did not
have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
or have accumulated tax losses brought forward from previous
years to offset the estimated profits for the period.

Pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and regulations of the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and the Cayman Islands, the Group
is not subject to any income tax in BVI and the Cayman Islands.

The statutory tax rate applicable to DCH Solargiga GmbH.
(“DCH Solargiga”) is 15% for the year ended 31 December
2013. No provision for Germany Profits Tax has been made as
DCH Solargiga did not have any assessable profits subject to
Germany Profits Tax for the year.
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R#E%I|(E)

7 Income tax in the consolidated statement 7 #SZ&8ERXRRAME @
of profit or loss (continued)
(@ Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss @ FEBBERAMESHAEK @ (&)
represents: (continued)
The PRC subsidiaries of the Group were subject to the AEBHEHBLARARBE-Z—=FK=
following income tax rates for both years ended 31 December E-—-F+Z A=+ BLEMBEFEHEZENU
2013 and 2012: TREHMABH
2012
—E-CF
%
Shanghai Jingji Electronic Materials Co., &K EFMEERAT (&)
Ltd. (“Jingji”) 25 25
Jinzhou Jingji Solar Technology Co., Ltd. 8N &k KRR EERHEZ AR AT
(“Jinzhou Jingji”) (E:20 24 25 25
Jinzhou Rixin Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.  $8M B &EMEAERIT(TEE))
(“Rixin”) (note (i) (B3EG) 15 15
Jinzhou Youhua Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. $& MGz RIAR A T (MR 1)
(“Youhua Silicon”) 25 25
Jinzhou Yangguang Energy. Co., Ltd. ERMNBE K REIRE PR A B ([ $7MB5 3 1)
(“Yangguang”) (note (i)) (B=E() 15 15
Jinzhou Jinmao Photovoltaic Technology — $8N 8 R EHEBR A T
Co., Ltd. (“Jinzhou Jinmao”) (T 8841 8333 ) 25 25
Solargiga Energy (Qinghai) Co., Ltd. EXEER(FE)ERAR(EEELD
(“Qinghai”) 25 25
Jinzhou Huachang Photovoltaic SBMNEE R RRHEBERA A
Technology Company Limited (FZEEHAR L) (BEEE())
(“Huachang Guangfu”) (note (ii)) 15 12.5
Golmud Solargiga Energy Electric Power &R KEERE HERA A
Company Limited (“Golmud”) (note (iii)) (M&FA D) (BEEEGi) - -
()  Rixin and Yangguang have been accredited as “High and () HBERBMNEEIFINR=ZZB——FR=
New Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government Z-_FREBABNERIR AR &H
authority in 2011 and 2012, respectively, for a term of BELE] 2B=Z——F—A—
three years commencing from 1 January 2011 and 1 BR—Z——F—HF— Btk AE=
January 2012, respectively, and have been registered F WEOEMRBEKERRT  FeE
with the local tax authority to be eligible to a reduced BEEERRENWIS%EEREBHRE -
corporate income tax rate of 15%. Accordingly, these Hit - ZEMBRAARBE=-Z—=F
subsidiaries are subject to the 15% corporate income tax R—Z——F+-F=+—HLEFER

rate for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the year 15% LS B RHH o
ended 31 December 2012.
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7 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (continued)
(@ Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Huachang Guangfu was entitled to a tax holiday of a
2-year full exemption followed by a 3-year 50% reduction
income tax rate commencing on 1 January 2008 (“2+3
Holiday”). Accordingly, Huachang Guangfu was subject
to income tax at 12.5% from 2010 to 2012. Meanwhile,
Huachang Guangfu was also accredited as “High and
New Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government
authority in 2011 for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2011 and has been registered with the
local tax authority to be eligible to a reduced corporate
income tax rate of 15%. Accordingly, Huachang Guangfu
is subject to income tax at 12.5% in 2012 and 15% in
2013.

Golmud was entitled to a tax holiday of a 3-year full
exemption followed by a 3-year 50% reduction income
tax rate commencing from 1 January 2011 (“3+3
Holiday”). Accordingly, Golmud is subject to a full income
tax exemption from 2011 to 2013.

The over-provision in respect of prior years arose from the

reversal of a tax provision upon agreement with the relevant

tax authority on the deductibility of certain expenses.
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(@)

FRBERAMEHAR  (5)
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H]) o At - EEXRR=-Z—ZFZ
“E-_FHFEHRER12.5% o HEit
Bl EEXRTIR=-Z——FEFE
ERRTF SRR AE Y B=F
——F—A—HARARH=F > WEEE
FBREEST  FEEKREZERRE
HI15%EEFEBIE - HILt » EEHXRK
RIE-——FR-ZE-—=FHREHE
2BIE12.5%K%15% °

(i) WEAB=Z——F—B—BBK=F
RERRBMTER  HE=FERZ
—H SRR R ([3+3FHHEEEI]) ©
Hit AR -ZE——FEZ=_T—=
FERBGHBMEEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&h &Mzt
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A REFI(H)

it

7 Income tax in the consolidated statement 7 HSRAEBIRAAEBHR @
of profit or loss (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting loss at (b) FBIERERBEATRTENSTEELR
applicable tax rates:

A

2012
—E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®BT T

Loss before taxation BERIEE (125,565) (1,318,591)
Notional tax on loss before taxation BRI ATE BN BERIIE  R25%1

calculated at 25% BEHE (31,391) (329,648)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses Aa B ENF B 12,599 62,796
Tax effect of non-taxable income BANBIRANRETE (6,532) (14,498)
Effect of tax rate differential TE R EIE 3,400 18,046
Effect of tax concessions obtained FrERKEENSE 2,386 71,662

De-recognition of deferred tax liabilities in - EUEERRBE FE R D BAEHVEL
respect of previous years’ undistributed  FIEEE

profits (9,925) (6,276)
De-recognition of deferred tax liabilities ~ BUARERBT FERRNELHBAE

recognised in previous years (5,995) (1,574)
De-recognition of deferred tax assets EBUERRBIFERINELHEEE

recognised in previous years 4,329 14,293
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax B f 2 Al 14 R RN T B &R

losses (8,286) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses not EARBERNAB AT ESENHRKTE

recognised 59,940 116,427
Tax effect of deductible temporary o] SRR EL At AT R B B = 5RO

differences not recognised RigE & (29,663) 50,170
Withholding tax on interest income FE WA TEMH 476 858
Over-provision in respect of prior years B 1F & EHBLBRHE - (5,845)
Others Hith (336) 51
Actual tax credit ERHEER (8,998) (23,538)
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(AAREZIE)

8 Loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company

The Company’s loss for the year is RMB13,747,000 (2012:
RMB438,240,000). After excluding the impairment of interests in
subsidiaries of RMBNIl (2012: RMB424,252,000), the consolidated
loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company that has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company is a loss
of RMB13,747,000 (2012: RMB13,988,000).

10

Dividends

(@)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
RMBNIl).

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year

The directors of the Company did not recommend in the year
ended 31 December 2013 the payment of a final dividend
attributable to the previous financial year (2012: RMBNIl).

Loss per share

(@)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
of RMB135,504,000 (2012: RMB1,276,554,000) and the
weighted average of 2,968,027,879 (2012: 2,279,802,481)
ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the year as
calculated in note 10(b).

106 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED g ¥ 86 E =it AR A T

10

RRaEmRREGER

AABRFERFIEAARE13747,000T (==
—— & : AR#438,240,0007T) o RINERA M B
RARBHEARBEZT(ZZ——F : AR
424,252,00070) % @ AR BRESRRELGEEER
AR®E13,747,000 t BB (= F——F : ARY
13,988,0007t) » M E RARA B IEHRER P EE ©

9=\
(@) ARTREZRREGFRENRE

ARABESTEZMEBE-Z-—_FK-F
— =+ A=+ -HLEFERERARE -

b) RERAERSMN E—EMRFER
NAABEERRRE

AABESTEZNEE-E-——_FK=-F
— =5 +ZA=t+—HILFERE LA K
FEBEHARBPRE

BREE

@ BREREIE
BREREFEDREAADZBEREZRR
g B A R® 135,504,000t (Z & —=
£ AR¥1,276,554,000 7T ) B R 3% [} &%
100) B A RN ENERARATCRTEE
&IN5 IR 2,968,027 879 R (=& — =
1 2,279,802,4811%) 5T E -
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10 Loss per share (continued)

(b)

10 EREE @)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (o) HIBBRHNFEF 5L

Number of ordinary shares

ZEREE
2012
—E-_F
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January RN—A—BAERTZER 2,491,300,472 2,242,170,425
Effect of shares issued under open offer  NABIESEEITIRD W E (MIFE34(d))
(note 34(d)) 344,004,229 12,252,297
Effect of the bonus element on shares REBEROBITANBIN
issued under open offer e - 25,379,759
Effect of shares issued under new share IR REBEBITIRIPVSE
subscription (note 34(g)) (FfFzE34(e)) 132,723,178 -
Weighted average number of ordinary B IETF IR E
shares 2,968,027,879 2,279,802,481
(c) Diluted earnings per share ) BRESFRERA
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during RBE-ZT—-—"FfR=-ZF—-=5+=A

the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013.

St—HIEFE  UEEEHENSBTE
R e
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11 Directors’ remuneration 11 EEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of Hong RIEBBARFA61RMIEZENESHESWT ¢
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

2013
—E-=F
Basic
salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme

in kind contributions
BEXEE
BER IR
e BRI &I st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT

Executive directors HITES
Tan Wenhua EBVE - 1,110 19 1,129
Hsu You Yuan B2y - 1,263 12 1,275
Zhang Liming (note (i)) SREERA (FHEE()) = - - -
Tan Xin EH - 363 30 393
Wang Chunwei (note (ii) E B (BHE() - 288 14 302
Non-executive director FHTES
Chiao Ping Hai (note (i) TR (B k(i) 40 = = 40
Independent non-executive BIYEHTES

directors
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert Tk 96 - - 96
Fu Shuangye NERE 96 - - 96
Lin Wen b9 96 - - 96
Zhang Chun wiE 96 - - 96
Total Mt 424 3,024 75 3,523
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11 Directors’ remuneration 11 EEfME
2012
—E2-CF
Basic
salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
ER BIR
e EUFs ST “st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®T T ARET T ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Tan Wenhua B - 1,227 14 1,241
Hsu You Yuan ] - 1,373 11 1,384
Zhang Liming R - - - -
Tan Xin Es - 376 25 401
Non-executive director FHTES
Chiao Ping Hai e 139 - - 139
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert FoxEE 139 - - 139
Fu Shuangye RE 139 - - 139
Lin Wen 98 139 - - 139
Zhang Chun R 139 - - 139
Total Foy 695 2,976 50 3,721
Notes: Bt -
()  Retired on 27 June 2013. ) R=F-=F~A=ttRARE-
(i)  Appointed on 27 June 2013. i) R=F-—=F A=t tAREZRE-
(i) Resigned on 1 June 2013. (i) R=F-—=FAB—HEEI-
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12

(AAR®SIE)

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2012:
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining two
(2012: two) individuals with the highest emoluments are as follows:

12

REHM AL

"E&

SHFMATHE=R(ZB—=F:

=8)B

BE  HENFHRHENHE B TME(=
——F . MB) R HMA THFHENEZENT ¢

2013 2012

—F—= —E-—_F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  E7&KH €  BEREIREYRIZ 1,055 908

Retirement scheme contributions BRETEMER 24 14

1,079 922
The emoluments of the remaining two (2012: two) individuals with BTME(ZZE—ZF : MB)BRaHMA LM

the highest emoluments are within the following bands: BUT4AR :

2013 2012

—E—= - fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,00058 7T 2 2

13 Segment reporting 13 28R E

In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported RERBERERIEMS » ARERRESEE
internally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the BReRTHEBASRNRZHREN —FHWAR B
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment, the RO REDE (KBRS REUARERRS

Group has identified four reportable segments: (i) the manufacturing RS EARE  BEERRASEEUARERR
of, trading of and provision of processing services for polysilicon ZEEde SR MTRHB (T 2EALD 5 ()X RAM
and monocrystalline and multicrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers REREEURKARRZRZE (2B 5 (i) K5
(“Segment A”); (i) the manufacturing of and trading of photovoltaic RESEENHEREE(2HCL) ; RivEEX
modules and installation of photovoltaic systems (“Segment B”); (ii) REEIE ([ FD)) - WEEHHEE D EAAM I
the manufacturing and trading of monocrystalline silicon solar cells ZRHEDH o LBHFREARHB S MBI — 2

(“Segment C”); and (iv) the operating of photovoltaic power plants
(“Segment D”). No operating segments have been aggregated to
form these reportable segments. Comparative figures have been
provided on a basis consistent with the current period segment
analysis. Revenue, costs and expenses are allocated to those
reportable segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the costs and expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistances provided by one segment to another are not
measured.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

13 Segment reporting (continued)

(AAR¥FI(E)

13

D ERERE (@)

(@ Segment results, assets and liabilities @ DPPEE EEREE
For the purpose of assessing segment performance and AFEIMBREARAIBEIEER » A&
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most ERERTHEBAESERSARE DI
senior executive management monitors the results, assets and EiENESE EEREE(RBAREE KR
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the bases REJWERE) - HROAKEE RS RITHE
as they are presented in the Group’s financial statements. BEAERENEERNSEIRED FNER
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as HFHWT -
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the period is set out below:
Segment A Segment B Segment C Segment D* Total
2HA 728 2ic 2D EH)
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
SE-CF pmEsgmi T2 kot —2-SF blgmb —T-CF g —T-CF gty
RMB'000 QRIY/S3000N RMB'000 EaiYiz{00N RMB’000 EERIY(S{0edR RMB'000 EEIY:N00oN RMB’000 Y040}
NG ST ARET T PSP ARET T PN S ARET T PSS ARET T PN Ewm ARBT T

Revenue from external RENREFH

customers W 579,143 510,375 1,354,507 211,750 204,637 274,711 12,041 - 2,150,328 996,836
Inter-segment revenue IR 424,878 300,086 - - 455627 91,456 - - 880505 391,542
Reportable segment revenue T2 HliE 1,004,021 810461 1,354,507 211,750 660,264 366,167 12,041 - 3,030,833 1,388,378
Reportable segment profit/ ERUHENTD

(Ioss) for the year B/ (E8) (206,234) (724,058 27,626 19,595 61,507  (590,590) 534 - (116,567) (1,295,053
Interest income from bank deposits B &1 HIFIE

WA 1,474 3416 275 742 16 272 72 - 1,837 4,430

Interest expenses FISRX (58,231) (89,051) (27,878) (9,764) (16,180) (12,152) (4,976) - (107,265) (110,967
Depreciation and amortisation for ~ FRITER E

the year (128356) (135231)  (5,195) (4225  (32,011) (63374 (5312 - (170874 (202,830)
Share of profits less losses of EEEATFIE

assoclates HEE 2,238 1,511 - - - - - - 2,238 1511
Impairment of property, plantand ~ #1% + BERRE

equipment HE - (139,100) - - 19,166 (22,100) - - 19,166 (161,200)
Impairment of goodwil BERE - - - - - (208,237) - - - (208,237
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE - - - - - (201499) - - - (201499
Impairment of prepayments for raw 43 B AT K158

materials HE - (134,485) - - - - - - (134,485)
Impaiment of trade receivables  EWEZSRFEME  (22623)  (1,159) - - - - - - (22623 (1,159)
Wiite-down of inventories FEMH (20,522)  (145,189) (3 (9401) (589) - - - (21,114)  (154,590)
Reportable segment assets AREIBEE 2,436,191 3,046,328 = 743,331 216,074~ 716,657 681,756 343,995 - 4,240,174 3,944,658
(including interests in associates)  (BFEREE AT

HER) 74,568 124,457 - - - - - - 74568 124,457

Addltions to non-current segment  RERZERE A3

assets during the year BEEM 38434 165014 35,168 372 1,790 185 = 249,840 - 325232 165571
Reportable segment liabilities ~ ATHE 2 HEE 1,712,642 2,530,046 = 615,126 160,153 445624 203229 227,986 - 3,001,378 2,893,428
* As of 31 December 2013, the Group’s photovoltaic power plant * R-ZZB—=F+="H=+—8  x&EH*X

operating business was mainly conducted by a newly acquired
subsidiary. The details are disclosed in note 20.

RBEBUWEEEBEE B —FHPBEHELQ
BBEAT o FHERMIFE0HE -
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13 Segment reporting (continued)
(b) Geographic information

Substantially all of the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
lease prepayments, goodwill, intangible assets and interests in
associates are located or operated in the PRC. The following
table sets out information about the geographical location of

13 D EHE @)
b) HEEE

FEBEYE - BERRE  HERYFE
BE - BREERREE QA RNED LR
RERRFEEE - TREIBEAREER
BINRE P B as K 3E R B TR Y SRR PR AE it

, HEE - BFEMURSE RRIRBRE
the Group’s revenue from external customers and non-current 640 40 21 35 A o
prepayments. The geographical location of a customer is
based on the location to which the goods were delivered or
the services were provided.
() Revenue from external customers ()  REINIREFHK a2
2013 2012
—=—= —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT
The PRC (place of domicile) FRER A PE (FEfM b 2h) 368,310 541,816
Export sales HOEE
—Japan —BR 1,588,874 281,928
— Taiwan —/E 166,048 51,255
— Europe — &M 26,182 116,552
— North America —db 3 906 5,285
— Others —Hib 8 _
Sub-total INF 1,782,018 455,020
Total st 2,150,328 996,836
(i) Non-current prepayments (i) FETE LB
2012
—E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT
The PRC (place of domicile) Fp B KB (St ) 26,588
Overseas countries pisEINETES
- Germany — & 132,167 132,939
— The United States of America —EH 113,189 98,997
— Taiwan — B 70,577 62,601
—Japan — B 13,528 -
Sub-total PN 329,461 294,537
Total s 347,566 321,125
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R#E%I|(E)

14 Property, plant and equipment 14 Y% - BERRE
(@ The Group @ AE&EE
Plant,
machinery
Construction and Motor Fumniture
in progress Buildings equipment vehicles and fittings Total
BE K& FAR
ERIE BT e AE EEfE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Cost: B
At1 January 2012 RZE-—%-F-H 474,679 263,495 1,629,652 24,618 16,897 2,409,341
Exchange adjustments 3 3§% - - - - (1) (1)
Additions nE 107,156 1,267 3248 121 3824 115,616
Transfer in/{out) A/ (114,432 17,750 96,608 - 74 -
At31December 2012 WZZE-Z—F#+ZA=1-H 467,403 282,512 1,729,508 24,739 20,794 2,524,956
Accumulated BB RAESS :

depreciation and
impairment losses:

At1 January 2012 RZE-—f-F-H - 15,465 238,623 8,550 9,693 272,331
Exchange adjustments [ 8% - - - - (1) "
Depreciation for the year  FEHE - 13,268 152,573 4,722 3,179 173,742
Impairment losses HEEE - - 161,200 - - 161,200
At31December 2012 WZZE-—F+-A=1-H - 28,733 552,396 13,272 12,871 607,272
Net book value: BRERE
At 31 December 2012 R=Z-=%+=ZF=+-H 467,408 253,779 1,177,112 11,467 7,923 1,917,684
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R 5I/(H)

14 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 14 Y% - BERRE®@
(@) The Group (continued) @ ZAEE @)

Plant,
machinery
Construction and Motor Furniture
in progress Buildings  equipment vehicles  and fittings Total

BE - #E FER
ERIE BT K& nE EE£E At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR#TT AR#TT

Cost: 7%
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%-F-H 467,403 282,512 1,729,508 24,739 20,794 2,524,956
Exchange adjustments  [E 339 - - - = (85) (85)
Increase through FBRE - BB AN (f5E20)

acquisition of a subsidiary

(note 20) - 12,432 217,759 - 8 230,199
Additions RE 63,679 1,461 9,602 73 577 75,392
Disposals HE (1,262) - (10,600) (140) (15) (12,017)
Transfer in/{out) Z)/(ih) (376,977) 101,007 275,859 - 111 -
At31December 2013 RZE-=F+ZB=1+-H 152,843 397,412 2,222,128 24,672 21,390 2,818,445
Accumulated ZRERAERSE -

depreciation and

impairment losses:
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-F-H - 28,733 552,396 13,272 12,871 607,272
Exchange adjustments [ 5% - - - - (62) (62)
Depreciation for the year  FEHTE - 13,200 148,016 3,878 3,259 168,353
Written back on disposals &Rl - - (2,512) (126) (1) (2,639)
Reversal of impairment  Fi{EEBHER

losses - - (19,166) - - (19,166)
At31December 2013 RZE-=F+=ZA=1+-H - 41,933 678,734 17,024 16,067 753,758
Net book value: BERE:
At31December 2013 WZE-=F+ZB=1+-H 152,843 355,479 1,543,394 7,648 5,323 2,064,687
As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate net book value of R-ZE-—Z=F+=-F=+—H  xEEEEH
the secured property, plant and equipment of the Group was ME BERIENROFELABAARY
RMB212,447,000 (31 December 2012: RMBNIl) 212,447,000t (ZFE—=—F+=-A=+—H ' AR

M) ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R#E%I|(E)

14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

14 ¥ - BERRE @

(o) The Company (b) &AF
Office equipment
WARRE
RMB’000
ARBTT
Cost: BN
At 1 January 2012 R=ZZE——F—HA—H 102
Exchange adjustments [E R Q)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+=-HA=+—~H 101
Accumulated depreciation: HZIHE
At 1 January 2012 R=Z——%—A—H 90
Exchange adjustments R (1)
Depreciation for the year EERE 12
At 31 December 2012 R=E——-F+=-A=+—H 101

Net book value:
At 31 December 2012

SRTEHE
R=ZF-—=F+=-A=+—H

Office equipment

WMAERME
RMB’000
ARBTT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2013 N-—ZE—=F—F—H 101
Exchange adjustments [E ©)
At 31 December 2013 N-—Z=—=F+=-A=+—01 98
Accumulated depreciation: i E
At 1 January 2013 N=-—ZE—-=%—A—H 101
Exchange adjustments ERAZ @)
At 31 December 2013 N—ZE—=%F+=B=+—H 98

Net book value:
At 31 December 2013

RRENFE -
R-B-—=%5+=A=+—H
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

R ¥5I{E)

14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(©)

(d)

Substantially all of the Group’s property, plant and equipment is
located in the PRC.

The Group has yet to obtain property ownership certificates
for certain buildings included in property, plant and equipment
with an aggregate net book value of RMB198,447,000 as at
31 December 2013 (831 December 2012: RMB247,143,800).
Notwithstanding this, the directors are of the opinion that the
Group owned the beneficial title to these buildings as at 31
December 2013.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assessed the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment of each cash-generating unit (‘“CGU”) as at 31
December 2012 and 2013. As a result, the carrying amount
of certain property, plant and equipment was written down by
RMB161,200,000 as at 31 December 2012.

In 2013, for satisfying the significantly increased purchase
demand of the Group’s largest customer for photovoltaic
modules, the Group’s solar cells manufacturing and trading
CGU (Segment C) significantly increased its production and
sales volume to the photovoltaic modules manufacturing
and trading CGU (Segment B) and improved its results of
operations in the year (see note 13). In view of this current
situation and based on the estimated future cash flows of such
solar cells manufacturing and trading CGU by the latest sales
forecast, the Group reversed the impairment loss previously
provided for such CGU'’s property, plant and equipment by an
amount of RMB19,166,000 as at 31 December 2013.

Based on the estimated future cash flows of the other CGUs,
no further impairment losses were provided for them as at 31
December 2013. The estimated recoverable amounts were
based on the value in use of each individual CGU determined
by the estimated future cash flows discounted at a pre-tax
discount rate which ranged from 17.2% to 19.6% (2012:
16.5% to 18.6%).
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14 ¥ - BERRE @

(©

©)

REBEEYIE - BERRBIIURFE

AEBEKRESETHAYE  BERSE
EHNEFHNERMERE NR-_Z—=F
+T-A=+—RB  ZERFHNEREFEELE
A ANR198,447000 L (=2 ——F +=
B=+—H: AR®¥247,143,8007t) &R
M EERR AEER-_Z—=5+=A4
=t+-—BFEZSETNEREE -

M BMERZRERE
RZEBE-——FR-_ZF—=F+-A=+-—
B AEBEFESESELESEN(REE
SEBENDHYE BRERIEHTKRE S
HoRl R=ZF—=—F+=A=+—8"
ETWE BMERSENRAEERKEAR
#161,200,0007T °

R-Z—=F AREAEEREAEZEF KIE
MR RAGHREETR » AEBE KRGS
HBER BENIRSEEEMN(HEC) KigE
MELEERHEXRAGREREENRS
EEBN(DIB)NEERE » UTKSHFEL
R (RMEE13) o A B BB R & BT 8
ERRMRRIEZAGREE R ERBEN
BeELBEMNNETRRBESRE  R=F
—=F5+-A=+—08  AEERE LB
EZRESEEENNYE  BRERZERE
EBIENEE  BEeEA ARY19,166,000

JC °

REEMBESEEEVNMETRRELSR
B RIZE-—=F1+=ZA=+-—8  #BEHN
E—SREFBELRE - GsrkEeE
DRESENRESEESEMNERERGR
NF17.2%F19.6%(=F——F : 16.5% &
18.6%) KB AT IT IR RITH WA RRBER
BEE)NE -



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&h &Mzt
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A REFI(H)

14 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

() Property, plant and equipment leased out under
operating leases
The Group leases out a limited portion of land and buildings
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an average
period of twenty years, with an option to renew the leases
upon expiry at which time all terms are renegotiated. None of
the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

14 ¥ - BERRE @

()

RBLLHEHENYE - BERR
&
AEBRBLEREHER DD L1 R 12
T o ZEHE-RFHIRP=-15F  ARE
mEREEREE  MARKERERRE
FER - 2EHEYNERIAESE -

REBRE T A HE KL HE R R R EK
REEFBEEMT -

The Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—= —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT

Within 1 year —F R 1,845 1,728
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREBREER 7,378 6,911
After 5 years "EE 4,967 6,695

14,190 15,334
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A R¥%I(8)
15 Intangible assets 15 BFEEE
The Group
A%E
Customer Customer
relationships contracts Patents Total
EF@RF BEFEHN -] k]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T ARBTT ARBTR
Cost: B

At 1 January and 31 December 2012 AZZE——H—A—AK
+=B=+—H 185,230 2,411 67,228 254,869

Accumulated amortisation and R EBERRERSE -
impairment losses:

At 1 January 2012 W-E——F#—H—H 16,979 2,411 7,395 26,785
Amortisation for the year FEHH 18,524 - 8,067 26,591
Impairment losses REEE 149,727 - 51,766 201,493
At 31 December 2012 W-EB——&F+=-g=+—8 185,230 2,411 67,228 254,869
Net book value: IRERE -

At 31 December 2012 HNZZE—=—F+=H=+—H - - - -
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A REFI(H)

15 Intangible assets (continued)

Cost:

At 1 January and 31 December 2013

AR

R=ZB-=%F-A-HRK
+=A=+-H

15 B EE @)

Customer
relationships

EFR%
RMB’000

AR%TFT

185,230

The Group
A%

Customer
contracts
BEFEHN
RMB’000
ARBTT

Patents Total
=7 ok
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR¥TR

67,228 254,869

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses:

At 1 January and 31 December 2013

185,230

67,228 254,869

Net book value:

At 31 December 2013

RZE-—=F+=ZA=+—H
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\ R #&Z) ‘::‘

(Expressed in Renminbi)

15 Intangible assets (continued)
The amortisation charge is included in “administrative expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets and goodwill as disclosed in note 16 are related to
the Group’s Segment C (see note 13) which is considered to be a
CGU.

Since the last quarter of 2011, the Group’s solar cell business which
is related to Segment C had been severely affected by the weak
demand of the solar market and the significant drop in prices of
solar products. As such, the Group recognised an impairment of
RMB208,237,000 for the goodwill allocated to the segment in the
first half year of 2012 and an impairment of RMB201,493,000 for
the intangible assets of the segment in the second half year of 2012.
The impairments were determined with reference to the recoverable
amount of the CGU based on value-in-use calculations.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below.

BELEE®

BRI AGRSRERPTHMAX] -

B EERNHFEICHEBENEHERARERRS
REELENVNDEC(RKMEE13)HRE -

BE-Z——FENIER  AEEHESIBCHEN
ARG REE it R ARG AT 5 FRIKKR K K5 EE
BERAXBETERMZARESE - Hit  XEES
RIBE-——F LEERINI BEHEREAARYE
208,237,0007C * RZZE——FT¥FHRAM DT
ELEERESARE201,493,0007T - BRIRE
RECHEEFELAZRRSEEEMNTRES

FEEEE o

e e BN TNE SRR EAEENE%

o HESERREEEORRNEE IR EE
MRS RRAE - BEMUIME SRBETFIE
S b SR o

2012

—E——F

%

Growth rate WER 3
Discount rate IR =ER 16.5

The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the business in which the CGU operates. The discount rate used
is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the segment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&h &Mzt
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ARX%I(E)

16 Goodwill 16 &

The Group
G
2013 2012
=== —E2-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR®BTT

Cost: BN :

At 1 January and 31 December H—A—BKR+=BA=+—H 208,237 208,237
Accumulated impairment losses: ZEREEE :

At 1 January ®—A—H 208,237 -
Impairment losses WEEE - 208,237
At 31 December Wt+=A=+—8 208,237 208,237
Carrying amount: FREE :

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H - -
As disclosed in note 15, goodwill of RMB208,237,000 has been fully AN EE15FTIRE - A R #5208,237,000 T K&
impaired during the year ended 31 December 2012. ERBE_E——F+-A=1+—HLFEEERN

{Eo
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R¥5I{E)

17 Lease prepayments 17 HEFENRIE
The Group
AEE

2013 2012
—=—= —E-—fF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBF T

Cost: BN :
At 1 January m—A—H 110,081 110,081
Increase through acquisition of a subsidiary B s — M E A B8 (FiEE20)

(note 20) 19,641 -
Disposals HE (136) -
At 31 December HN+=—HA=+—8H 129,586 110,081
Accumulated amortisation: HETEe -

At 1 January H—B—H 8,720 6,223
Amortisation for the year FREHE 2,521 2,497
At 31 December Wt+=—BA=+—H 11,241 8,720
Net book value: BREFE :

At 31 December W+=—HB=+—8H 118,345 101,361
Lease prepayments represent the payments made on the HEEAREERNENCEHEETHEEN T
acquisitions of the lands held under operating leases. FrfEHIFR ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R#E%I|(E)

18

Prepayments for raw materials

In order to secure a stable supply of polysilicon materials, the Group
entered into short-term and long-term contracts with certain raw
material suppliers and made advance payments to these suppliers
which are to be offset against future purchases. Prepayments for
raw materials where the Group expects to take the receipts of the
raw materials more than twelve months after the end of the reporting
period are classified as non-current assets. Included in non-current
prepayments for raw materials is a prepayment made to related
party of RMB4,301,000 (31 December 2012: RMB76,591,000) as at
31 December 2013 (note 35(d)).

As at 31 December 2012, management assessed the prepayments
for potential impairment and identified that two of the suppliers
were in financial difficulties and were most likely to default on the
deliveries of raw materials to the Group and therefore, provided a
provision of RMB134,485,000. Based on the assessment updated
by management in 2013, no further impairment was provided as at
31 December 2013.

18 EMEFEN KA

ARREBESLRERMHEE  AEBEEE TR
MEMBEERT L EHR RSO mZE MRS
RHFEMNFRIE > ZEREKR ARBERIKE - WK
SEEHRREHREEAR T @A N LARE
WIE B R AT RHME B W TE R FIE S A ERBEE ©
R-ZZB—=F+-A=+—8 ' st AERBNEMN
REMREEEX N TEEATHBEARBARYE
4,301,000t(ZZE——F+=-A=+—H : AR¥
76,591,0007¢) (FIFE35(d)) °

R-Z——F+-—F=+—H BEBEECHBELR
BRGEEREE G - YEZAM B HERDHR
WIS R B T fE A M AR B R A EAM R o FUbiE
A RME134,485,000 Tt M1 - IRIBEEER =
Z-=FNEFTIE EER_Z=—=F1+-A8
=+ —AEHE—DRERE -

19 Investments in subsidiaries 19 REBARNIKRE
The Company
AT

2013 2012

—F—= —E—_F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR®F T

Unlisted shares, at cost at 1 January R—A—BWFELTRG TR 754,090 753,951
Exchange adjustments R (22,897) 139

Unlisted shares, at cost at 31 December R+=ZA=+—AM3kELmKf -

BRI 731,193 754,090
Impairment losses BIEEE (424,252) (424,252)
306,941 329,838

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR B A RIFE 1,373,635 1,425,692
1,680,576 1,755,530
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(Expressed in Renminbi)  (JAA REEFIE)

19 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed term of repayment. The amounts are not expected to
be recovered within one year.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, impairment losses
of RMB424,252,000 was recognised in profit or loss which
was attributable to the deterioration of subsidiaries’ business
performances giving rise to an unfavourable change to the
recoverable amount which was determined based on the present
value of the expected cash flows arising from the subsidiaries’
operations. The discount rate applied to the future cash flows was
16.5%.

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

19 RKEB A RINIKRE @)

BUHEARFESEER  REREEEEN
H o ZEFRY AR —FAKE -

BE-_ZT-——F+-HA=1+—HILFE  REESE
AR#®424,252,000c A B ER - DHRHEA
PEBRREEMEZRENB A RIEENTELRR
EREREEENATRESEHBETNEE - EA
RARBESHRENIEEEE16.5% °

TRESIEFELEEXE  EEJRENNE
DEFE - RIESZAE - MSFENROER S
B °

Proportion of ownership interest

PR L
Place and date of  Authorised/ Group’s Held Held
incorporation/ registered/paid-in/ effective by the bya Principal
Name of company operation issued capital interest Company subsidiary activities Legal form
Bl EE /T AEEH  BAAR B—-HEHE
AR BB ReEwHR ALY B/ CRITER  BBREZ BE QARARE IEEHR EERR
% % %

Jinzhou Rixin Silicon The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Manufacturingand  Limited liability
Materials Co., Ltd. 9 May 2007 paid-in capital of processing of company
(“Rixin”) FE RMB190,000,000 monocrystaline  BREEAT

30 B BEMBAR —ETLHF AMREHER ingots/wafers
AR(TAE)) TANA AR HERMIES

190,000,0007T B R

Jinzhou Jingji Solar The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Manufacturingand  Limited liability
Technology Co., Ltd. 19 December paid-in capital of processing of company
(“Jinzhou Jingji”) 2007 US$17,500,000 monocrystaline  BREEAT

N RBE ARG AR H AMREHEAR wafers
BRABTHMERD) ZZFLHF 17,500,000% 7T RERMIESES

TZA+hA

Jinzhou Yangguang The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Manufacturingand  Limited liability
Energy Co., Ltd. 15 December paid-in capital of processing of company
(“Yangguang”)*** 2004 RMB1,030,000,000 monocrystaline  BREEAT

BMNEXEEERAR  F AR EHER and multicrystalline
(TERMBZ 1) —ETME AR® ingots/wafers

+ZAtEA 1,030,000,0007T BERNTIES
LR HA
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(Expressed in Renminbi)  (JAA R#%I(H)

19 R B A RINERE @)

19 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

FrE RS L Bl
Place and date of  Authorised/ Group’s Held Held
incorporation/ registered/paid-in/ effective by the bya Principal
Name of company operation issued capital interest Company subsidiary activities Legal form
KL R/ AEEH  REAAFE B—-HEKE
NGRS REWER AH B/ CRITER  BERER BE LRBE IEEK EERR
% % %

Jinzhou Youhua Silicon  The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Manufacturingand  Limited liability
Materials Co., Ltd. 12 September paid-in capital of processing of company
(“Youhua Silicon”)*** 2008 RMB320,000,000 monocrystalline EREMRLT

BMNAEREMRAR H AR EHER ingots/wafers
NR([MEZEREM )™ —EENF AR BERMIES

nA+=A 320,000,0007% B R

Shanghai Jingji The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Processing and Limited liability
Electronic Materials 16 March 1998 paid-in capital of trading of company
Co., Ltd. (Jingj”) e US$6,950,000 polysilicon and BREMALT

LERREFHEAR —hANE AR EHER monocrystalline
A& =RA+A 6,950,000 ingots/wafers

E MIREEZRER
BREE TR

Solar Technology Cayman Islands Authorised capital of 100 100 - Investment holding  Limited liability
Investment (Cayman) 15 December HK$400,000,000 REER company
Corp. (“STIC") 2006 of HK$0.10 BREERT

HEHE each and issued
ZEERE share capital of
+=BA+ER HK$167,895,494

EEER
400,000,000/&
7 BREE0.10
BTREBTRA
167,895,4948 7T

Wealthy Rise Hong Kong Authorised share 100 - 100 Trading of Limited liability
International Limited 21 June 2007 capital of polysilicon and company

BB HK$10,000 of monocrystaline  AREEL T
—ETF HK$1 each and ingots/wafers/
~AZtT—H issued share capital photovoltaic

of HK$1 modules
EERA10,00058 BESRERER

o BREEE B R/ RR

TREBETRA At

18T
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREZIE)

19 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

19 R B A RINERE @)

FrA RS L b
Place and date of  Authorised/ Group’s Held Held
incorporation/ registered/paid-in/ effective by the bya Principal
Name of company operation issued capital interest Company subsidiary activities Legal form
MR EE/ M AEEN mRAXE H—EHE
NGEE REWERAH B/ CDRITER  BRER BE AREE FEEHR EERR
% % %

Jinzhou Jinmao The PRC Registered and 86 - 86  Manufacturing of Limited liability
Photovoltaic 17 July 2009 paid-in capital of photovoltaic company
Technology Co., Ltd ~ #1& RMB140,000,000 modules and BREALT
(“Jinzhou Jinmao”) —ETNF AMREHER design and

N RBIBER tAttH ARE installation of
ACIEDFL ) 140,000,0007C photovoltaic

systems

BERREMUR
Rt RZFAR
EA

Solargiga Energy Hong Kong Authorised share 100 100 - Trading of Limited liability
(Hong Kong) 13 June 2008 capital of polysilicon and company
Company Limited N HK$10,000 of monocrystaline  BREEATE

GXEER(EB) AR —ETN\E HK$1 each and ingots/wafers/

NS RAT=H issued share capital photovoltaic
of HK$1 modules
EERZ10,000 EEZRERES
BT BREE BB HAR
1BTREBT A
RA1ET

Silicon Solar Materials Hong Kong Authorised share 100 - 100 Investment holding  Limited liability
Company Limited 26 November capital of REZR company

KRR RIEIRA A 2008 HK$10,000 of BREEAR

EN HK$1 each and
—ETN\E issued share capital
—B=t7H of HK$1
EERZ10,000
BT BREE
1BTREBT
RA1ET

Solargiga Energy The PRC Registered and 51 - 51 Manufacturing of Limited liability
(Qinghai) Co., Ltd. 31 December paid-in capital of monocrystalline company
(“Qinghai”) 2008 RMB90,000,000 ingots BREALH

BRER(FR)ER HE AMREHER BB R
AR EBEX D) —EENF ARH

+ZA=+-H 90,000,0007
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR#%I/(&)
19 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 19 R B A RINERE @)
Proportion of ownership interest
FrE RS L Bl
Place and date of  Authorised/ Group’s Held Held
incorporation/ registered/paid-in/ effective by the bya Principal
Name of company operation issued capital interest Company subsidiary activities Legal form
KL EE/ S AEEH  REAAFE B—-HEKE
NGRS REWER AH BY/ERTER BRER BE DQRABE FEEHR EERR
% % %
Sino Light Investments  British Virgin Islands  Authorized capital 100 100 - Investment holding  Limited liability
Limited 2 December 2009 of US$500,000 REER company
REEZHS of US$0.001 BREMELNF
—TENF each and issued
+=-HR=H share capital of
US$53.920
EEE 500,000
Zn SREE
0.001ETR
BETRA
53,920% T
You Xin Investments Hong Kong Authorized and issue 100 - 100  Investment holding  Limited liability
Limited 29 July 2009 share capital of REZR company
HEREBRAT 5B HK$100,000 of BREELF
—EThE HK$1 each
tA=thH EEREBITRAR
100,000/ 7T
BREEIET
Jinzhou Huachang The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Manufacturingand  Limited liability
Photovoltaic 23 October 2006 paid-in capital of trading of solar company
Technology Company A RMB130,000,000 cells BREEAT
Limited —EERE EMREHER BEREEARGRE
BMEE KRB AR +A=t=H AR e
NS 130,000,0007¢
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19 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

19 RKEB A RINIKRE @)

Proportion of ownership interest

FrA RS L
Place and date of  Authorised/ Group’s Held Held
incorporation/ registered/paid-in/ effective by the bya Principal
Name of company operation issued capital interest Company subsidiary activities Legal form
KL EE/ M AEEY  REAAFE B—HENE
NGRS e R A B/ CRITER  BRER BE QRRE FEEH EERR
% % %

Jinzhou Solar The PRC Registered and 100 - 100 Manufacturing of Limited liability
Technology Company 18 August 2011 paid-in capital of solar modules company
Limited HE RMB51,000,000 and import BREFAT

MBS KA BZRER —E—-F AMREHER of related
BRAT NA+NR ARH equipments

51,000,0007 SUERIRER IR
EOMRRERE

Golmud Solargiga The PRC Registered and 70 - 70 Operating of Limited liability
Energy Electric Power 21 September paid-in capital of photovoltaic company
Company Limited 2011 RMB100,000,000 power plants and  BFREE R A
(‘Golmud”)* HE AMREHER sales of solar

REARGREREN —E——F ARH modules
BRAR(HEARD) AA=+—-H 100,000,0007¢ EEXREUR

HEKGREA L
DCH Solargiga GmbH.  Germany Registered and 70 - 70 Construction of Limited liability
3 June 2013 paid-in capital of photovoltaic company
=t EUR100,000 power plant BREERH
—E-=F AMREHER BIENRREN
~A=H 100,000 7T
* Golmud was acquired as a subsidiary in the year ended 31 December * BREARBEZE-_E—=Ff+=-B=+—HILEEE

2013, details of which are disclosed in Note 20.

The following table lists out the information relating to Solargiga
Energy (Qinghai) Co., Ltd. (“Qinghai”), Jinzhou Jinmao Photovoltaic
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jinzhou Jinmao”) and Golmud Solargiga
Energy Electric Power Company Limited (“Golmud”), the subsidiaries
of the Group which have material non-controlling interests (NCI). The
summarised financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.
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19 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

2013
—E-=f
Jinzhou
Qinghai Jinmao**

L D
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR  AR®TR

19 RITE A RRKRE @)

2012
—E-CF
Jinzhou
Golmud* Qinghali Jinmao Golmud*
HEA* Bl MR HREA

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
N avdl ARBTR  ARBTR  ARET:R

Turnover EE20 164,198 1,018,101 11,132 217,468 167,183 -
Profit/{loss) for the year ERFIE/ (BiE) 3,488 35,728 (375) (9,696) (28,058) -
Profit/(loss) attributable FEREREN

to NCI i/ (i) 1,709 17,506 (113) (4,751) (13,748) -
Non-current assets FERBEE 277,213 97,339 275,912 328,242 47,043 -
Current assets TEBEE 99,576 655,893 65,725 93,208 165,837 -
Non-current liabilities FrRaas (139,918) (97,495) (214,000) (161,108) (115,733) -
Current liabilities hEaE (159,540) (527,649) (13,986) (186,499 (104,788) -
Net assets/(liabilties) HEFE/(BE) 77,331 128,088 113,651 73,843 (7,641) -
Carrying amount of NCI FERERREE 37,892 13,763 34,095 36,123 (3,771) -

20

Golmud was acquired as a subsidiary in the year ended 31 December
2013, details of which are disclosed in note 20.

> On 20 December 2013 and 23 December 2013, the Group made
further capital injections to Jinzhou Jinmao by RMB100,000,000 in
total and therefore, increased its effective interest in Jinzhou Jinmao
from 51% to 86%. According to articles of associations reached with
the non-controlling shareholder of Jinzhou Jinmao, the cumulative NCI
in Jinzhou Jinmao as of 23 December 2013 are still attributable to the
non-controlling shareholder at 49%, its original percentage of effective
interest in Jinzhou Jinmao.

In March, April and June 2013, the Group made further capital
injections to two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Yangguang and Youhua
Silicon, by RMB140,000,000 and RMB120,000,000, respectively.

Business combination

On 2 September 2013, the Group acquired additional 21% equity
interests in Golmud Solargiga Energy Electric Power Company
Limited (“Golmud”) from a PRC citizen at a cash consideration
of RMB22,790,000, thereby, the Group totally held 70% equity
interests of Golmud.

20

* REAREBE-—Z—=F+t-"A=+t—-RLFER
BIERMEAR - FERK 20

* R-EB-=Ff+t-RA-+RAR-E-—=%+=A
—t=R AKEE-SERMNRREIESHAR
#100,000,0007T B T#&E RN RN E R
FI51% I8 286% © 1R 15 E2 87 M 87 JE 2 IR AR SRIE AR
MASEREMA  8E-F-—=F+=-A=+=H
1k FEERBR AR SR AL $R N R332 Rt IR IR IR RS )
B49%  BERBMBRNFREDEEA DL ©

. RAZE—Z=F=ZA -WARANA  AEEOWMRZE
EMBARRMELREEEMDBIE—SETEA
E%5140,000,0007t & A E#5120,000,0007T °

RBE6

R-B-Z£hA=R  AEEURSKEARY
22,790,0005% + 11— % B 2 RSB RIS X 4t
BENARA R (REA ) B2 %RARS - 1§
i AEEE RSB REAT0%R AR -
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20 Business combination (continued) 20 ¥KE 0t
The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s assets and RBBEE  WEHAEEEEREBENTEN
liabilities on the acquisition date: T
Recognised
values on
acquisition
B R R VB
RMB’000
ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) W~ RE KRR (HEE14) 230,199
Lease prepayments (note 17) HEEMTE(MEFE7) 19,641
Trade and other receivables B E 5 8RR B A el k18 59,596
Cash and cash equivalents HENRSEEY 41,232
Trade and other payables EAESERRHtmENTRIE (26,642)
Bank loans RITER (210,000)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities ARREEREETFE 114,026
The Group’s 70% share of the net identifiable assets ~ A&EE{LFFNBHNATRZEER
and liabilities acquired BEFHET0%
Satisfied by: BUTAREN 79,818
— the fair value of the original 49% equity interests — RS B ER R BB 5 R B 40% B A HEZR Y
in the acquiree as at the acquisition date NFE 57,028
- a cash consideration of RMB22,790,000 - REAEARY22,790,0007T 22,790
Cash acquired FiER S 41,232
Net cash inflow BeREFE 18,442
The values of assets and liabilities recognised on acquisition are W IERANEER EEEENDEMGTATFE -
their estimated fair values. The fair values of property, plant and EEBESHMERNYE BERBREURHKE
equipment, lease prepayments made for the lands held under HETEHAE L EENBEFENZIENAFEDE
operating leases recognised as result of the business combination YR NE S FIEAENITRARIES RS °
are based on the discounted future cash flows to be generated by
the acquiree.
Golmud contributed RMB11,132,000 to the consolidated turnover RHKERHRREE—_E—=+=-_B=+—HH -
and RMB375,000 loss to the consolidated loss before taxation in BEARERENGEEX AR GEBRBAIEED A
the period from the date of acquisition to 31 December 2013. AR#811,132,0007T & A R#£375,0007T °
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21 Interests in associates

21 MBS AW

Share of net assets

iR EEFE

The Group
G
2013 2012
=== —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR®BTT
74,568 124,457

The following list contains the particular of the associates, which are

unlisted corporate entities:

TREFIKEQATNFE - HBFE LT ATERE !

Proportion of
ownership interest

BEEEEERLLA
Form of Place of Particulars of Group’s
business establishment registered and effective Held by
Name of associate structure and business paid-in capital interest a subsidiary Principal activities
MR r5HE — M
BE AR BB EBEBFR  EBnH BRER DAFE FEEE
% %
Jinzhou Aoke New Incorporated  The PRC RMB200,000,000 37 37 Manufacturing and
Energy Co., Ltd. (“Aoke”) sEMALAL 2 processing of
$R N B T B K ETREIR 200,000,000 multicrystalline
BRAR(TE8RE]) ingots/wafers
ERNIZE
=378
Jinzhou Chengguang Incorporated ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 49 49  Construction of
New Energy A AL s AREE photovoltaic power
Technology Co., Ltd. 10,000,0007T plants
(“Chengguang’) BRAREL
RN HFTRE IR
BRAR (%]
Golmud Solargiga Energy Incorporated ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 49 49  Operating of
Electric Power Company sk 2] AR photovoltaic power
Limited (“Golmud”)* 100,000,000t plants and sales of
KRG XEEIRE solar modules
BRAT(HEEAL) BENRELR
HEXRGRA N
* Golmud was acquired as a subsidiary in the year ended 31 December * BEARBZ_Z—=F+_A=1+—HLFEE

2013, details of which are disclosed in note 20.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

WIBEAHMEAR - FERK 208

N

bt EREE N R AERERGS BB RRA
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21 HREENTNER @
FEHBATNN SR ECEAEHIEER

AER ARSI BHRRARAESREKENT

21 Interests in associates (continued)
Summarised financial information of the material associates,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed below:

Aoke Chengguang Golmud*
= WK HBEA*
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—E=F Pttt —F = fatlgetc il —F— = koSt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PG ARET T PRl ARET T PNGL:Rw
Gross amounts of NG k]
the associates’
Non-current assets FRBEE 348,721 240,148 - - - 278,932
Current assets RENVEE 71,383 52,802 10,000 - - 11,752
Current liabilities FBaE (82,178) (20,428) = - - (186,952
Non-current liabilites ~ JERBIEE (149,634) (73,527) - - - -
Net assets EEFE 188,292 198,995 10,000 - - 103,732
Revenue g - - - - - 7,857
Profit/(loss) K, (E8) (10,703) (860) = - = 3,732
Total comprehensive 2HEHRAZLE
income (10,703) (860) - - - 3,732
Reconciled to the HAREER B
Group’s interests in the A FIEZEIER
associates
Gross amounts of BENREEF
net assets of the B4
associates 188,292 198,995 10,000 - - 103,732
The Group’s effective  AEBBMRER
interests 37% 37% 49% - - 49%
The Group’s shares REBEGEE
of net assets of the AREEFE
associates 69,668 73,628 4,900 - - 50,829
Carrying amounts in the #R& B 8RR
consolidated financial ~ #{AREE
statements 69,668 73,628 4,900 - - 50,829
* Golmud was acquired as a subsidiary in the year ended 31 December * BEARBZE_ZT—=F5+-A=+—HLFEE

2013, details of which are disclosed in note 20.
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22

Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets represent the deductible value-added
taxes that are not expected to be utilised within one year. These
deductible value-added taxes are arisen from the purchases of the
property, plant and equipment for Golmud’s photovoltaic power
plant, which are eligible for deduction within the whole life of the
power plant.

22 HtFRBEE
Efh R B A BT R BTE— & R AR AR
AR o WIS ER R ANBREEALRE
SEME - RS RRAHES » WA BT
RISE40 -

23 Inventories 23 78
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position @ HEMBRRERAAEERSE:
comprise:
The Group
rEHE

2013 2012
—E2—= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®EF T
Raw materials FEArE 232,443 197,282
Work-in-progress TEE8GR 32,670 44,744
Finished goods B 176,381 182,161
441,494 424,187

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense is as follows:

b ERAXHNFESEINAOT :

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFT

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENREE 1,979,221 1,133,630
Write-down of inventories FE R, 21,114 154,590
2,000,335 1,288,220

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, certain
inventories were written down to their net realisable values due to
the drop in the market prices of solar products. Such write-downs of
inventories have been charged to cost of sales in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

BE—Z-=FR-F-—F+-A=t-HLHE
B BTHFERAGREERTE T RMMRESR T
BHFE - FTEMBERGEERBRNBEELER
HRR ©
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24 Trade and other receivables

24 FEWE B IRRE H A EKFRIE

The Group The Company
rEH b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
=L St —z-—F Bt Bl —T-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEEE ARBTRT PONE G| ARBTRT
Trade and bills receivables EWEZERANEE
(note 24(a)) (M¥zE24(a) 377,091 279,594 - -
Prepayments for raw materials EM R TR FRIE
(note 24(b)) (FizE24(0)) 31,205 53,615 - -
Prepayments for processing fees T &HTE(S=1E 13,409 - - -
Deductible value-added tax GIEbCE: =L 200,420 193,386 - -
Deposits and other receivables Re Rk HEMERFIE
(note 24(c)) (HHEE24(0) 98,191 75,350 280 235
Amounts due from an associate FEUR — R D FIFE = 118,802 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR T A R FRIE
(note 24(g)) (M¥EE24(g)) - - 16,238 9,516
720,316 720,747 16,518 9,751

All of the trade and other receivables (including amounts due from
subsidiaries) are expected to be recovered or recognised as an
expense within one year or recoverable on demand.

(@ Included in trade and bills receivables are bills receivable of
RMB7,000,000 (31 December 2012: RMB18,522,000) which
have been pledged as security to a bank for issuing bills
payable to suppliers.

Included in trade and bills receivables is an amount due from a
related party of RMB10,000 (31 December 2012: RMBNIl).

(b) As at 31 December 2012, included in prepayments for raw
materials were prepayments made to related parties of
RMB20,867,000 (note 35(d)).

() Included in deposits and other receivables is an amount due

from a related party of RMB4,209,000 (31 December 2012:
RMBNIl) (note 35(d)).
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(@)

EWESEAREECERREEARY
7,000,000t (= ZE——F+=-A=+—H:
AR#18,522,0007t) » WEKRFIRITIES
BATEMNBERNZEMNIEIRR o

EWESERREZEGEREK—BEELXR
HARY10,000t(ZFE—=—F+=-A=+—
B: AR®ZR) -

R-ZB——-F+=-A=+—8  BE#MEAEN
NEERINAFTHEESNEAREBEBARY
20,867,0007c (KizE35(d)) °

ReRhHMERRECERK —BBER
RIEARMA4,209,000c(ZFE—=F+=A4
=+—8 : AREZ ) (HzF35()) °
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(AARFIE)

24 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(@

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful debts) as of the end of the reporting
period based on invoice date is as follows:

24 BWE SRR E AL ERRRIE @)

@

RBEABEER - HBRRRBHERNER
BERARRBRRIZBREAROTNT ¢

The Group
REH

2012
—E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Within 1 month —@AR 167,070 143,109
1 to 3 months —Z={@A 130,380 36,067
3 to 6 months =ZXEA 31,739 55,559
6 to 12 months AETZ@EA 2,172 22,395
Over 1 year HBiE—5 45,730 22,464
377,091 279,594

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 39(a).

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade and
bills receivables directly (see note 1(j)(i)). During the year
ended 31 December 2013, trade receivables of the Group
totalling of RMB22,623,000 (2012: RMB1,159,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that all receivables are
not expected to be recovered. Accordingly, specific allowances
for doubtful debts of RMB22,623,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB1,159,000) were recognised as at 31 December 2013.

EWE SRR MNEEZ A #BT80Z290A
REH - AEBEEBRNE S HBHR
FMfiEE39(a) °

B E 5 RN BRI E

EWE S EARZERESEDREARER
8% 0 FRIEARE EAR (S R E 7R IE A AT BEE AR
&> RZBERT  RESEEEEEEKE
SRR ZEMSE (RKHEE1()0) - BE=F
—=Z&+ZA=1+—-BLLFE XEBEH
FEWE B RAA £ ARY22,623,0007T (=
T——F : AR#¥1,159,0007w) EREE S
2 RE o {8 Bl 2 R B FE Uk 71 E B2 38 B B 75
RN EFEE  mEREEGTEAfAERE
WRRIBRTEEWNE - Bt ER=ZZ—=F
T A=+ —BRREREREAREARKE
22,623,000t (= E—=—F+=-A=+—H:
AR#1,159,0005T) °
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24 Trade and other receivables (continued)

24 FEWE 5 RF R H fib FE YL FRIE o)

() Trade and bills receivables that are not impaired H WEBEENEKESRIEZE
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are b %48 Bl 2k [ 3 AR A R E Y FE UK E 5 BR X
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired ZEMNRRITAOT :
are as follows:
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E2——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREET T
Neither past due nor impaired WA SR E 272,767 188,926
Less than 1 month past due BELR—EA 35,255 44,149
1 to 3 months past due BE—Z=M@A 25,911 10,940
4 to 6 months past due BEMZENEA 5,023 4,134
7 to 12 months past due BHEtZE+={EA 979 11,555
Over 1 year past due BHE—F0E 37,156 19,890
104,324 90,668
377,091 279,594
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a S 488 380 HA = 5 (B B9 FE U 2k IE BE %% B 3 S S HA
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history REEENEEERE o
of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a B HA{E N SR E N BN R E AR EE 2 L
number of customers that have a good track record with the ERFAESENEFRAR - REBEUALK
Group. Based on past experience, management believes that B HACEEZTEEANRE » BRAEZ
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these Zaea o 2o SEEREEERZ
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit HEARTIERERE AEFBYEMRZEZE
quality and the balance are still considered fully recoverable. BB EMIKFR o
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
(@ The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- @ EUHBATIZREAEIKE RERERE

free and recoverable on demand.
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25 Pledged bank deposits 25 2EFRITHER
Certain of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to secure bank AEEETROTFARCHRASEEERWRITERR
loans and other banking facilities granted to the Group as follows: HAnRITRE IR > FHINT ¢
The Group

AEH
2013 2012
—F—= —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT

Pledged as security for bills payable HEREAEENERR 10,822 116,129
Pledged as security for bank loans KRERRITERNIRER 193,590 24,089
Guarantee deposits for issuance of letters ERRHERFNERER
of credit - 33,311
Others Hit 2,498 705
206,910 174,234
The effective annual interest rate for pledged deposits with banks RZZB—=F BEBFRITNERNERER =
was 2.35% for 2013 (2012: 0.81%). B23BE(ZFE——F 1 081E) °
26 Cash at bank and in hand 26 RITRFHERASE
The Group The Company
AEE ARATF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—=E-—= e~ — —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NGB AR T BUNGES AR%TT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERSE 234,398 153,793 449 1,363

Deposits with banks with original FREHBEA=EA UL
maturity over three months RITIER (20,000) (20,000)

Cash and cash equivalents inthe  GABESHRERNESR

consolidated cash flow statement  H&ZEY 214,398 133,793

Cash at bank and in hand totalling of RMB118,051,000 (31 R-ZB—=F+"A=+—0 KRITKFERSH
December 2012: RMB59,767,000) as at 31 December 2013 is AR#118,051,000t (ZFE—=—F+=-A=+—
denominated in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible currency H : AK#¥59,767,0007t) A AREEFIE - AR
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange ARTUBEHRREY  BEERNELESEAZHE
restrictions imposed by the PRC government. BT SNEE SRR o

The effective annual interest rate for deposits with banks was 2.80% R-ZE—Z=ZF RITERNEBRFEFEH2.80E
for 2013 (2012: 2.62%). (ZE—Z—F :262E) °
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27 Bank and other loans 27 RITRHEMER
At 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank and other loans are R-ZE—=F+ZA=+—H0 FTEENRTRHE
analysed as follow: HERWDHTHT

2013 2012
—E—= —E-——F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT

Bank loans (note 27(a)) SRITER(MEE27(a)) 1,624,982 1,503,485
Municipal government loan (note 27(0)) B ER (FEE27(b)) 2,595 2,780
Other loans (note 27(c)) HAin &R (FIFE27(0)) 78,623 -

1,706,200 1,506,265
(a) At 31 December 2013, the bank loans were repayable as @ R=T—=F+=A=+—H HRITEEHW

follow: EBEREWT :
The Group The Company
rEE b NN

2013 2012 2013 2012
—EF—= —E—CF - —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTE BPNGESH AKEETIT NS

Within 1 year —F2ZR 1,114,482 1,018,985 128,855 397,586

After 1 year but within 2 years @BiE—F{EMFE 2R 76,500 193,000 - -

After 2 years but within 5 years BEBMFEERFEZR 271,000 291,500 - -

After 5 years BEAE 163,000 - - -
510,500 484,500 -

1,624,982 1,503,485 128,855 397,586

Bank loans were secured as  $RITEFIEHRMT ¢

follows:
— unsecured — K 1,153,883 1,366,219 128,855 397,586
- secured - B 471,099 137,266 - -

1,624,982 1,608,485 128,855 397,586
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27 Bank and other loans (continued)

27 RITREMER @)

@ (continued) @ (&)
Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the AEBETRTHEEZERAEES T
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s AR R BT TR o MAKEE
financial position ratios. If the Group were to breach the REBRZ > AIFTRINEEBIRERER -
covenants the drawn down facilities would become payable AEBEHERAEACEBTEBERE -8
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with BAEEEERBESERIE—SHBEH
these covenants. Further details of the Group’s management FABIEESY ©
of liquidity risk are set out in note 39.
As at 31 December 2012, the balance of certain non-current R-ZB-—Z-F+=A=+—H8 ARETZE
portions of the bank loans amounting to RMB133,441,000 was REER  RITERNE THERBIDD L8R
reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities due EARY 133,441,000t EEHFRBAER
to the non-compliance with certain covenants. Subsequent to BN BERBEE - R=ZF—=—F+=A
31 December 2012, a waiver from non-compliance with such =+—H% BMARACRHEREBEZEN
covenants was granted by the lenders. e o
(o) The municipal government loan is repayable as follows: (o) TMBNERMERIBWT :
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E-—f
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETTT
Within 1 year —E2ZR 364 364
After 1 year but within 2 years EB—FEMFZA 364 364
After 2 years but within 5 years BEMFERFZR 1,091 1,001
After 5 years BBRF 776 961
2,595 2,780
The municipal government loan was received by the Group AEBEFMBEHTBNERARBENRS
for constructing a manufacturing plant in Jinzhou, Liaoning EEZEBHRMOEERE - BETBNER
Province, the PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions or I SBAEAA 1 R AT & IR R E A T E R
contingencies relating to the municipal government loan. 2o ZERAERSE  HERA-ZE-—ZF
It is unsecured, interest bearing and is fully repayable by ECECEFHEBHEE
instalments from 2010 to 2020.
(© As at 31 December 2013, other loans of RMB78,623,000 € R=Z—=5+"A=+—-R0 HthEXKA

represented a loan borrowed from an independent third party,
Higuchi Industries Limited. It is unsecured, interest bearing and
fully repayable in 2016.

R & 78,623,000 7t £ i ¥ I 58 = 75 Higuchi
Industries Limitedf& tHIVE K - ZERAHEIE
#HERER-Z—NFEHMEE -
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28 Trade and other payables 28 FENEZRARHMEMFIE
The Group The Company
AEE ¥ NG|

2013 2012 2013 2012
—£-—= —E-—f ki —E——F

RMB’000 [Vl RMB000 [ENEIVI=Yelel
NGBl AR Tr BUNSEST ARYETT

Trade payables (note 28(a)) FE E 5 BR7K (it 3E28(a)) 440,078 343,927 = -
Bills payable (notes 28(a), 28(0)) FEZ 48 (Hi3E28(a) ~ 28(0)) 30,169 235,732 - -
Other payables and accrued HAibEAFRIE R ERTR X

expenses 201,713 221,502 8,684 9,678
Receipts in advance (note 28(c)) FEURFRIE (KiEE28(c)) 89,193 44,937 = -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHEARRIE

(note 28(d)) (BfaE28(d)) - - 8,375 10,527

761,153 846,098 17,059 20,205
All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due to FEHEENE SRR EME R E (BIEEN
subsidiaries) are expected to be settled within one year. MB A TRIBE) R —FERF(T ©
(@) The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables as of the end of (a) MRBEHBEER  ENEIZRAREZEN
the reporting period based on invoice date is as follows: IRRIREZHHADMAT -
The Group
AEH

2013 2012
—_=F=—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFT

Within 1 month —@AR 221,084 190,741
1to 3 months —Z=18A 128,208 121,069
4 to 6 months mEXREA 63,637 179,243
7 to 12 months tZ+={@A 33,944 68,083
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRENFER 23,374 20,523
470,247 579,659
Included in trade and bills payables are amounts due to ENEBESRAREEGIERENEESZIEA
related parties of RMB32,469,000 (31 December 2012: R#32 469,000t (—ZFE——F+=-A=1+—
RMB29,089,000) (note 35(e)). H : AR#29,089,0007) (FFE35()) °
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28 Trade and other payables (continued)

(b)

(@

29 Income tax in the consolidated statement

(AAR¥FI(E)

The Group’s bills payable of RMB30,169,000 (31 December (b)
2012: RMB235,732,000) as at 31 December 2013 were
secured by the Group’s bills receivable of RMB7,000,000
(31 December 2012: RMB18,522,000) (note 24(a)) and
bank deposits of RMB10,822,000 (31 December 2012:

RMB116,129,000) (note 25).

Included in receipts in advance are amounts due to a related (©
party of RMB8,826,000 (31 December 2012: RMBNIl)
(note35(g)).

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free (d)

and repayable on demand.

of financial position

(@)

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial (a)

position represents:

28 BNEZRAREMENRE

R-ZE—Z=F+=-A=+—0 ' AEEEF
ZiEAR¥30,169,000t (ZE——F+=
B=+—R8: AR#235732,0007T) AR
EEREKERE ARY7,000,0007T(=Z8—=
F+-—HA=+—H: AR¥18522,0007t)
(MfFE24()) R 8B 1T 17 =X A K #510,822,000
T(ZE——HF+-A=+—H: AR¥
116,129,0007T) (K FE25) fE R -

ARHREBEEN - SRETREARY
8,826,000t (= E—=F+=HA=+—H:
ARHBEZTT) (HEE35()) °

EHHBAARERREN RS RARE

29 ZEPBMRRRAMEHR

FEBBRRRAMNEABIERRK

The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—_ === —E-——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEHRETEMSHEE
for the year 1,266 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BRE (B PECEMEH
refunded/(paid) 6,570 (500)
7,836 (500)
Balance of PRC Enterprise Income Tax in = —FERE D2 FRER &84
respect of prior year (7,070) (6,570)
766 (7,070)
Representing: RE:
Current tax recoverable ENER ATk = 18 (500) (7,070)
Current tax payable BIERFES B8 1,266 -
766 (7,070)
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29 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (continued)

29 GEMBRRRAFES @

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b)) EEIEEHRBEERERE
The components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised REEHBERRRERANELHRE(EE)
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the EENEERFRSEHNT :
movements during the year are as follows:
The Group
FEE
Fair value
adjustment Property,
Government  on business Inventory Undistributed plant and
grants  combination provision profits  equipments Others Total
E 3 VEN
BIFHE DVERE RERE KA BERRE Hih @it
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARETFR ARETFR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR
Deferred tax arising from: g F5I&ENETHIE :
At 1 January 2012 R-Z-——F-f-§ 7,883 43,885) 24,884 (17,218 (2,519) 547 (30,308)
Charged to profit or loss RBEFINR (HEE7()

(note 7(a) (3,554) 43,070 (22,579) 6,276 (3,476) (1,192) 18,551
At 31 December 2012 R-E--£+-A=+-H 4,329 (815) 2,311 (10,942) (5,995) (645) (11,757
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=%-fA-H 4,329 (815) 2,311 (10,942) (5,995) (645) (11,757
Charged to profit or loss RBEFINR (HEE7()

(note 7(a)) (4,329 815 (2,311) 9,925 5,995 645 10,740
At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=E+-p=t+-8 - - - (1,017) - - (1,017)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised ) MABRELEREEE

At 31 December 2013, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB501,025,000 (31 December 2012: RMB264,787,000) and
RMB281,541,000 (31 December 2012: RMB272,331,000)
attributable to its subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong Kong,
respectively, and deductible temporary differences of
RMB212,445,000 mainly arising from government grants, the
provisions for various impairment losses and the accrual of
warranty costs (31 December 2012: RMB362,284,000), as
management is not sure whether tax losses and deductible
temporary differences are probable to be utilised before they
expire or settle in the relevant tax jurisdictions.

The tax losses of the subsidiaries in the PRC will expire within
five years.
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(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA AR#%I/(&)

29

30

31

Income tax in the consolidated statement

of financial position (continued)

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised
At 31 December 2013, deferred tax liabilities of RMB7,238,000
(831 December 2012: RMB8,939,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax payable upon the distribution
of the undistributed profits of certain PRC subsidiaries and it
has been determined that these undistributed profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Bonds

On 24 August 2011, the Company issued RMB300,000,000 bonds
with a maturity of three years due on 24 August 2014 (the “Bonds”).
The related issuing costs amounted to RMB3,600,000. The Bonds
were issued at 100% of the aggregate principal amount, are
denominated in RMB and bear interest at 4.75% per annum payable
semi-annually in arrears.

Deferred income

Various government grants have been received by the Group for
generating export sales, participating in high-tech industry and
constructing various manufacturing and photovoltaic power plants in
Jinzhou, Liaoning Province, and Xining, Qinghai Province, the PRC.

These government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially as deferred income and are amortised to
profit or loss as other revenue over the useful lives of the assets.

29

30

31

HEPBERRRAMEH @)

d) BIRERELEHIBEEE
R-ZZE—=F+=-A=+—0 ' B2RETF
HEKB AR IRAENELSRBEARYE
7,238,000t (=ZE—=—F+=-H=+—H:
AR #8,939,0007T ) KV IEAE i 18 & & i8] R 7
R WEREZERD KA BETERAE
BARRDIK

B

MR-ZZE——FEN\A=-+WAB  XAFBITR=
E-NENA-Z+HAINPHN=FHARYE
300,000,000t B ([E% 1) - BEARITRARA
R #53,600,0007T ° &% AZNE B E5100%3E T3 2L
ARESHE - MERNRA 5B ERSEEEE -

ESEWA

AEBREEEOHE  EEEHERTERNTE
EELBNRTABSEESRES RUEHER
SR 5 B 05T 18R B AR ©

ZEBUF AR R R PERDIELER
A UNZEEETERFRARERRABHELSE
fBIA e
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32 Other non-current liabilities 32 HitERBERE
Included in other non-current liabilities is provision for product HihFERBEEEEERRARSEE  &5/m
warranty costs as follows: T
2013 2012
—E—= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETR
At 1 January H—B—H 9,007 7,335
Provision made FrYEfR {5 13,547 1,672
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 22,554 9,007
The Group’s photovoltaic modules were typically sold with a 2 or REBR L RAHHERE—RHAEB{T HEIFE2
5-year warranty for defects in materials and workmanship and a 10- FHRSFEYRHEERATRE » LRI10FER25F &
year and 25-year minimum power output warranty, against declines KEHHHRE > PRRZFSIEETRIEESRS
of more than 10% and 20%, respectively, of initial power generation ZNDLEEERE10%KZ20% © BIBRBBEGF
capacity from the date of delivery. The Group has the right to repair o ANEBEARBREYABRAFETHERE
or replace solar modules, at its option, under the terms of the o NEBRBERARBUBEZZREBERIFHAE
warranty policy. The Group maintains warranty reserves to cover THEEERE -
potential liabilities that could arise under these guarantees and
warranties.
33 Retirement benefit schemes 33 EBAKEFGFTE

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
administered and operated by the local municipal government. The
Group’s PRC subsidiaries were required to make contributions to
the scheme at 20% of the employees’ salaries per annum to fund
the retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group is required to participate in defined contribution
retirement schemes administered and operated by Bureau of Labour
Insurance of Taiwan for employees employed in Taiwan. Under
the schemes the employer is required to make contributions to
the schemes at 6% of the employees’ relevant income per annum.
Contributions to the schemes vest immediately.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$25,000. Contributions to the MPF scheme vest
immediately.
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33 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with the schemes beyond the

contributions described above.

34 Capital and reserves

33 RIREFFHE @)

Bk E AR

REEBRG N ZETEEEN

RABFAEHMERESE -

34 EXRKGH#E

(a) The Group @ ZA&EHE
Details of the movements in capital and reserves of the Group AEFERARBESBDNEBRANGEER
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. BENK o
(o) The Company (o) ZA<AF
Share Share  Exchange Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
e REEE EiRE RitER EREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFRT  AR®Tr  ARETR AREFR  ARBTrR
Balance at 1 January 2012 R=B-=F-A-BMLH 108585 1,470,106 (120,579) (1833020 1414816
Changes in equity for 2012: TE-CENEREE !
Loss for the year FERE - - - (438,240) (438,240)
Other comprehensive income Hip2ERA - - 697 - 697
Total comprehensive income PEUANEE - - 697 (438,240) (437,543)
Shares issued under open offer (note 34(d)) REDFRERTRE (HEF34() 20,202 52,778 - - 72,980
Balance at 31 December 2012 and R-B-ZE+-A=1+-AR
1 January 2013 “E-CF-A-RMEH 218,787 1,522,884 (119,876) (671,542) 1,050,253
Changes in equity for 2013: “E-CEMERES:
Loss for the year EEFR - - - (18,747) (18,747)
Other comprehensive income Hip2ERA - - (50,778) - (50,778)
Total comprehensive income 2ERALE - - (50,778) (13,747) (64,525)
Shares issued under open offer (note 34(d) BEDHRERITRG (HF34(0) 40,238 162,774 - - 203,012
Shares issued under subscription of new shares  RIEREBHRHBTRE
[note 34(e) (F3E34(6)) 17,702 45,987 - - 63,689
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-B-=E+-B=t+-AH&H 216,727 1,731,645 (170,654) (585,289) 1,252,429
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34 Capital and reserves (continued)
Authorised and issued share capital

(©)

34 EXRfREE@

© EEREBEITRA

The Company
NG|
2012
—E-CF
No. of
shares '000
RPEE T
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREBECIBINLER 5,000,000,000 HK$500,000  5,000,000,000 HK$500,000
500,000/ 7T 500,000/ T
Equivalent to HER RMB450,000 RMB450,000
AR #¥450,0007 AR#450,000T
Ordinary shares, issued and BRTRAZLER:
fully paid:
At 1 January W—-A—H 2,491,300,472 RMB218,787  2,242,170,425 RMB198,585
AE#218,7877C AE#198,5857T
Shares issued under open offer REDHBERTRG (HEE34(0) 498,260,094 RMB40,238 249,130,047 RMB20,202
(note 34(d)) AE#40,238 7T ARE#20,2027T
Shares issued under subscription of  RiEZBH KD ETRE 222,220,000 RMB17,702 - -
new shares (note 34(e)) (KiEE34(e)) AR¥17,7027C
At 31 December W+=ZB=1+-H 3,211,780,566 RMB276,727  2,491,300,472 RMB218,787
AE#276,727 70 AE#218,7877T

Open offer

In December 2012, the Company raised approximately
HK$89,999,000 (equivalent to RMB72,980,000) after
deduction of related expenses of RMB2,778,000 by way of
an open offer. 249,130,047 new shares of HK$0.1 each on
the basis of one offer share for every nine existing shares then
held were issued. The subscription price was HK$0.375 per
share. The nominal value of these shares of HK$24,913,000
(equivalent to RMB20,202,000) was credited to share capital
while the difference with the proceeds of HK$65,086,000
(equivalent to RMB52,778,000) was credited to share

premium.
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34 Capital and reserves (continued)

(d@

Open offer (continued)

In March 20183, the Company raised approximately
HK$251,348,000 (equivalent to RMB203,012,000) after
deduction of related expenses of RMB2,202,000 by way of
an open offer. 498,260,094 new shares of HK$0.1 each on
the basis of one offer share for every five existing shares then
held were issued. The subscription price was HK$0.51 per
share. The nominal value of these shares of HK$49,826,000
(equivalent to RMB40,238,000) was credited to share capital
while the difference with the proceeds of HK$201,522,000
(equivalent to RMB162,774,000) was credited to share
premium.

Subscription of new shares

In May 2013, the Company raised approximately
HK$79,951,000 (equivalent to RMB63,689,000) after
deduction of related expenses of RMB38,000 by way of
subscription of new shares. 222,220,000 new shares of
HK$0.1 each was issued to two subscribers. The subscription
price was HK$0.36 per share. The nominal value of these
shares of HK$22,222,000 (equivalent to RMB17,702,000) was
credited to share capital while the difference with the proceeds
of HK$57,729,000 (equivalent to RMB45,987,000) was
credited to share premium.

Nature and purpose of reserves:

(1) Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The share premium is distributable.

(2)  General reserve fund

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated
in the PRC, these PRC subsidiaries are required to
transfer a minimum of 10% of their distributable profits
after taxation based on their PRC statutory financial
statements to the general reserve fund until the balance
of the fund is at least half of the paid-in capital of the
relevant subsidiaries. The amounts allocated to this
reserve are determined by the respective boards of
directors with reference to the minimum requirement.

34 EXRK #HE

(@

NHABE @)

R-ZZE-—=F= AQAEBABRRE
RHEE4251,348,0008 T (HER AR
# 203,012,000t ) (R EBARE X A R
2,202,0007t#%) - RERSHEEARRER
R — IR B E IR D I E 224 1T 408,260,094
BERBEOIBTHNHBRNG -RBEEA
BEREBMOSIBLT ZEROKNEES
49,826,000 7% 7t (18 & R A K % 40,238,000
) MEFARAE  MERBSRENZELE
201,522,000& 7t (FHE R A R#162,774,000
J0) BT ABRDIEE ©

=)

R-ZZ—=FFA AQAEBRBHFR
B EB 79,951,000 T (HER AR
63,689,000t ) (#1516 B8 B =X A K #538,000
TLE) o B[O M AR & 8 17222,220,000 %
EREEC1BTHIHRND - RBEAERK
£30.3678 7T ° 25 R 17 ME{E A 22,222,000
B (FHERAR®17,702,0007T ) I 51 A B
7 TERFT{SFRIE MY 2= 5857,729,00078 7t (6
ENARKY45,087,0007T) BT ARBDIRE °

REENEERERN :

(1) RipzE
B =ERNVERSHEFHEATER
B o RIMEEATDIK °

@ —REEE

RIEE B EERR A D B R A B R
MAHMBARNESSEAR - %
rh B S BB ) 28 L o B E B IS R R
FrR B9BRBE 1R ] 2 R AR B 1 0% 28 3%
E-REBE  EEZRBLEHRED
ZHENBELARNBHRA—F[IE &
BEFELSREERRE  EEOR
EZREBNEE -
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34 Capital and reserves (continued)
() Nature and purpose of reserves: (continued)

@

)

)

(®)

General reserve fund (continued)

For the entities concerned, the general reserve fund
can be converted into capital in proportion to the equity
holders’ existing equity holdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of shares
allotted and issued over the subscription costs and share
options granted to employees of the Group.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(1).

Other reserve
The other reserve represents:

()  The difference between the attributable share of
Tayaneng Investments limited (“Tayaneng”) of
the nominal value of the paid-up capital of the
subsidiaries acquired over the consideration paid
by Tayaneng to obtain the equity interests in these
subsidiaries.

Pursuant to a reorganisation of the Group to
rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation for
the public listing of the Company which became
the holding company of the subsidiaries on 7 May
2007, Tayaneng acquired equity interests of 75%,
70%, 74.17% and 75% in Yangguang, Huachang,
Huari and Xinri respectively on 9 March 2007.
The difference between Tayaneng’s attributable
share of the nominal value of these subsidiaries
of RMB74,858,000 and the consideration paid of
RMB74,782,000 amounted to RMB76,000 and was
credited to other reserve account.
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34 Capital and reserves (continued)

()

@)

Nature and purpose of reserves: (continued)
(5) Other reserve (continued)

(i)  The difference between the net assets value
of Tayaneng and its subsidiaries acquired and
the nominal value of the issued share capital of
Tayaneng.

The other reserve is non-distributable.

Tayaneng was deregistered during the year ended
31 December 2009.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves
(including the Company’s retained profits, if any, and share
premium) available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was RMB1,146,356,000 (31 December 2012:
RMB951,342,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
gearing ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines gearing ratio
as total borrowings to total share capital and reserves.

34 EXRK #HE

()

REENEERE®N (@)
) Eftbfts (&)
@iy  FrUBBTayaneng & E K& A a1 HY
& = R {E B Tayaneng B 21T IR AR
HENEEE -

Hitf#ER T 2k o

TayanengRBE—ZEZhEFE+ =
A=+—HLFEHETMH -

B D TR
R-ZE—=F5+"A=+—H G#H5K
FAARREREANFEELBE(BEERLD
AREEN(ME)ERHEE) BARKE
1,146,356,000t (= —=—F+ = A=+ —
H : AR#0951,342,0005T) °

EvEE
FEBERESHEZBNARBERERBKF
BEEMRRBERURREERAIRSH
& EUREAEEERFELSE  HEAR
REMHOEREDEESITEATRAE

AEBEEEHRNNERAEALE £
BEEKFHAAEGTRESRRD®R UKk
REEARRATRENEZSNRERE DR
WMEFE  TEREHEERESMARER
e

REBUEEE B REFHEESRERE - 5
BME  ARESEERBELRERRMEE
RIS AR AR HEIEE R o
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34 Capital and reserves (continued) 34 EXRK#HE@
(n) Capital management (continued) h EBE£EE@E
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were as R-E—=FR-_ZFT—_—F+=-A=+-—H
follows: HWEESBLLRNT :
The Group
R EE
2013 2012
—ZE—= —EB-_F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iEsd ARETR ARETR
Current liabilities: REAE:
Bank loans RITER 27 1,114,482 1,018,985
Bonds &% 30 299,200 -
1,413,682 1,018,985
Non-current liabilities: FERBELE !
Bank and other loans RITREMETR 27 591,718 487,280
Bonds &% 30 - 298,600
591,718 785,880
Total borrowings BEHE 2,005,400 1,804,865
Share capital A 276,727 218,787
Reserves S 876,331 800,091
1,153,058 1,018,878
Gearing ratio EESEBLER 173.9% 177.1%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to AR R EAEMNE A BB EETINR
externally imposed capital requirements. IEERRE °
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35 Related party transactions 35 BEIRS
During the year ended 31 December 2013, transactions with the BE-Z-—Z=ZF+=-B=+—HLFE EHTIA
following parties are considered to be related party transactions: THRGBERABELIRS -

Name of party & 5 &%

Relationship E#%

Jinzhou Changhua Carbon Products Company Limited
(“Jinzhou Changhua”)
BMNEERZRRERAR(HRMEE]

Wafer Works Corp. (“WWX”) (note(i))

BRMEROERAE (&RBH) (&)

Wafer Works (Shanghai) Corp. (“WWXS”) (note(i))
EEESEMBERAR (&&= ()

Jinzhou Huarong Property Management Company Limited
(“Jinzhou Huarong”)
BN EREERERAR( HMEL )

Jinzhou Jingxin Semi-conductor Material Co., Ltd.
(“dinzhou Jingxin”)
SN EEFERMRERA B (HMNREED

Jinzhou Youlin Semi-Conductor Material Co., Ltd.
(“Jinzhou Youlin”)
SR MR R E R AR RR A B ([ 870G M)

Jinzhou Huanchang Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(*Huangchang Real Estate”)
HBMNEEEHERRERATN(EERLE ]

Golmud Solargiga Energy Electric Power Company Limited
(“Golmud”) (notefii)
HBEARRE X EERE D BRA R (TR L) (FEE)

Jinzhou Aoke Yangguang New Energy Company Limited (“Aoke”)
RN R FTRERER AT ([RR])

Note (i): WWX and WWXS ceased to be the related parties of the Group from
1 June 2013 after Chiao Ping Hai resigned as a director. As such,
the related party transactions in the current year with WWX and
WWXS disclosed below relate to the period from 1 January 2013 to
31 May 2018.

Note (ii): Golmud became a subsidiary of the Group since 2 September 2013
as disclosed in note 20.

Controlled by Tan Wenhua, Chairman of
the Company
SN E) EFEEEEG

Controlled by Chiao Ping Hai, a non-executive
director of the Company
SARATFAITESTETHES

Subsidiary of WWX
BRI L R

Controlled by Tan Wenhua, Chairman of the
Company
SN B EFEEEE

Controlled by spouse of Tanxin, an executive
director of the Company and her aunt
AN TEEESNEBRIENREEZES

Controlled by spouse of Tanxin, an executive
director of the Company
SAARPITEEZIENRBIEH

Controlled by Tan Wenhua, Chairman of the
Company
SN B EFEEEE

Associate of the Group

REEPEE N

ol

Associate of the Group
REBEREBE LN R

MizE() - EFERIESE  SRNEREAEMBE=
T-=FXA-—HRBTBAXEENEERL » &
TXFEBRESKBERESEMBREFEN
BELSRGNE-—E-—=5—-A—-HE=Z—=
FRA=+—HEHERA -

FyEEG) - SRAIPMEE2ORTINGE - MEBAR-ZE—=F1A=
AERRAREENHEAR o
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35 Related party transactions (continued)
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
the financial statements, the Group had the following material related
party transactions:

(@)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel receive compensation in the form
of salaries, housing and other allowances, benefits in kind,
discretionary bonuses and retirement scheme contributions.
Details of key management personnel remuneration are
disclosed in notes 11 and 12. Total remuneration is included
in “staff costs” as disclosed in note 6(b). These transactions
which involved directors of the Company constituted exempt
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and were not subject to reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Recurring transactions

35 BELIXRS
FREFTE SRR EMEL D FIIRBENR B RERI » NE
BEUNTERBELIRS :

(@)

TEEEASHMH

TREBABUFE  EERHEMER B
MR ~ BISTEAL BB ARGt BRI 5 ik
BT - TREEEASHFMAIBERMEITR
1295 - HFAHRBEBATETHA - F5ER
MFE6L)IKE - RIBELHRBF14ATE - FR
RAREBNZERSBRETRAF14AT
HTHERRRERS - BABTHE 2
ERE YRR AERRE o

The Group
EW
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—C—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARET T
Sales of goods to: HEEmT !
#Jinzhou Huarong RN EELR 262 329
#Jinzhou Changhua RN EEE 84 97
"Aoke "By 3,700 -
4,046 426
Purchases of goods from: BTHEFEEMR

*Jinzhou Changhua “HWINEE 36,054 34,213
MWWX & @B 5,614 17,096
"Aoke "BT 3,865 -

*Processing services received from ‘RSN TSR T RS
Jinzhou Jingxin - 884

*Processing services received from “H SR MR MR I T AR
Jinzhou Youlin 3,458 2,699

*Provision of water and heat by “IRNEE R IR K I EARE

Jinzhou Huarong 1,856 1,741
50,747 56,633

(©

Non-recurring transactions
The Group had no non-recurring transactions with related
parties in the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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35 Related party transactions (continued)

35 BEIRS @)

(d) Amounts due from related parties (d) FEUREAEFRFRIE
The Group
rEE

2013 2012
—EB-=F —E—C—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
— Golmud — R - 118,802
- WWX —a&EBH = 83,468
— "Aoke — BTy 8,520 13,990
- *Huachang Real Estate —EEEME 3,045 3,045
11,565 219,305

The amounts due from related parties are unsecured and
interest free. Except for prepayments for raw materials of
RMB4,301,000 (31 December 2012: RMB76,591,000)
as disclosed in note 18 and prepayments for acquisition
of property, plant and equipment of RMB3,045,000 (31
December 2012: RMB3,045,000), the amounts are excepted
to be recovered within one year.

EUREARELEEARREE BRI
183 & K JR= A1 L 38 13 718 A R #5 4,301,000
T(ZE—Z—F+=ZB=+—H: AR%
76,591,0007T) R WY - BEKRRENTE
5018 A R%3,045000 T (=B —=—F+=
B=+—H : AR#3,045,0007t) 5 * 57
HIBFEHR —FRAWE -

(e) Amounts due to related parties e) FEREERRIE
The Group
REE
2012
—E——F
RMB’000
ARBF T
- *Jinzhou Changhua — M EE 36,164 28,905
— *Jinzhou Jingxin — BN EE 283 184
— "Aoke — B8 1,382 -
- *Jinzhou Youlin —"ERME R 3,466 -
41,295 29,089

The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and expected to be settled within one year.

#

These transactions constituted exempt connected transactions
or exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and were not subject to reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

These transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and details
of such transactions are set out in the section headed “Report
of the Directors — Continuing Connected Transactions” of the
Annual Report. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with all the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of these transactions.

FENEETRIARERR 22 ARHN -
FRAZA e

2 RIZEMRAEAT - ZERXZBK LR
BB AASTH THRERRBEER Z RER RS
BRERS  BRABTHE  2ERBIR
RAERIRE -

y ZERXGBHETRRAFE4ATE T NEFER
BR5  BABRRZNHBRIINAFH ES
BEREE -FERERS |-HR - ARAR
B HERBEWRAFIAZTHZERSE
SFIIERERE
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35

36

(AAR®SIE)

Related party transactions (continued)

(e) Amounts due to related parties (continued)
These transactions did not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Furthermore, the transactions involving WWX no
longer constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company as WWX ceased to be a connected person since 9
January 2013.

Capital commitments

Capital commitments that relate to purchase of property, plant
and equipment outstanding at 31 December 2013 and 2012 not
provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

35 BEFRS @)

)

J?EHEQLE RIE ()
FZERZAETEAHK TR BIE14IAZIE T HIES
HERXSRBFEBERS © i ARERER
HEB-Z—=5—AABRBFTBABEA
T MPRERBDENIZTEBEBREAT
BHERERS -

36 EAKIE

FHBEENE BERRBR-Z—=FK
“E-CHFtZ A=t -HEREEALR
TEMBHRRABBHEREENT

The Group
REH
2012
—E——F
RMB’000
ARBEF T
Authorised and contracted for EREWETH 32,730 17,956
Authorised but not contracted for EREERTY 33,049 40,450
37 Operating lease commitments 37 REHEAIE

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as
follows:

R—_B—=FEFR—FTE——F+=-_B=+—
A REFTHESEAS - AESEEE
FHREEENRBZENT ¢

The Group
AEE

2013 2012
—B—=F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEF T AREETTT
Within 1 year —FRw 520 1,679
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEZERFER 498 1,410
After 5 years EEE 1,470 1,686
2,488 4,675

The Group is the lessee in respect to a number of properties held
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of two to twenty years, with an option to renew each lease upon
expiry when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.
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38

39

Contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees issued

At 31 December 2013, the Group has undertaken to guarantee
a banking facility granted to an associate to the extent of
RMB74,000,000 (31 December 2012: RMBNIl).

At the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not consider
it probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantee. The maximum liability of the Group at the
end of the reporting period under the above guarantee issued is
the outstanding amount of the loan advanced by the bank to the
associate of RMB74,000,000.

Financial risk management and fair values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s businesses. The Group’s exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

(@ Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at
banks, trade receivables and prepayments made to suppliers.
Cash at banks are placed with financial institutions that have
sound credit ratings and the Group considers the credit risk to
be insignificant.

In respect of trade receivables and prepayments made
to suppliers, individual credit evaluations are performed
on customers/suppliers on a case-by-case basis. These
evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay as well as the
suppliers’ past history of supplying raw materials and take
into account the current conditions specific to the customers/
suppliers as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customers/suppliers operate. Trade receivables
are normally due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers
and suppliers.

38

39

HAREE

B HBEER

R-B—=#+-A=t+-8 FEEEEK—2
BT -MBEADNRTRENER - UARM
74,000,000t BR(=ZFE—=F+=A=+—H:
ARMET) o

RBEPREEER  ESRARE LRER &
BEARAAREELERE - AEERBERELEEAR
B HHERNEBERZSARITENFZHER
AEMMAREESEARME74,000,0007T °

BHEREERERQVE
REEFFROEE  RDAS  MEREEER
REAEEE B EES - AEBAEHEHEBRL
R S B TR % M TR B 0 B A LB IR IR
HREHIMPIT -

(@) FEER
FEBNEERBEIERFBITRS - BK
BERMUARIN T HEBNENTE © R
TREFHNAEEZ/EENGEERRE
BRIFEETRNO SRR

MEREZRAR XN THEBNELR
E o AEMERERERER GRS,
EENEEMRR - ZEMEETREFBE
HEH R ERBRAREED - URMEE
BBERMERMBNRE  TEEREF
HEBRAREIRRERES MHERKE it
MNERKERE - BWE SRR —RNIRE
BR300 AR - — R = - A5KE
TEEEF RtERWEUERR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3% 155



Notes to the Financial Statements Bff&skz=RMizE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

E#5IE)

39 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer and supplier. The
default risk of the industry and country in which customers/
suppliers operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent. At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
a certain concentration of credit risk as 12% and 13% (2012:
7% and 12%) of the total trade and other receivables was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the supplier with the
largest prepayment balance, respectively, and 21% and 31%
(2012: 14% and 31%) was due from the five largest customers
and the suppliers with five largest prepayment balances,
respectively, of the Group.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables and
prepayments are set out in note 24 and note 18.

Liquidity risk

As detailed in note 1(b), the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB572,483,000 as at 31 December
2013. The liquidity of the Group is primarily depending on
its ability to maintain adequate cash flows from operations,
to renew its short-term bank loans and to obtain adequate
external financing to support its working capital and meet
its obligations and commitments when they become due.
Management is taking certain actions to address these
conditions in accordance with the Group’s policy of regularly
monitoring its current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. These actions include negotiating with banks to
renew the short term loans and to explore the availability of
alternative sources of financing. Further details of these actions
and bank loans concerned are set out in note 1(b).
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AEENCEERRETESSEFRIEERTN
BRABEHE - FF MEFLSENTER
FEBRRNIZRERTEHEERME —E¥
2, ERERE RHEHEEER K&
BEZETEEBHETHER HAEWE
ZERARHEMERREBERETDIRE12%K
13%(=FB—ZF : 7% R12%) KREAREE
BAEFREER (FEEGBAMREZEKR
BRI » B21%R% (=T ——F :
14%K31%) AIREAEE AT P RIHEED
(HEEFBNREZREARIBD)BIRK

BRASEEEERWNE S RAKRBENE
MEAENEERRNE - THEHEHN
MisE24 R MizE18 ©

MBE Rk

BE10ML - AEER=-F—=F1=
A=+t HNRDEBRAERDEEAR
#572,483,0007T - AEBRBE T EEME
HRNEEPEREHLERSRE - E8H
EHRTERRISES I PHE AR
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39 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

39 BEKREER AT E@®

(o) Liquidity risk (continued) (b)) "BESERE@)
The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities TREINAEERAQ BB HEE GRS
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the BEEANBRTENFER  FHRVKERETD
Company’s financial liabilities, which are based on contractual URFBEENRERE(BERBESOFIZER
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments (NHZR)RBEFEPEEE B BRI AR
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates ENRAMENR) URAFEBRAAREERR
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date B HEERER -
the Group and the Company can be required to pay.
The Group EH
213 2012
ZE-ZF jut- Toiut-3
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
RIRERRERY AFRAKRERH
Morethan  More than More than More than
Carrying Within ~ 1yearbut  2years but Camjing Within 1yearbut 2 yearsbut
amount at 1year or less than lessthan ~ More than amount at 1 year or less than [ess than More than
31 December on demand PATE 5years CATEIC 31 December Totd ondemand 2years 5years 5years
#r=A Mt=R
Sqr=f3 -Fhg  BE-F BT =t-A -FRg EE-F BEME
KEEE BEEAR EORWE  BIREE bk HEEE BF  BEBAR  BORWF  BIREE it chit3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR INGEe N SSIN SERRDNE S0P ARBTL  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  AR¥TR
Bank oans-current ROER-08 1114482 (1,176,183  (1,176,183) = = - 1018985 (1064289  (1,064,289) - - -
Bankendotherloans T REMER
- non-current - %E08 50718 (182517)  (43317) (285607  (297.986) (215,607 w180 (576,566) (0891 (221666  (312869) 1,146)
Bonds % 200200 (309500 (309,500) = = = 208600 (323,750) (14250 (309500) - -
Trade and other payables R EBEEREM
R 671,060 (671,960)  (671,960) - - - 801161 (801,161)  (801,161) - - -
2677360 (2940,160) (2200960  (285607)  (237,086) (215607 2606026 (766766 (1920591  (631166) (312869 (1,146)

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 F3§ 157



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt#&k &Mzt
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A R 5I/(H)

39 Financial risk management and fair values 39 BI#EREBEER AP E@
(continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) b) RBELREREE)
The Company AAT
2013 2012
- St 3o
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
RIRAHRERY RABAHRERY

Morethan  More than More than More than

Carrying Within ~ 1yearbut  2years but Camying Within Tyearbut  2yearsbut
amount at 1yearor less than lessthan ~ More than amount at 1yearor less than less than More than
31 December Total  ondemand PATEH 5years EATEIEM 31 December Totdl  ondemand 2 years 5 years 5 years

R+=A R+=A

Er=f 3 #a-f BamE =t+-B —ERg Be-f BEmE
WREE 8% BEEAR EORWE  BORERF it ehitd NERE A% BEENR BIRWE  BOREE B8RS
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INE AN TN STARING SURRDN SURDNE ST ARETT  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Bank loans - current BOEH-0H 128,855 (132,282) (132,282) - - - 397,586 (416,407) (416,407) - - -
Bonds &% 209200 (3095000 (300,500) - - - 298600 (323750) (142500 (309500) - -
Other payables HhEfEE 17,059 ({7059  (17,059) - - - 20,205 (20,208) (20,208) - - -
445,114 (458,841) (458,841) - - - 716,391 (760,362) (450,862) 309,500) - -
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39 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(©

Interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits with stable interest rates, the Group
has no other significant interest bearing assets. Accordingly,
the Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. Details of the
effective interest rates for bank deposits are disclosed in notes
25 and 26. The Group’s interest rate risk arises mainly from
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group and the Company to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk, respectively. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge
its interest rate risk.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net borrowings at the end of the reporting
period.

The Group

39 HBEREERAFE@

(©

2013

—E-=

Effective

interest rate

Variable rate borrowings ZE{&&

RERRI=
%

MRk

BRREREFRNRTERS  NEBEWEH
EARGTEEE - Bt AEBEHRARKE
RERBABLERZMENEREEHTE -
BRI RBERFRNF IR 25K 265
KE - AEENANZREREEREEE - F
EREEBEEARERADEDBIARER
ERFEABE A FERNRRARE - AREL
EERITERE T AR =R -

() FEER
TRAJAEERREHREEEAEE
TFRRRVRIZRAELR o

rEH
2012
—E-—F
Effective
RMB’000 interest rate RMB’000

AR%TR BRA= ARET R
%

Bank loans - current RITER—BH 4.02 284,747 3.54 492,352
Bank and other loans — RITRHEMER —FFENE
non-current 7.31 589,123 7.90 484,500
873,870 976,852
Fixed rate borrowings  EE{E&
Bank loans — current RITEF — BN 6.06 829,735 5.29 526,633
Bank and other loans — RITREMER — JEENE
non-current 2.55 2,595 2.55 2,780
Bonds &% 4.75 299,200 4.75 298,600
1,131,530 828,013
Total borrowings BEHE 2,005,400 1,804,865
Fixed rate borrowings EEEEGEERENE DL
as a percentage of
total borrowings 56.4% 45.9%
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

39 Financial risk management and fair values 39 BI#EREBEER AP E@

(continued)

()

Interest rate risk (continued)

() Interest rate profile (continued)

(©)

R =k (&)

)  FEHRE)

The Company b /N
2013 2012
2= —E-F
Effective Effective
interest rate RMB’000 interest rate RMB’000
BERA= ARBTR BWRAZ= AR®TF T
% %
Variable rate borrowings ZE{£&
Bank loans - current RITER —ENHR 3.43 128,855 3.49 397,586
128,855 397,586
Fixed rate borrowings EEEE
Bonds &% 4.75 299,200 4.75 298,600
Total borrowings BEAE 428,055 696,186
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i)  BRESH
The Group
AEH
2013 2012
—B—=F —E-—F
Increase/ Effect on Effect on Increase/ Effect on Effect on
(decrease) in loss for accumulated (decrease) in loss for accumulated
interest rate the year losses interest rate the year losses
FlE EF7, HEE HR5 R EH HEE R
(&) BENE BRNTE (T &) BN BiENEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT ARET T ARET R
1 8,739 8,739 1 7,889 7,889
(1) (8,739) (8,739) 1) (7,889) (7,889)
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39 Financial risk management and fair values 39 BI#EBREER AP E@
(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

© R=EE#)
(i)  BREEDH (&)

The Company
b N
2013 2012
—E-—= —E-—F
Increase/ Effect on Effect on Increase/ Effect on Effect on
(decrease) in loss for accumulated (decrease) in loss for accumulated
interest rate the year losses interest rate the year losses
MEEFH HEE HRE FZ EH HEE HEF
(T &) BENTE BIENTE (F¥) BIENTE BiENTE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥TT AR®BFT ARETR
1 1,289 1,289 1 3,374 3,374
(1) (1,289) (1,289) (1) (3,374) (3,374)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous U EHRBRESHEBER  BEANZEFHH
change in the Group’s and the Company’s loss for the MEHEEERRE - WiERREHE
year and accumulated losses that would have arisen FARE X FEMNEE T BER&AERNR=R
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred Bl KERRAATFEEFERE
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied STEENEEEE c —FE——FWNoH
to the exposure to interest rate risk for the financial ELHEREREETT -

instruments in existence at that date. The analysis has
been performed on the same basis for 2012.
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39 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(d) Currency risk
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchases, bank loans and cash and bank deposits that
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily the United States Dollar, Euros, the Hong Kong Dollar
and the Japanese Yen. Management does not expect any
significant impact from movements in exchange rates since the
Group uses the foreign currencies collected from customers to
settle the amounts due to suppliers.

(i) Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

39 BHERERERAFE@

©)

2013

—g-=

United

State
Dollars Euros
B3 B
RMB’000  RMB'000
ARMTR AR¥TR

Trade and otherreceivables  EREZERREMELFE 417,942 16,610

RMB'000

S7INEEE FRL s

REBAZWINERER - EERE LN (B
EIR 5 MR B E B LN E B ) sHE
HSEERRE - RTERURBRERRITE
e EEZERNEREEREXT BT
BARBE - EEELFEHEEZSHE
BREMEAZE RERFEEEABEF
W ER B9 SNEE B R R L FE R RRH

0  SMNEmE
TRAJIAEERADARBEHNBE
HBAENINERR - SNERME
BAEENEERUINERTENSER

EEREEMELE °
The Group
5H
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)
HERBIARBIIE)
2012
—E-CF
Hong United Hong

Kong  Japanese States Kong  Japanese
Dollars Yens Dollars Euros Dollars Yens
BT A N b B AE

G0N RVB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000

N EPNG ST ARBTL  ARBTR ARBTR ARETR

21,748 24538 - -

Cash at bank and in hand RORFERS 113,333 1,160 1,076 508 84,528 1,374 7,909 -
Bank and other loans BAREMESR (656,278 (37517  (1862) - 8627 (10259 - -
Trade and other payables  ENEZRHRAMENFE  (234,853) (5,632) (345)  (17,229) (3619 (14,204) - (27,080

(25985) (25379 (17,892 (167200 (717570) 1450 7900 (27,080)
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39 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued)

39 BHEMREERAFE@

)

SN LB ()
0 IEmEEE)

The Company
PN
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Renminbi)

SMNERE(AARESIE)
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
United States United States
Dollar Dollar
P E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Other receivables HibEURFIE 23,378 10,193
Cash at bank and in hand IRITRFERSE 9 109
Bank loans RITER (128,855) (397,586)
Other payables HAib e FIE (27,331) (851)
(132,799) (388,135)

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong Dollar.
As the Hong Kong Dollar is pegged to the United States
Dollar, the Company considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the Hong Kong Dollar and the

United States Dollar to be significant.

RNBWIHEEEERETT - ARBITEET
e ARARRBBTHEETZENERS
BEBREX -
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39 Financial risk management and fair values 39 BI#EREBEER AP E@

(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) HMERBS (&)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BEESH
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in TRETAEERNRREHEEE A&
the Group’s loss for the year and accumulated losses in EEARBWEERTEEESEES
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign MBArEEFEEFIERZFTHERERN
exchange rates to which the Group has significant BRF2 B o

exposure at the end of the reporting period.

The Group
*58
2012
—E--F
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
foreign Effect on Effect on foreign Effect on Effect on
exchange loss for accumulated exchange loss for  accumulated
rates the year losses rates the year losses
Extn/ HER HRG ExLH/ HER HEG
(T) BRENEE L =linEZ (&) FENYE BENZE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR
United States Dollars %t 10 25,986 25,986 10 72,188 72,188
(10) (25,986) (25,986) (10) (72,188) (72,188)
Euros B 10 2,538 2,538 10 (46) (46)
(10) (2,538) (2,538) (10) 46 46
Hong Kong Dollars BT 10 7,789 7,789 10 (791) (791)
(10) (7,789) (7,789) (10) 791 791
Japanese Yens HE 10 1,672 1,672 10 2,140 2,140
(10) (1,672) (1,672) (10) (2,140) (2,140)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table FREJNSMEREFREESEEBHRE
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on #BEE/FBERAN(LEBENIEEE T
each of the Group entities’ loss/profit after taxation and B2 UBREHEEEANERREAARE)
equity measured in the respective functional currencies, HYENRF S/ 24858 » 23R H o

translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at
the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.
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39 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

40

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis has been performed
on the same basis for 2012.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at cost or amortised cost
and their carrying amounts are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2012 and 2013.

Significant accounting estimates and
judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements management used in
applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial position and operating results. Some of the
accounting policies require management to apply estimates and
judgements on matters that are inherently uncertain. The critical
accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
are described below.

(@)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful life of each asset, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. Management
reviews annually the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any. Both the period and methods of depreciation
are reviewed annually. The depreciation expenses for future
periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

39

40

R EREE R AR E @

()  FME B ()
() BBES(E)

HBE SRR RAEEER2E
B RAEEFEES ERN RS
HERRRINERRNZZNETE
BE SRR A SR A T B M LA SN B
WA 9 SR B 2 ) RSP BRI IR PR
HIE - DT EESEIN BB RE
BERREE SR AR o
—E-—EmARENERNEEE
7o

b

N\

e 2AFE
W-B-——FR-B-ZF+-A=+-
B FiEEK T ERAARSEHER AR -
HIFEEHEANFEIEEAERE o

BERETHEET R H

EEERAASENS BRI EAYE A EEHH
MR R EEEBREERFENT L - et R -
BoETBRFEEEMERTHREEER G
RYE - ERAEES T ERRRFEENERSTH
BRI TS o

(@) % -~ BB RRIEHEERFH
W3 BERREEAREMGTRER - U
ERERBEENMGETIERFHTRT
E EEESFEHNEENTEAFHERE
REMA)  LTESFERFRIENHER
Tk o MREREFHEEREE - BEY
RIS EHH A2 -
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40 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b)

Impairments of assets

Management reviews the carrying amounts of assets at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
any objective evidence of impairment. When an indication of
impairment is identified, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, management prepares discounted future cash flows
to assess the differences between the carrying amount and
value in use and provides for impairment losses. Any change
in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would
increase or decrease the provision for impairment losses and
affect the Group’s profit or loss and net assets value.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually even if there
has no indication of impairment.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful receivables are
assessed and provided based on the management’s regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgement is exercised by management
when assessing the credit worthiness and past collection
history of each individual customer. An increase or decrease in
the above impairment losses would affect the Group’s profit or
loss and net assets value.

Impairment of prepayments to suppliers and provision
for onerous contracts

The Group makes non-cancellable advance payments to
raw material suppliers under purchase agreements which
are to be offset against future purchases. In the event when
the economic benefits expected to be received under these
purchase agreements are less than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the contractual obligations; or the financial conditions
of suppliers deteriorate, management will consider whether
such advance payments to suppliers are impaired and make
necessary provision for the present obligations under the
agreements. The Group does not require collateral or other
security against its prepayments to suppliers. Management
performs ongoing evaluations of impairment of prepayments
to suppliers and provisions for commitments that may become
onerous due to a change of market conditions and the financial
conditions of its suppliers. The evaluations take into account
the projected revenue, related expenses, capital spending
and other costs. When the prepayments are not likely to be
settled as expected, the Group will make necessary provisions
for the present obligations under the agreements. An increase
or decrease in the above provisions would affect the Group’s
profit or loss and net assets value.
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(b)

EERE
EEENERENEAE I EHEENRE
B UEERRAREEMNEEEE B
REBHERRE  BAAEENTRE S
H-BEENAWESHARFEEEERAEE
MEFNRSE - SHEECRAEER - B2
[E 4 L BE 3R R SR IR 207 8 BART( AR TET B ER 68
REERNER  LEREBERE -BE
REBFRURMNBRREEMEE - ESHEHE
EEERERMNSRD @ YLEAEENIE
mREEFE -

BENERERETFRERTELBFET
—IRRERIE o

REERESRRRREEEEDENER
7 R A WS RR AP A 1 T4 RS
5 EREENGEEENESHEBRBE
WORAEBRES - IR R RO ST o bR
EBANEMER  SHESEBNERR
BEFE -

AN FHEBFNREREREESH
3]
REBREBEHZQRMBEEREL R
AHEAN R - BEFESRAREE K
YRR S o (e RIEFZ S B B i R TR 7 W
NEBNRERSNEETTRBHRAE
FREHEFUBRRNER  EHERERE
BN TREHEEENFEREEERE I
RZEHBETNREEEFHLRRE -
AREE I EA TR T BRI R IRE RIK A
R EMIER - EEERFETERY THE
EIRVRIBAVRE » 2L AT AE F R TR I (i
BHMBRRBEMASEEHNAERE -
ZafhERE R WE c AEMAX &S
HIEREMARA - EEMBAMEERNHE
B AEERHRZEHRRTHREEEE
HAAERE o FHBERENSURD SR
REEMPNIBEEREEFE -
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40 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(d)

Write-down of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in technique and
competitor actions in response to adverse industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions during the ordinary
course of business, for which calculation of the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences would affect profit or loss in future years.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which related to tax
losses and deductible temporary differences, depends on
management’s expectation of future taxable profits that will
be available against which the tax losses or the asset can be
utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Provision for warranty costs

The Group provides warranties for its photovoltaic modules
for up to 25 years after sales have taken place. Due to limited
warranty claims history, management estimates warranty
costs based on the Group’s historical cost data, industry
data and an assessment of the Group’s competitors’ history
of warranty claims. The warranty obligation of the Group will
be affected not only by the product failure rates, but also by
costs incurred to repair or replace failed products. If the actual
product failure rates and the costs of replacement or repairing
of failed products differ from the estimates, the Group will need
to prospectively revise the provision for warranty costs which
would affect profit or loss in future years.

40 EAETHEET KA E @

)

T E MR
FENUEREFENENRAEEEBRERH
fhETEME - MR ET TR AT A AN K 85 &5 58
X o ZEEETTHER B AT A K RE K 8
EREERNBELR  BUREERARKM
I R 5 T T R SRR UK 1T 2858 HA 1 R ER
NITBMHRERNE - EEEENZHRE
WA E BB RS A5t o

Frig®t
REBEAMNZEREERBNAEH - BE
FSBBEAEHERAE - RABXEKE
B BRSHNRABIERERE &K
REARENSCENEETE > BHEEH
AT ERRFEN RS ©

BREERIEEER TN T ERIEER
HEERTEEBRYARTEARREA
BEUBABEBEREE - AERBAER
ARERFTRE e

R F A B R
AEEREERAHERBEREDFHNER
RA - ARBEELHRRARE - AltE
HERBELRABE  EABEREARE
B T AR AR A REF GG R AR
Ko REBNWRAEETESZERMEL
ZEE ARSZEEIBERLAREER
FEMARE - BRERNELRK B
HEEHBAHEERNRREMGTEEER
REBEABARBTRARAES - WEHAK
REENBEBRIE -
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41 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2013
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2013 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities
BRSFERERNER A B HEEHBEERE

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting
BB ERIZEISRISRI A » iTE T AWEERENFE T HILE

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
EBMBHRELEREN  HETA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
42 Non-adjusting events after the reporting date
In March 2014, Yangguang entered into the an agreement with £8 /1
MAEZEE T RIEE I and ASFEIFREE A B, pursuant to which
Yangguang has acquired 100% equity interests in Jinzhou Wintek
Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. (“Wintek”) at a cash consideration of
RMB15,000,000. Wintek is principally engaged in the construction
of photovoltaic power plants.
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